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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS

Principal activities

The Company is a 100% subsidiary of SHV Energy Group and the principal activities continue to be the processing,
marketing and distribution of liquefied petroleum gases (LPG) in Great Britain.

Business review, future developments and key performance indicators

The Company is Great Britain's leading supplier of LPG and distributes a fully comprehensive range of LPG products
which are used across a wide range of applications. Bulk LPG is supplied to commercial, industrial, agricultural and
domestic customers with tank storage. Onward retail sale is delivered in cylinders of various sizes through direct sales
outlets and a network of LPG retailers which cover the whole of Great Britain. The LPG market is regulated by
statutory bodies to ensure customers can rely on a safe and secure supply of gas. Increased energy efficiency in both
domestic and commercial applications means that the market remains very competitive. Calor is an active member of
the Liquid Gas UK association that represents the industry to external stakeholders.

Seasonal extremes in weather combined with the current high inflation and cost of living environment continue to
provide operational challenges to the business. As a consequence, whilst the number of customers remained stable, the
average consumption per customer reduced during 2022 leading to lower volumes versus prior years.

The company also continued to invest in upgrades to the IT systems and a new ERP system, SAP, which has gone live
in May 2023. The company also continued its long-term investment in the strategic storage facility at Canvey Island.

Commodity derivatives are used to reduce exposure to commodity market changes and then to reduce volatility in
pricing to customers. Whilst at 31 December 2022 these derivatives were fair valued at a loss (2021: gain), this position
is reflected in our retail prices and does not present a risk to future margin performance. This is a timing effect that does
not link to underlying trade performance.

The consequence of these factors is that operating profit fell to a loss of £25.1m (2021: profit of £73.3m).

The Company's strategy is underpinned by focusing on a number of key performance measures; safety and compliance
remains the key focus as well as providing industry leading service measured through customer satisfaction.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The directors believe the key risks to the Company's business are outlined below under financial risk management.

Other risks include the ongoing war in Ukraine. This could potentially put at risk the global availability of LPG and/or
increase the price of LPG. The Company purchases LPG supplies either direct from UK refineries or via an SHV Group
company SHV Energy Supply and Risk Management (SRM), which acquires LPG from global suppliers. The
Company does not source any LPG from Russia. The company uses storage capacity, supply contracts and hedging
tools to effectively manage the risk of supply and cost of LPG. Diesel costs and other energy costs of running the
company are hedged or on fixed price contracts through 2022. The Company also monitors, on a regular basis, all
trading partners to ensure that work is not undertaken with or via any sanctioned individuals or companies.

Whilst inflation and the cost of living crisis is impacting consumer behaviours, the Directors consider that the Company
is in a strong position due to the comprehensive range of uses for LPG and the diverse customer base. The Company is
not dependent on a small number of customers so any risk relating to a potential reduction of sales to specific market
segments is sufficiently spread. The Company's products are not luxury products and a low percentage of sales could be
classified as discretionary.

The Company is not reliant on external borrowing and the climate could also bring opportunities as well as risks. A low
number of house sales and purchases may result in a more stable domestic customer base. Increasing competitiveness of
the UK job market has been seen across a number of functions and geographies during the year. Detailed analysis has
- been undertaken and specific recruitment strategies adopted to minimise impact on the business.

The UK Government has set a net zero carbon target for 2050 and there are continuing climate change risks that must
be mitigated. As set out in the SECR disclosures on pages 5 to 6, there is a focus on bringing carbon down through
using renewably sourced electricity, switching vehicles away from diesel and making use of hybrid working. Looking
into the future, the Company is focussed on research & development into new renewable sources of LPG to meet
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report -
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Government targets. This has been set out in more detail on page 5.

The Directors do not currently anticipate any significant issues that are not currently being managed and on this basis
the directors are of the view that there will be no further significant adverse effect ori the Company's current business.

Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to a variety of risks the most significant of which are operational risk, commodity price risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and weather risk. The board seeks to limit the adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Company by reviewing and agreeing policies for managing each of these
risks and these are summarised below:

Operational risk

Operational risks are all those risks which are not financial and which are caused by failed systems, human behaviour or
external events. Operational risks are assessed by the method of 'risk self-assessment’, which is based on the principle
that management at all levels are responsible for managing their 'own' operational risks. In addition Health and Safety
risks are covered by a company Safety Management System.

Commodity price risk
The Company's operating performance is affected by price fluctuations in LPG, derivatives are used to limit the effect
of price volatility and provide pricing certainty for customers.

Foreign currency risk .
Where LPG suppliers require settlement in foreign currency, forward foreign exchange contracts are used to mitigate
exchange rate risks of the LPG price and associated derivative.

Pension risk :

FRS 102 requires the liabilities under the defined benefit pension scheme to be discounted using the interest rate on
high quality long term corporate bonds. The net valuation of the pension scheme is therefore intrinsically linked to
movements in bond yields and other general economic factors.

Credit risk

The Company has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks and reviews on potential and existing
customers. Collection procedures for overdue balances are reviewed periodically. Certain customers are covered by
debt insurance. In light of the current economic climate, directors have performed a detailed review of the bad debt
provisioning methods and feel that the resulting provisions in place at the year-end are appropriate.

Liquidity risk

The Company finances its operations through cash flow from operating activities. Cash forecasts identifying the
liquidity requirements of the Company are produced frequently. These are reviewed regularly by the Board to ensure
that sufficient financial headroom exists for at least a twelve month period at any point in time.

Interest rate risk

Although interest rates have risen significantly during 2023; the Company's financing is arranged internally with the
parent company, SHV on fixed rate contracts and the company has no long term external bank debt. There is some
intercompany financing between entities in the Calor group on IBOR rate contracts.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the replacement of
some interbank offered rates (IBORs) with alternative risk-free rates (referred to as 1BOR reform'). The company has
limited exposures to IBORs on an intercompany loan that will be replaced or reformed as part of these market wide
initiatives. There is uncertainty over the timings and method of transition. The company does not believe that IBOR
reform will impact the level of its intercompany interest rate transactions.

The directors therefore consider interest rate risk to be effectively managed.

Inflation Risk

UK inflation is likely to fall to around 5% by the end of 2023. The Directors manage the risk through a range of
measures including effective procurement both in GB and supported by a Global Procurement function hedging tools to
fix the cost of LPG over 12 to 24 months and pricing actions to customers.

Weather risk
Sales volumes are influenced by temperature and other weather factors. However, currently, the costs of managing
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

exposure to weather risk appear excessive in relation to the potential benefits. The Company contiﬁually seeks to
mitigate this risk by developing its non-weather dependant business.

Key Performance Indicators
The directors of Calor Gas Itd have calculated the following key performance indicators: .

KPI Explanation 2022 2021
Financial ‘

Capital Expenditure Measures investment in both tangible and intangible assets 90.9 724
%) including deferred and contingent amounts as well as acquisitions

and asset purchases committed to during the year.

Days sales Measures the average number of days it takes to collect payment ;16.6 51.4
outstanding for a sale
KPI Explanation 2022

2021

Non-Financial

Lost time injury Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate ('LTIFR') measures the number 0.85 1.05
frequency rate of lost time injuries per 200,000 hours worked

Research & Development

In 2022 Calor undertook Research & Development of storage, distribution, handling and safety solutions for the
introduction of a new low carbon fuel - rDME. rDME is a low carbon alternative to LPG and in 2023 Calor will begin
supplying this innovative fuel to customers as demonstration trials.

R&D work involved the identification and creation of new rDME compatible components such as seals, .valves,
pipework and hoses. The new rDME compatible components have been put through a detailed screening and testing
program to ensure their suitability and have been approved by Calor's technical experts. These components have been
installed on rDME Vehicles & rDME trials to begin.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

ENVIRONMENT A
In line with the Streamlined Energy Carbon Reporting requirement, during the year ended 31 December 2022, the

company's carbon emissions and energy usage was as follows.

Summary

Calor Gas LTD greenhouse gas emissions, reportable under SECR in 2022 were 31,389 tonnes CO2e. Total emissions
.have reduced 12% against 2021, this has been driven by a decrease in diesel use in our fleet vehicles and improved data
collection methods which has improved the data recording and consumption of LPG. An assessment of the LPG has led
us to understand we have overstated the consumption of LPG for 2021; We have not restated LPG for last year as we
have switched to propane consumption on multiple sites. We are pleased to report that our carbon intensity against
revenue has also decreased by 8.9% to 70.95 tonnes CO2e.

Greenhouse gas emissions

As can be seen in Table | below, carbon emissions have reduced by 12%, and carbon intensity against revenue has also
decreased by 8.9%. 83% of emissions in 2022 came from transport fuel use (predominantly diesel in HGVs for
deliveries), and this has also decreased by 2%. Other drivers have been the reduction in natural gas and LPG with an
12% reduction in emissions. LPG Usage has also reduced by 84% against 2021 primarily due to better data collection
and a better understanding of site operation due to ESOS site surveys.

Natural gas usage has also reduced significantly due to a filling site permanently closing and second site transitioning to
the use of 'boil-off' propane gas as their primary fuel source in their steam boilers. This transition to propane at the
aforementioned site and the better data recording around its use in steam boilers at second site is part of the reasons for
the 444% increase in the use of propane.

Table 1 Greenhouse gas emissions by year (tonnes CO2¢)

YoY
Emissions source 2021 2022 Share Variance
Fuel combustion: Natural Gas 1,084 451 1% -58%
Purchased electricity 3,054 2,877 9% -6%
Fuel combustion: Petrol and Diesel 26,660 26,056 83% ) 2%
Fuel combustion: Propane 230 1,250 4% +444%
Fuel combustion: LPG 4,632 756 2% -84%
Total emissions (tCO2e) 35,660 31,389 100% -12%
Tonnes gas sold 457,723 442,426 -3%
Intensity: (kgCO2e per tonne sold) 77.91 70.95 - -8.9%

Calor have been investing in the procurement of zero carbon electricity for our sites since 2019. Therefore, the 9% of
our carbon footprint for electricity consumption could be removed under market-based reporting methodology, our
emission using market-based methodology wouid be 26,157 tCO2e.

Table 2 shows, 91% of our emissions are scope 1: emissions from fuel used in equipment and vehicles we own or lease.

YoY
Scope of emissions 2021 2022 Share Variance
Scope 1 32,592 28,500 91% -13%
Scope 2 2,806 2,635 . 8% -6%
Scope 3 261 254 1% -3%
Total emissions (tCO2e) 35,660 31,389 100% -12%

Scope 1: Fuel use in Calor-owned/leased equipment and vehicles
Scope 2: Electricity consumption
Scope 3: Losses from electricity distribution and transmission, and fuel used in private cars for business

purposes
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Energy consumption
The introduction of SECR means that companies are required to publish annual energy consumption as well as
emissions. Table 3 below shows the total energy consumption for the group and the split in energy source/fuel type.

YoY
Emissions source 2021 2022 Share Variance
Fuel combustion: Natural Gas 5,915,975 2,471,805 2% -58%
Purchased electricity 't 13,214,570 13,628,348 13% 3%
Fuel combustion: Petrol and Diesel - 105,977,163 81,906,505 78% -23%
Fuel combustion: Propane 987,843 5,754,276 5% 483%
Fuel combustion: LPG 20,112,225 1,196,316 1% 94%
Total consumption (KWh) 146,207,776 104,957,250 100% 28%

Boundary, methodology and exclusions

An ‘operational control' approach has been used to define the Greenhouse Gas emissions boundary . .

This approach captures emissions associated with the operation of all buildings such as warehouses, offices, and
manufacturing sites, plus company-owned transport.

This information was collected and reported in line with the methodology set out in the UK Government's
Environmental Reporting Guidelines, 2019.

Emissions have been calculated using the latest conversion factors provided by the UK Government. There are no
material omissions from the mandatory reporting scope.

The reporting period is January 2022 to December 2022, as per the financial accounts.

Energy efficiency initiatives
To improve energy efficiency across our sites, we undertook the following actions in 2022:

Continued the procurement of 100% renewable electricity.

Upgraded the insulation and lighting across key sites as part of our ongoing maintenance programme.
Improved data collection and analysis.

Adopted hybrid working where appropriate.

Going forward, we will be developing an action plan to implement the improvements highlighted in our Energy Saving
Opportunities Scheme (ESOS) Phase 3 audit as well as undertaking a major redevelopment of our most energy
intensive site at Canvey Island. i

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Board of Directors, in line with their duties under s172 of the Companies Act 2006, act in a way they consider
would most likely be in the best interests of the Company taking into account the requirements of all stakeholders. We
aim to build positive relationships with stakeholders who share our values to help deliver long-term sustainable success.

The Board have the full support of the shareholder in developing the Company for the benefit of all stakeholders.
Engagement with other stakeholders is illustrated below.

Customers

At the core of the Company's strategy is the intent to "provide all of our customers with an industry leading
experience". Customer service is a key differentiator and the independent customer review tool Trustpilot is being used
as an external measure of the Company's success whilst highlighting areas for improvement. It is monitored closely and
is used to celebrate and reinforce positive behaviours but also provides independent, real time feedback from customers.

Our people

Through employee forums, newsletters, company intranet, national conferences and the Company Council the Directors
engage with our people on a wide range of matters. The aim is to ensure that their views are taken into account when
decisions are made that are likely to affect their interests, and that all employees are aware of the financial and
economic performance of their business units and of the Company as a whole.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report )
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The company is committed to the principle of equal opportunity in employment. Our employment policies for
recruitment, selection, training, development and promotion are designed to ensure that no job applicant or employee
receives less favourable treatment on the grounds of race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion, political
beliefs, disability, sex or marital status. Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered,
bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff
becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the company continues and the
appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the company that the training, career development and promotion of a
disabled person should, as far as possible, be identical to that of a person who does not suffer from a disability. The
company has recently initiated a Diversity and Inclusion strategy to further develop in these areas.

An Employee Assistance Programme is in place and is designed to provide a safe and confidential environment for
employees to seek help, advice or support in relation to any personal issues they have. In addition, employees have
access to a confidential reporting system, Speak Up, to enable them to raise any concerns regarding business practices.
This reflects the importance placed on the well-being of all of our stakeholders.

All new employees join a broad induction programme and have on-going access to both in-house and external training
resources via a dedicated HR training and development team. A number of talent management programmes are in place
across the Company and within the parent group, supporting all colleagues to reach their full potential.

Suppliers

All supplier-related activity is managed in line with the Group Procurement Policy. This ensures that supply risk is
managed appropriately in relation to customer outcomes, data security, corporate responsibility, and financial,
operational, contractual and brand damage caused by inadequate oversight or supplier failure.

Communities .

Engagement with local communities is important to our regional presence. Our local branches support local community
events and our sustainability focus harnesses our passion towards the creation of a better planet. The Company
continues to encourage all employees to support local community initiatives and provides time away from work for this.
The Company fully supports and funds financial awards made to local community initiatives under the national Rural
Community Fund banner.

Government and regulators

The Board is fully supported by the parent group in its commitment to maintaining the highest standards of ethics and
compliance. Regular, compulsory training and testing of compliance requirements is embedded within the culture,
championed by an internal Compliance team.

By its nature LPG requires robust controls in its storage, transportation and use. The Company works hard within the
industry to ensure that all required Codes of Practice are in place and adhered to. This fully aligns with the Company
strategy, placing the safety of all stakeholders at its core and targeting zero injuries.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company has in place a Health and Safety Policy under which procedures have been developed to identify
potential hazards from any substances, products, processes and methods of working, to advise employees and
contractors of any hazards and to ensure safe systems of work are adopted to minimise the risk of injury.

The Company's Environmental Management System has been developed in line with ISO 14001 and part of its
operation enables us to monitor energy consumption, fuel use and waste disposal and take action to reduce
environmental impacts. Employees are trained to exercise personal responsibility in preventing harm to the
environment. ’
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The Company also has a wider strategy based around sustainability which has been briefed across the Company. This
includes a carbon reduction target and a working group has been established to deliver and report on this on an annual
basis.

BY ORDER OFJTHE/BOARD:
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Directors' Report .
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The directors present their report with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

RESULTS
The company's loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 is £15.1 million (year ended 31 December 2021
profit : £57.4 million).

DIVIDENDS
The total distribution of dividends for the year ended 31 December 2022 were £nil (2021: £10,000,000).

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The company continues to research new markets for the use of LPG, to maintain effective safety measures and develop

equipment for LPG and allied products.
Future developments are discussed in the Strategic report on page 4.

EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR
Information relating to events since the end of the year is given in note 28 on page 40 to the financial statements.

Financial Instruments .
The company uses financial instruments to manage commodity price and foreign exchange risk. Full discussion on risk

is in the strategic report on page 3.

DIRECTORS
The Directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 January 2022 to the date of this

report

Directors who were appointed during the period were as follows:
T M J Dillon appointed on 1 September 2022

R Lopes appointed on 17 October 2022

M Cleaver appointed 1 August 2023

Directors who resigned during the period were as follows:
J M Wood resigned on 31 August 2022

M Q Hickin resigned on 30 September 2022

S P Macdonald resigned on 10 November 2022

N Fortune resigned on 31 July 2023

P Instrell resigned on 31 July 2023

The Directors benefit from qualifying third party indemnity provisions in place during the year ended 31 December
2022 and at the date of this report.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Directors' Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

GOING CONCERN

Notwithstanding the Loss before tax of £23.8m (2021: Profit before tax 71.8m) for the year ended 31 December 2022
and has Net current liabilities of £15.7m (2021: Net current assets £69.8m) as at 31 December 2022, the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to be appropriate for the following
reasons.

The company primarily meets its day to day working capital requirements from a group banking facility, together with
operational cash flows, intercompany loan and trading balances with the group headed by SHV Holdings N.V. the
ultimate parent company.

The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts and performed a going concern assessment which indicates that, in both
the base and reasonably possible downsides, the company will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities as they fall
due during the going concern assessment period. SHV Nederland B.V. has confirmed that it will provide bank overdraft
facilities during the going concern assessment period.

The base case forecast uses the Company's existing budgets, forecasts, and strategic plans for 2023 and 2024, which
assume volumes remain in line with recent market trends and productivity improvements compensate for inflationary
impacts. The Directors have also prepared a downside scenario which models the impact on business performance from
potential recession and inflationary impacts. Whilst this could impact business performance including but not limited to
impacts on working capital; several mitigating actions have been predetermined to ensure liquidity remains, throughout
the going concern assessment period. These potential mitigations may include deferral of uncommitted capital
expenditure, actions on discretionary spend as well as pricing.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities
as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and therefore have prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

- assess the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appllcable, matters related to going
concern; and

- use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors, who held office at the date of approval of this directors' report, are aware, there is no relevant
audit information (as defined by Section 418 of Companies Act 2006) of which the company's auditors are unaware,
and each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that
information.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Directors’ Report
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

AUDITORS : .
Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will

therefore continue in office.

ON BEHALF THE BOARD:

T M/J Dillon - Director
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of
Calor Gas Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Calor Gas Limited ("the company") for the year ended 31 December 2022
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and related
notes, including the accounting policies in note 2.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its loss for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent
of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial position means that this is
realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its
ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going
concern period").

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the.inherent risks to the Company’s business model and
analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the
going concem period

Our conclusions based on this work:
- we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial

statements is appropriate;

- we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ablllty to continue
asa gomg concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a
guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement to fraud.

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud ("fraud risks") we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud.  Our risk assessment
procedures included:’

- Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to Calor Gas Limited policies and procedures to
prevent and detect fraud that apply to this company as well as enquiring whether the dlrectors have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

- Reading Board minutes.

- Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets; and

- Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets and our overall
knowledge of the control environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls
and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular risk that revenue is recorded in the wrong period and the
risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of
Calor Gas Limited

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test for the company based on risk criteria and
comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included unexpected debit or credit journals posted
to cash and borrowings and unexpected credit postings to revenue during the financial year..

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regulations
We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the directors (as required by
auditing standards) and discussed with the directors the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and
regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of
non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation legislation
and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
financial statement items.

Secondly , the company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines
or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: health and safety,
anti-bribery, employment law and certain aspects of company legislation recognising the nature of the company’s
activities. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the directors inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach
of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that
breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance
with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events
and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by
auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventmg non-compliance or fraud and cannot be
expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Strategic report and directors’ report
The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

- we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

- in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements;
and

- in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of
Calor Gas Limited ’

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit: or

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on pages 9 and 10, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditors' report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at wWw.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters. we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

&

Daniel Burrows (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

One Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway

Birmingham

B4 6GH

Dat: .. \«\o«\zfa
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2022
Notes £000
TURNOVER 3
Cost of sales
GROSS PROFIT
Distribution costs ) 79,500
Administrative expenses 76,200

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT 6

Income from shares in group undertakings 7

Interest payable and similar expenses 8
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Tax on (loss)/profit. 9

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
scheme

Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

£'000
511,900
381,300

130,600

155,700

(25,100)

5,400
(19,700)
4,100

(23,800)

(8,700)

(15,100)

(18,300)

4,600

(13,700)

(28,800)

The notes form part of these financial statements
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2021
£'000

83,200

60,600

£000
471,800
254,700

217,100

143,800

73,300

2,300

75,600.
3,800
71,800

14,400

—e

57,400

29,000
(4,100)
24,900

82,300



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Balance Sheet
31 December 2022

Notes

FIXED ASSETS

- Intangible assets 11
Tangible assets 12
Investments 13
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks’ 14
Debtors 15
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 16

NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more than one
year 17

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 21
PENSION LIABILITY 23

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Called up share capital 22
- Revaluation reserve

Retained earnings

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

The were approved by

2022
£000

25,100
101,100

126,200

(141,900)

the Board

on AT LTL LD, and were signed on its behalf by:

£000 -

45,300
340,500
1,500

387,300

(15,700)

371,600

(131,800)
(11,600)

(34,200)

194?000

30,100
100
163,800

194,000

of Directors

The notes form part of these financial statements
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2021

£'000 £000

28,700

305,800

5,100

339,600
24,000
141,000
165,000

(95,200)
69,300

409,400

(135,400)
(20,800)

(30,400)

222,800

30,100
100
192,600

222,800

and authorised for

issue



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Balance at 1 January 2021
Changes in equity

Dividends

Total comprehensive income
Balance at 31 December 2021
Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2022

Called up

share Retained Revaluation Total
capital earnings reserve equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
30,100 120,300 100 150,500
- (10,000) - (10,000)

- 82,300 - 82,300
30,100 192,600 100 . 222,800
- (28,800) - (28,800)
30,100 163,800 100 194,000

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

1.

STATUTORY INFORMATION

Calor Gas Limited is a private company, limited by shares, registered in England and Wales. The company's
registered number and registered office address can be found on the Company Information page.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements
The Company is part of the worldwide SHV Group and the principal activities continue to be the processing,
marketing and distribution of liquefied petroleum gases (LPG) in the United Kingdom.

Calor Gas Limited (the "Company") is a company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in the UK.
The financial statements contain information about Calor Gas Limited as an individual company and do not
contain consolidated financial information as the parent of a group. The Company is exempt under section 401
of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as it and its
subsidiary undertakings are included by full consolidation in the consolidated financial statements of its
intermediate parent, SHV Energy N.V., a company incorporated in The Netherlands.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 102") and the Companies Act 2006.
The presentation currency of these financial statements is sterling. All amounts in the financial statements have
been rounded to the nearest £100,000.

Judgements and Estimates

Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on
the financial statements and estimates with significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed
in note 29.

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments, financial instruments classified at fair value
through the profit or loss, freehold and leasehold properties measured in accordance with the revaluation model
and investments in associates and joint ventures measured at fair value.

Going concern

Notwithstanding the Loss before tax of £23.8m (2021: Profit before tax 71.8m) for the year ended 31 December
2022 and has Net current liabilities of £15.7m (2021: Net current assets £69.8m) as at 31 December 2022, the
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to be appropriate
for the following reasons.

The company primarily meets its day to day working capital requirements from: a group banking facility,
together with operational cash flows, intercompany loan and trading balances with the group headed by SHV
Holdings N.V. the ultimate parent company.

The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts and performed a going concern assessment which indicates that,
in both the base and reasonably possible downsides, the company will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities
as they fall due during the going concern assessment period. SHV Nederland B.V. has confirmed that it will
provide bank overdraft facilities during the going concern assessment period.

The base case forecast uses the Company's existing budgets, forecasts, and strategic plans for 2023 and 2024,
which assume volumes remain in line with recent market trends and productivity improvements compensate for
inflationary impacts. The Directors have also prepared a downside scenario which models the impact on
business performance from potential recession and inflationary impacts. Whilst this could impact business
performance including but not limited to impacts on working capital; several mitigating actions have been
predetermined to ensure liquidity remains, throughout the going concern assessment period. These potential
mitigations may include deferral of uncommitted capital expenditure, actions on discretionary spend as well as
pricing.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its
liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and
therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Page 18 continued...



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Reporting Standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions

The company's intermediate parent undertaking, SHV Energy N.V., includes the company in its consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of SHV Energy N.V. are prepared in accordance
with Dutch accounting standards and are available at the address in note 24. In these financial statements, the
company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of the FRS) and has applied the exemptions
available under FRS102 in respect of the following disclosures:

- Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period;
- Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and
- Key Management Personnel compensation.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

Turnover

The company's business comprises predominantly of the sale and distribution of liquefied petroleum gas and
related activities within the United Kingdom. Turnover represents goods and services supplied to third parties,
excluding value added tax and sales taxes for the year. Revenue is recognised when substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership have passed to the customer. Deferred cylinder income is credited to revenue over
fifteen years. Tank hire income is recognised on a monthly basis when the service of using the tank has been
undertaken by the customer. '

Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units or group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination from which it arose.

Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life. Goodwill has no residual value. The finite
useful life of goodwull is estimated to be 10 years.

The company reviews the amortisation period and method when events and circumstances indicate that the
useful life may have changed since the last reporting date.

Goodwill and other intangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance with Section 27 Impairment of
assets when there is an indication that goodwill or an intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets
After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The company reviews the amortisation period and method when events and circumstances indicate that the
useful life may have changed since the last reporting date.

Customer lists :
Customer lists are amortised on a straight line basis over their useful life. Customer lists have no residual value.
The finite useful life of a customer list is estimated to be 10 years.

Software

Amortisation is charged to the profit and loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of each item
of software. The estimated useful life of software is between 2 and 10 years.

Page 19 . continued...



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tangible fixed assets )
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where parts of an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items of tangible fixed assets, for example land is treated separately from buildings.

Leases in which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are
classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Leased assets acquired by way of
finance lease are stated on initial recognition at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, including ‘any incremental costs directly
attributable to negotiating and arranging the lease. At initial recognition a finance lease liability is recognised

‘equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The

present value of the minimum lease payments is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease. Lease
payments are accounted for as described within the' Expenses' accounting policy below.

Tangible fixed assets - continued
The company assesses at each reporting date whether tangible fixed assets (including those leased under a
finance lease) are impaired.

Depreciation is charged to ‘the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of tangible fixed assets. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Freehold property 50 years
Long lease property 50 years
Short lease property 25 years
Plant, machinery and vehicles 4 - 50 years
Cylinders and tanks 7 - 20 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed if there is an indication of a significant
change since last annual reporting date in the pattern by which the company expects to consume an asset's future
economic benefits.

Investments in subsidiaries

These are separate financial statements of the company. Investments in subsidiaries, Jomtly controlled entities
and associates are carried at cost less impairment.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost is based on
the weighted average principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stocks, production or
conversion costs and other costs in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Page 20 continued...



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Basic financial instruments

Trade and other debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. If the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred
beyond normal business terms, then it is measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a
market rate of instrument for a similar debt instrument.

Trade and other creditors .

Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction
costs.Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. If
the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond normal business
terms, then it is measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of instrument for a
similar debt instrument.

Interest-bearing borrowings:classified as basic financial instruments

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

Other financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The company enters into forward contracts to limit the company's exposure to fluctuations in gas price volatility
or to enable fixed price back to back deals for significant customers. Derivative instruments are used exclusively

for hedging purposes.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income,
in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The
following timing differences are not provided for: differences between accumulated depreciation and tax
allowances for the cost of a fixed asset if and when all conditions for retaining the tax allowances have been
met; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures to the extent that it is not probable
that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and the reporting entity is able to control the reversal of the
timing difference. Deferred tax is not recognised on permanent differences, arising because certain types of
income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable for tax or because certain tax charges or allowances are
greater or smaller than the corresponding income or expense.

Deferred tax is provided in respect of the additional tax that will be paid or avoided on differences between the
amount at which an asset (other than goodwill) or liability is recognised in a business combination and the
corresponding amount that can be deducted or assessed for tax. Goodwill is adjusted by the amount of such
deferred tax. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related
difference, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable that they
will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company's functional currency at the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional curreflcy at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit
plans typically define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependant on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit plans - continued

Changes in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service rendered during the period, net
interest on net defined benefit liability, and the cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements during the period are recognised in profit or loss.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments
for unrecognised past-service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to
the terms of the related pension liability.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset is recognised in other comprehensive income.
Group Plans

The company's employees are members of a group wide defined benefit pension plan. The net defined benefit
cost of the plan is charged to participating entities based on the entities share of the scheme assets and liabilities.

“The contributions payable by the participating entities are determined using the same basis.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal
retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the’company has
made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probably that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then
they are discounted to their present value.

Defined contribution plans and other long term employee benefits

For defined contribution plans, the company pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

-Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method as at the acquisition date, which is the date

on which control is transferred to the company.

At the acquisition date, the company recognises goodwill at the acquisition date as:

- the fair value of the consideration (excluding contingent consideration) transferred; plus

- estimated amount of contingent consideration (see below); plus

- the fair value of the equity instruments issued; plus

- directly attributable transaction costs; less

- the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed.

Consideration which is contingent on future events is recognised based on ‘the estimated amount if the
contingent consideration is probable and can be measured reliably. Any subsequent changes to the amount are
treated as an adjustment to the cost of the acquisition.

FRS 102.35 grants certain exemptions from the full requirements of FRS 102 in the transition period. The
company elected not to restate business combinations that took place prior to 29 December 2013. In respect of
acquisitions prior to 29 December 2013, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost, which represents
the amount recorded under old UK GAAP. Intangible assets previously included in goodwill, are not recognised
separately.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impairment excluding stocks, and deferred tax assets

Financial assets (including trade and other debtors)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence
indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's
original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment, an impairment is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company
would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to
be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or
cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit"). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the
purpose of impairment testing is allocated to cash-generating units, or ("CGU") that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, if goodwill cannot be
allocated to individual CGUs or groups of CGUs, the company tests the impairment of goodwill by determining
the recoverable amount of the entity in its entirety, including the integrated acquired operations.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed if and only if the reasons for the impairment have ceased to apply.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued

for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the amount required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date.

Where the company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within its group, the company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes
probable that the company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

Expenses

Operating lease

Payments (excluding costs for services and insurance) made under operating leases are recognised in the profit
and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the payments to the lessor are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation; in which case the payments related to the
structured increases are recognised as incurred. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit and loss over
the term of the lease as an integral part of the total lease expense.

Finance lease

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability using the rate implicit in the lease. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Interest receivable and Interest payable

Interest payable and similar charges include interest payable, finance charges on finance leases recognised in
profit or loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign
exchange losses that are recognised in the profit and loss account (see foreign currency accounting policy).

Other interest receivable and similar income include interest receivable on funds invested and net foreign
exchange gains.

Interest income and interest payable are recognised in profit or loss as they accrue, using the effective interest
method. Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the company's right to receive
payments is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

TURNOVER"

The turnover and loss (2021 - profit) before taxation are attributable to the one principal activity of the
company.

An analysis of turnover by class of business is given below:

2022 2021
£000 £'000 -
Retail 463,000 415,100
Wholesale 6,100 6,900
LNG 5,200 3,200
Autogas 18,300 25,700
Services 19,300 20,900
511,900 471,800
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

4. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

The average number of employees during the year was as follows:

2022 2021
Production 271 201
Selling and distribution 1,331 1,185
Administration and management ‘ 164 161
1,766 1,547
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 80,300 62,700
Social security costs 7,800 6,100
Contributions to defined contribution plans 3,900 3,400
Other pension costs (note 23) 1,100 1,400
93,100 73,600
5. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Directors' remuneration (excluding pension contributions) 1,600 1,500
Highest paid director
- Aggregate remuneration (excluding pension contributions) . 400 400

The total pension contributions paid on behalf of the directors was £105k (2021: £87k), all of which was paid to
the defined contribution scheme (2021: £87k). The total pension contributions paid on behalf of the highest paid
director was £7k (2021:£4k).
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6.

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT

The operating (loss)/profit is stated after charging / (crediting):

2022
: . £000
Profit on sale of fixed assets (3,500)
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangible assets 1,900
Impairment loss on fixed asset investments 3,600
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
Owned assets 34,800
Leased assets 1,700
Rent received less outgoings on land and buildings 500
Operating lease charges: ‘
Plant and machinery 1,300
Other 8,800

2021
£000
(2,200)
1,600

34,600
400
400

1,300
9,000

Included within hire costs for plant and machinery and other assets are short term rentals for which there are no

corresponding future commitments.

Auditor's remuneration:

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Audit of these financial statements 217 171
Amounts receivable by the company's auditor and its associates in
respect of: _
Other assurance services - -
Other assurance services for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to £nil (2021: £nil).
INCOME FROM SHARES IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS .
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Shares in group undertakings 5,400 2,300
Page 27 continued...



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

8. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

2022 2021
’ £'000 £'000
Other financial charges 1,000 900
Interest payable and
similar charges 3,100 - 2,900
4,100 3,800
Interest payable and similar charges comprise:
2022 2021
: . £000 £000
On secured loan from a subsidiary undertaking 2,000 1,900
Payable to the immediate parent company 1,100 1,000
3,100 2,900

Other financial charges amounting to £1 million (2021: £0.9 million) relates to pension interest charges under
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (note 22).

9. TAXATION

Analysis of the tax (credit)/charge
The tax (credit)/charge on the loss for the year was as follows: .

2022 2021

£000 £'000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax ) (3,100) 4,300
Adjustments in respect of »
prior periods . (200) 200
Total current tax (3,300) 4,100
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax in respect of
current year (5,400) 10,500
Deferred tax in respect of :
prior year - (200)
Total deferred tax (5,400) 10,300
Tax on (loss)/profit 8,700) 14,400

Page 28 continued...



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

9. TAXATION - continued

Reconciliation of total tax (credit)/charge included in profit and loss
The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK. The difference is
explained below:

2022 2021
£'000 £000
(Loss)/profit before tax (23,800) 71,800
(Loss)/;iroﬁt‘ multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
of 19% (2021 - 19%) (4,522) 13,642
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 800 600
Income not taxable for tax purposes (1,000) (1,600)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods - (200) , (400)
Difference in tax rate on deferred tax balances (400) 2,200
Utilisation of unrecognised capital losses (200) -
Other tax differences . 22 42) .
Super deduction for capital investment (3,200) -
Total tax (credit)/charge (8,700) 14,400
Tax effects relating to effects of other comprehensive income
2022
Gross Tax Net
£'000 £'000 £'000
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit

scheme (18,300) 4,600 (13,700)

(18,300) 4,600 (13,700)

2021
Gross Tax Net
£000 £'000 £000
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability ) 29,000 (4,100) 24,900
29,000 (4,100) 24,900

The deferred tax charge for both 2022 and 2021 relates to the origination and reversal of timing differences.

The corporation tax payable for the year by the company .has been reduced by £nil million (2021: £0.3 million)
because of the group relief surrendered by fellow group undertakings SHV Energy Holdings UK Limited.

An increase in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 25% (with effect from 1 April 2023) was substantively
enacted on 24 May 2021. Deferred tax has been provided at this rate.

Deferred Tax has been provided at a rate of 25% (2021: hybrid rate of 21.45%) taking into account the timing
of the expected reversal of the deferred tax timing differences.
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10. DIVIDENDS

2022 2021
£000 £'000
Ordinary shares of £1 each
Interim - 10,000
11. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Customer Computer
Goodwill lists software Totals
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
COST
At 1 January 2022 4,200 3,200 27,900 35,300
Additions - - 18,500 18,500
Disposals (3,100) - - (3,100)
At 31 December 2022 1,100 3,200 46,400 50,700
AMORTISATION .
At 1 January 2022 3,900 1,800 .900 ° 6,600
Amortisation for year 200 400 1,300 1,900
Eliminated on disposal (3,100) - - (3,100)
At 31 December 2022 1,000 2,200 2,200 5,400
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2022 100 1,000 44,200 45,300
At 31 December 2021 300 1,400 27,000 28,700

£3.1 million (2021: £0.9 million) of the total goodwill cost relates to acquisitions that have now been fully
amortised, it has therefore been written off and shown as a disposal.

12. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Freehold Short Long
property leasehold leasehold
£000 £'000 £'000
COST .
At 1 January 2022 55,300 3,400 11,800
Additions 5,800 - -
Disposals (400) (500) -
At 31 December 2022 60,700 2,900 11,800
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2022 8,600 2,300 8,600
Charge for year 600 100 200
Eliminated on disposal (100) (400) -
Reclassification/transfer - - -
At 31 December 2022 9,100 2,000 8,800
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2022 51,600 900 3,000
At 31 December 2021 46,700 1,100 3,200
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12.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - continued

Plant,
machinery
and Cylinders
vehicles and tanks Totals

£000 £000 £000
COST
At 1 January 2022 207,900 490,400 768,800
Additions 26,000 40,600 72,400
Disposals (8,000) (15,200) (24,100)
At 31 December 2022 225,900 515,800 ' 817,100
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2022 135,000 308,500 463,000
Charge for year 14,500 21,100 36,500
Eliminated on disposal , (7,900) (14,500) (22,900)
Reclassification/transfer . 100 (100) -
At 31 December 2022 ) 141,700 315,000 476,600
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2022 84,200 200,800 340,500
At 31 December 2021 72,900 181,900 305,800

Plant, machinery and vehicles includes £11.4 million (2021: £8.1 million) net book value of fixtures, fittings and
equipment.

The net book value of tangible fixed assets includes an amount of £58.8 million (2021: £43.3 million) in respect
of assets held under finance leases. This comprises freehold property £32.4 million (2021: £32.4 million), plant,
machinery and vehicles £3.9 million (2021: £4.7 million) and tanks £5.0 million (2021: £6.2 million).

Freehold and leasehold properties were revalued on 31 December 1986 on the basis of depreciated replacement
cost by Fuller Peiser.

" Freehold property includes land at cost of £31.9 million (2021: £31.9 million) which is not depreciated. Fully

depreciated fixed assets which originally cost £272.8 million (2021: £265.2 million) comprises plant, machinery
and vehicles £65.2 million (2021: £68.9 million), cylinders and tanks £189.3 million (2021: £186.8 million) and
£9.5m (2021: £9.5m) of freehold and leasehold property.

Under the historical cost convention the above amounts in respect of properties would be as follows:

Long

Freehold lease Short lease

property property property

- £000 £'000 £000
Cost 60,700 11,800 2,900
Accumulated depreciation (9,100) (8,800) (2,000)
Net book value at 31 December 2022 51,600 3,000 900
Net book value at 31 December 2021 46,700 3,200 ) 1,100
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13. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Shares in
group Other
undertakings  investments Totals
£'000 £'000 £'000

COST
At 1 January 2022 22,700 500 ' 23,200
Disposals - (12,500) - (12,500)
At 31 December 2022 10,200 500 10,700
PROVISIONS
At 1 January 2022 ‘ - 17,600 500 18,100
Provision for year 3,600 - 3,600
Eliminated on disposal (12,500) - (12,500)
At 31 December 2022 ) 8,700 500 9,200
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2022 1,500 - 1,500
At 31 December 2021 5,100 - 5,100

In the opinion of the directors, the value of the company's investments in its subsidiary and joint venture
undertakings is not less than the amount at which they are included in the balance sheet.

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.

The company has the following investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and partnerships.
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' 13. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued

UK undertakings Registered Principal Class of Ownership Ownership
(unlisted) office activity shares 2022 % 2021 %
address held
Budget Gas Ltd Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
Chive Ltd . Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
Chive Fuels Ltd Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
Discount Gas Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
Supplies Ltd
Calor Properties Ltd Note 1 Non-trading Ordinary 100 100
Calor Properties Note 2 Non-trading Ordinary 100 100
Scotland Ltd
Joint ventures and partnerships
Humber LPG Note 3 Dormant Ordinary 50 50
Terminal Ltd
Autogas Ltd ) Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 50 50
Calor Partner Note 2 Leasing Ordinary 33 33
Properties LP partnership

Registered office addresses:

Note 1: Athena House, Athena Drive, Tachbrook Park, Warwick, Warwickshire, CV34 6RL
Note 2: ¢/o Brodies LLP, Capital Square, 58 Morrison Street, Edinburgh, EH3 8BP

Note 3: 7th Floor, 200-202 Aldersgate Street, London, EC1A 4HD

All entities are incorporated in England and Wales except for Calor Properties Scotland Ltd & Calor Partner
Properties LP which are incorporated in Scotland.

During the year Homeheat Gas Company Ltd and Liquefied Petroleum Gas Ltd were dissolved. The net book
value of these investments was nil.

Chive Limited and Chive Fuels Limited were dissolved on 3 January 2023. This has been disclosed as a Post
balance sheet event in note 27.

14. STOCKS
2022 2021
. £000 £'000
Raw materials and consumables . 6,800 5,700
Finished goods and goods for
resale 18,300 18,300
25,100 24,000

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and goods for resale recognised as cost of sales in
the year amounted to £331.2m (2021: £233.2m).

Page 33 + continued...



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

15. DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2022 . 2021

£000 £000

Trade debtors ' 65,400 66,500
Amounts owed by group undertakings 300 100
Amounts owed by parent company 3,500 15,500
Other debtors 4,100 2,300
Tax : 3,300 600
Other financial assets ° 11,500 30,900
Prepayments and accrued income 13,000 25,100
101,100 141,000

The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, are repayable on demand and are non interest bearing.

16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2022 2021

. £000 £000

Bank loans and overdrafts (see note 18) 2,000 4,900
Finance leases (see note 19) . 900 900
Other financial liabilities 34,000 1,300
Trade creditors ‘ 63,800 - 53,700
Amounts owed to group undertakings . 16,800 3,700
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1,500 6,900
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking 3,700 3,500
Social security and other taxes 2,900 2,700
Other creditors : 4,700 9,200
Amounts owed to parent company 5,000 -
Accruals and deferred income 6,600 8,400
141,900 95,200

Accruals and deferred income includes deferred cylinder income of £3.8m (2021: £3.7m).

Amounts owed to group undertakings and subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, are repayable on demand and
are non interest bearing. -

17.  CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE

YEAR
2022 2021

£000 £000
Finance leases (see note 19) 2,900 3,900
Amounts owed to immediate parent company 70,100 69,100
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking 38,500 42,100
Accruals and deferred income 20,300 20,300
. 131,800 135,400
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17.

18.

19.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR - continued
Accruals and deferred income includes deferred cylinder income of £20.3m (2021: £19.8m).

Amounts owed to the immediate parent company are unsecured. In the year a new agreement was entered with a
repayment date of 21st December 2024 (2021: no fixed date). Amounts owed to the immediate parent company
has a blended interest rate of 5.29% (2021: Lloyds Bank base rate plus 1.5%).

In 2012, the Company entered into a twenty year financing arrangement with Calor Properties Limited, a
subsidiary undertaking, receiving £75.3 million which is secured on certain of the Company's assets. Interest is
charged at 6% per annum (2021: 6% per annum). The company is required to pay £6.2m, including interest,
annually up until 2031.This loan due to subsidiary undertaking has a current liability of £3.7m (2021: £3.5m)
and a non-current liability of £38.5m (2021: £42.1m) remaining.

LOANS

An analysis of the maturity of loans is given below:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year or on demand .
Bank overdrafts 2,000 4,900

LEASING AGREEMENTS
Minimum lease payments fall due as follows:

Finance leases

2022 2021
£000 £'000
Net obligations repayable:
Within one year ' 900 900
Between one and five years 2,200 3,900
In more than five years 700
3,800 4,800

Non-cancellable operating

leases
2022 2021
: £000 £000
Within one year 3,800 3,700
Between one and five years 10,200 10,900
In more than five years 27,600 . 25,100
41,600 39,700
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19. LEASING AGREEMENTS - continued

These include operating lease rentals in respect of Land and buildings of £2.3m due within one year (2021:
£2.4m), £7.9m due between one and five years (2021: £8.6m) and £27.6m due in more than five years (2021:
£25.1m).

Loan due to subsidiary undertaking

2022 2021

Net obligations payable
within one year : 3,600 3,500
Between one and five years 17,000 16,000
In more than five years 21,500 26,100
42,100 45,600

20. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the company's interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost.

The fiiture payments to which the company is committed under secured loans are by instalment and are as

follows:
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Creditors falling due in more than one year
Amounts due to immediate parent company 70,100 69,100
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking 38,500 42,100
108,600 111,200
Creditors falling due within one year ,
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking 3,700 3,500
112,300 114,700
Loans
Nominal 2022 2021
Interest rate £000 £'000
Amount due to immediate parent company Note 1 70,100 69,100
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking Note 2 42,200 45,600
112,300 114,700

Note 1 - 5.29 (2021:Lloyds bank rate plus 1.55%)
Note 2 - 6.02% (2021: 6.02%)
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21.  PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

2021

2022
£000 £'000
Deferred tax 8,300 16,000
Other provisions 3,300 4,800
11,600 20,800
Deferred Other
tax provisions .
£'000 £000 -
Balance at 1 January 2022 16,000 4,800
Charge to the profit and loss account during year (7,700) 2,300
Utilised in year - (3,800)
Balance at 31 December 2022 : 8,300 3,300

Other provisions relate to restructuring and redundancy costs of £1.0 million (2021: £2.3 million), trade-related-
claims of £0.7 million (2021:£1.1 million) and smaller provisions totalling £1.6 million (2021: £1.4 million).
These provisions are estimated to be utilised before 31 December 2022. No provision has been made for
taxation on capital gains which may arise on the realisation of properties at book value. Following the rebasing
of capital gains to 1982 values, as contained in the Finance Act 1988, and given the available capital losses
within the group, it is not anticipated that tax on such capital gains would be at a material level.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - 25,000 10,900 25,000 10,900
Fair value adjustments on

derivatives (5,600) - - 6,100 (5,600) 6,100

Pension contribution spread (9,800) - - - (5,800) -
Other (1,300) (1,000) - - (1,300) (1,000)
Tax (assets) / liabilities (16,700) (1,000) 25,000 17,000 8,300 16,000
Net of tax liabilities / (assets) (16,700) (1,000) 25,000 17,000 8,300 16,000

The company expects the deferred tax asset of £5.6m for fair value adjustments on derivatives at 31 December
2022 to fully reverse in 2023.

22. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Allotted, issued and fully paid:
Number: Class: Nominal 2022 2021
value: £000 £000
30,070,456 Ordinary £1 30,100 30,100
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23.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Calor Group Limited (the Company) operates a funded defined benefit arrangement called the Calor Group
Retirement Benefits Plan (the plan). The Plan provides benefits based in final salary and length of service on
retirement, leaving service or death.

On 12 April 2001, the scheme was closed to new entrants. A defined contribution pension scheme was set up by
the Company from 01 February 2001. The amount contributed has been disclosed in note 3.

The plan is subject to the Statutory Funding Objective under the Pensions Act 2004. A valuation of the plan is
carried out at least once every three years to determine whether the Statutory Funding Objective is met. As part
ot the process the company must agree with the Trustee of the Plan the contributions to be paid to address any
shortfall against the Statutory Funding Objective and contributions to pay future accrual of benefits.

The last formal valuation of the Plan was performed by Barnett Waddingham, a firm of independent actuaries,
as at 5 April 2020. The next valuation of the Plan is due as at 5 April 2023, in the event the valuation reveals a
larger deficit than expected the Company may be required to increase contributions above those set out in the
existing Schedule of Contributions. Conversely, if the position is better than expected, it's possible that
contributions may be reduced.

The Company expects to contribute £17.1 million to the Plan during the year to 31 December 2023.

Principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate the Plan's liabilities at the year end were as follows:

2022 2021
Salary increases Nil Nil
Rate of increase in post '97 pensions 3.3% 3.4%
Rate of increase in post '01 pensions 3.1% 3.3%
Rate of increase in post '06 pensions . . 2.4% 2.4%
Discount rate 4.9% 1.8%
Inflation assumption (Retail Price Index) 3.2% 3.4%
Inflation assumption (Customer Price Index) 2.8% 3.0%

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are based on
standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity. The
assumptions are equivalent to expecting a 60-year old to live for a number of years.
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The mortality assumptions used were as follows:

Life expectancy at age 60
Male currently aged 45 Pension less than £20,000 pa

Pension greater than £20,000 pa

Pension less than £8,000 pa
Pension greater than £8,000 pa

Female currently aged 45

Pension less than £20,000 pa
Pension greater than £20,000 pa

Male currently aged 60

Pension less than £8,000 pa
Pension greater than £8,000 pa

Female currently aged 60

The major categories of assets as a percentage of total assets are as follows:
Asset category

Growth assets (including equities, synthetic equity, diversified

growth, multi-strategy and oriented funds)

Bonds and liability hedging

Cash

Asset backed contribution

Explanation of amounts in the financial statements
Fair value of assets
Present value of funded obligations

Deficit
Deferred tax asset

Net defined benefit liability after deferred tax
Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the year

Current service cost (note 4)
Administration costs
Interest on liabilities
Interest on assets

Total

Page 39

2022 2021
254 259
27.6 28.0
26.9 27.2
29.2 29.5
243 24.8
26.5 27.0
25.7 26.0
28.1 28.4

2022 2021
82% 87%
4% 2%
14% 11%
100%
100%

2022 2021

£000 £000

292,600 468,300

(338,100) (507,700)

(45,500) (39,400)

11,300 . 9,000

(34,200) (30,400)

2022 2021

£000 £000

1,100 1,400
500 400
8,900 6,500
(8,300) (5,600)
2,200 2,700
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24.

25.

Remeasurements over the year

2022 2021

£000 £'000
Loss/(gain) on Plan assets in excess of interest 172,500 500
Experience losses/(gains) on defined benefit obligation 5,800 -
(Gains)/losses from changes to demographic assumptions (10,400) 3,000
(Gains)/losses from changes to financial assumptions (149,600) (32,500)
Total remeasurements 18,300 (29,000)
The change in assets over the year was: -

2022 2021

. £000 £'000

Fair value of assets at the beginning of the year 468,300 470,800
Interest on assets 8,300 5,600
Company contributions 14,400 18,500
Benefits paid (25,400) (25,700)
Administration costs (500) (400)
Return on Plan assets less interest (172,500) (500)
Fair value of assets at the end of the year 292,600 468,300
The change in the Defined Benefit Obligation over the year was:

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 507,700 555,000
Current service cost 1,100 1,400
Interest on liabilities 8,900 6,500
Benefits paid (25,400) (25,700)
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation 5,800 -
Changes to demographic assumptions (10,400) 3,000
Changes to financial assumptions (149,600) (32,500)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 338,100 507,700

ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is SHV Holdings N.V., a private company incorporated in
The Netherlands, which is the largest group to prepare consolidated financial statements incorporating the
results of Calor Gas Limited. Copies of the consolidated financial statements for SHV Holdings N.V. may be
obtained from the Company Secretary, SHV Holdings N.V., Rijnkade 1, 3511 LC, Utrecht, The Netherlands.

The smallest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by SHV Energy NV,
incorporated in The Netherlands. Its address is Capellalaan 65, Hoofddorp, the Netherlands.

The consoldiated financial statements of these groups are available to the public and can be obtained from the
above addresses.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has guaranteed the borrowings from certain subsidiary undertakings to third parties. There were
no amounts outstanding at 31 December 2022 (2021: £nil).
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26. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2022 2021
. £'000 £000
Contracted but not provided for in the :
financial statements . 22,984 15,401

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Calor Gas Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Calor Group Limited and ultimately SHV Holdings N.V.
The results of Calor Gas Limited are included in the consolidated financial statements of SHV Holdings N.V.
the largest company in the group to prepare consolidated financial statements. Consequently, the Company is
exempt under the terms of FRS 102 from disclosing details of transactions with SHV Holdmgs N.V. or other
wholly owned entities that were members of the SHV Holding N.V. group.

The company operates a funded defined benefit scheme for Calor employees, the Calor Group Retirement
Benefits Plan (the "Plan"), the assets of which are held in separate Trustee administered funds. Please refer to
Note 23 for details of this.

28. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 3 January 2023, Chive Limited and Chive Fuels lelted were dissolved. The companies had a carrying
value of nil at 31 December 2022 in the group.
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29.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods impacted.

The key judgements and estimates employed in the financial statements are considered below.

Allowances against the carrying amount of inventories

The Company provides against the carrying amount of inventories for inventory lines based on expected
demand for its products to ensure that inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Judgement
is required in respect of assessing future demand.

‘Impairment of goodwill and customer lists

On an annual basis, the Company is required to perform an impairment review to assess whether the carrying
value of goodwill and customer lists are less than its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is based on a
calculation of expected future cash flows, which include estimates of future performance.

Provisions
Provisions are made using the best estimates of future cash flows based on the current level of information
available. Actual cash flows will be dependent on future events.

Depreciation and amortisation

Judgement is required in assessing the useful economic lives of tangible fixed assets and intangible assets. These
assumptions are based on the best estimate of the life of the asset and its reS|dual value at the end of its
economic life.

Deferred taxation

The Company recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon future taxable income and the expected
recoverability of the balance. The estimate will include assumptions regarding future income streams of the
Company and the future movement in corporation tax rates in the respective jurisdictions.

Retirement benefits -

In determining the valuation of defined benefit pension scheme assets and liabilities, a number of key
assumptions, which are largely dependent on factors outside the control of the company, have been made in
relation to:

- Expected return on plan assets

- Inflation rate

- Mortality

- Discount rate

- Salary and pensions increases.

Details of the assumptions used are included in note 22.

Deferred cylinder income
Income relating to the deposits for cylinders is released in line with our customer contracts.

Derivative Financial Instruments .
Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. Fair value is determined through the market value
of a like for like derivative. The market value takes into account the observable forward curves of the relevant
commodity indices and interest rates for discounting purposes. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Page 42



>
-
- |
5
o
H.
o
el
o“
J
N
O
N
N

A9u3N3T AHS |

©




Contents

0S5 Key figures
06 Report of the Executive Board

17 G
17 Consolidated balance sheet as at 3t December 2022

18 Consolidated profit and loss account 2022

19 Consolidated cash flow statement 2022

21 G i of ive income 2022
23 Notes to the 2022 consolidated financial statements

78 ¢ i ial
78 Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

79 Company profit and loss account 2022
79 Notes to the 2022 Company financial statements

89 Other information

89 Provisions in the Articles of Assaciation governing the
appropriation of profit

89 Participations of SHV Energy NV.

©
N

Independent auditor's report

= e

.‘{’g,g 2022 Annual Report SHV Energy | 3

B W ot T e S B




Key figures

In mitons of euro

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Results
Net sales n237 8,602 6,050 7,232 7375
Gross profit 2,060 1898 1783 1905 1763
Operating result 346 368 276 335 247
Net result 187 252 165 237 83
Cash flows
Changes in working capital (6) (216) 97 45 47)
Operational cash flow 493 239 474 437 223
Investment cash flow (481) (358) (348) (444) (594)
Financing cash flow @7 139 (68) (69) 331
Financlal position
Group equity 1,495 1,631 1515 1,487 1,368
Total assets 4,332 4,064 3378 3,654 3.464
Average capital employed ' 2,575 2275 1,920 2,080 1936
Ratlos
Return on average
capital employed ? 13% 16% 14% 16% 13%
Group equity as
percentage of total assets 35% 40% 45% % 0%
Net leverage 3 1.29 0.60 018 0.40 0.22
Debt/equity * 0.81 0.47 0.34 0.46 0.45
Operating margin 3.08% 4.28% 4.57% 4,64% 3.34%
Employees
Average FTEs 16,315 16,269 16,744 17,374 17.065

Comparative information for 2018-2020 has been restated to be consistent with the current presentation.

'Employed is the sum of (In) Tangible fixed assets and Working capital.
20perating result divided by average Capital employed.

INet debt divided by EBITDA.

“Gross debt divided by Group equity.

S$Operating result divided by Net sales.
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Report of the
Executive Board

SHV Energy report for the financial year ended
on 31 December 2022.

SHV Energy at a glance
SHV Energy is a leading global distributor of off-grid energy, including LPG and small-scale
LNG, and is active in the area of sustainable fuels and renewable energy solutions.

Our products and services are predominantly used for heating, cooking and transport. SHV Energy provides these
decentralised, low-carbon and clean energy solutions to 30 million business and residential customers.

SHV Energy consists of a group of business units that operate in over 25 countries across four continents and employ
a total of approx.16,300. It is a wholly owned idiary of SHV, a family ed Our brands include
Calor, Ipragaz, Liquigas, Pinnacle, Primagaz, Xiwei, Supergas, Supergasbras, EM3 and SunSource.

Our products

(Y

Shared purpose and values

SHV Energy is guided by the values and overarching purpose of our parent company: ‘Courage to care for generations
to come’. Together, we forge our own path rather than follow short-term trends. We see change as an opportunity,
not a threat. And we dare to seek new horizons, because they lead to real progress. Above all, our story is about
people with the courage to care for what we do.

Every SHV Energy business unit is committed to better serving the needs of its customers and becoming the energy supplier
of choice in the markets in which it operates. We do this with a decentralised model that includes increasing global
peration and centrally iati

We always place health & safety and sustainability at the heart of our business; providing our employees and partners
with safe, secure, healthy and environmenally friendly working environments.

SHV Energy focuses on sustained growth for the benefit of its sharehold and 1l as well as

the well-being of the communities in which we live and work. To help us achieve this, we cultivate an innovative group
culture.

Vision and mission

Our main goal is to make cleaner and safer energy option ible and to as many and ies as
possible, and we are looking to secure greater supplies to meet i ing demand, We ise the chall of climate
change and help meet it with il ive solutions, ibuting to a more I i Hly friendly future.

We believe that providing cleaner energy ives and ing with ities also
success of our business.

to the long-term

To facilitate the growth, efficiency and sustainability of our brands, we launched our ‘Advancing Energy Together’ strategy
in 2016. The goal is to achieve the full potential of the group and work together globally to identify and solve common
challenges and leverage shared opportunities. We aim to achieve this through a combination of organic growth,

isiti it i ivity imp: and advocacy for, and the promotion of, sustainable fuels.

SHV Energy focuses on three horizons aimed at driving business growth by contributing to the global energy wransition:
1. Qur core LPG and LNG business provides customers with a relatively clean source of energy, both in terms of carbon
footprint and air quality. There are significant opportunities to grow and optimise the core business through
8 1p i i i ion and digit i

2. We plan to increase the share of biobased and sustainable fuels in our portfolio, using our current group and
customer infrastructure;

3. We are focussing on other ways of providing renewable energy solutions to current market segments.

We are currently in the process of reviewing our targets to make sure they are fully aligned with the upcoming Corporate
Susrainability Reporting Directive and other relevant frameworks for our industry.

©

SHV ENERGY

© © © © © ©

CALOR GASPOL IPRAGAZ LIQUIGAS PINNACLE PRIMAGAS

Countries

1 Austria 8 France 15 Malta 22 Sweden

2 Belgium 9 Great Britain 16 Northern ireland 23 Turkey

3 Bosnia and Herzegovina 10 Germany 17 Peopte’s Republic of China 24 United States of America
4 Brazil 1 The Netherlands (HQ) 18 Poland 25 Bangladesh

5 Czech Republic 12 india 19 Republic of Ireland

6 Croatia 13 naty 20 Stovenia

7 Denmark 14 Luxembourg 21 Spain
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Business review

2022 Highlights

SHV Energy performance in 2022 was solid amidst a i it i ‘We achieved

gross profit of EUR 2.1 billion versus EUR 1.9 billion in 2021, and an operating result of EUR 346 million

(2021: EUR 368 million) adjusted for exceptional items and foreign currency impact. The operational result
decreased by EUR 22 million in 2022 compared to 2021 adjusted for exceptional items and foreign currency impact.

SHV Energy was impacted by mild winter weather in the first part of the year and the relatively warm autumn
weather in the second part of the year, which in combination with a significant increase in the price of gas, resulted
in lower volumes in all our Further, the i 'y envi had an impact on our cost base.
Although the cost of gas increased significantly in the first part of the year, mainly because of the war in Ukraine
which resulted in a very volatile commodity markert, realised margins were strong given the relative affordability
of LPG compared to LNG which more than offset the lower volumes and increased cost base.

2022 marks a year in which we made further towards our objectives on solutions and
sustainable fuels. SunSource Energy is now a 100% subsidiary of SHV Energy and successfully commissioned its first
‘open access project, a positive sign for planned growth in the Indian market as a provider of mid-to-large-scale solar
projects for ial and i i EM3 has grown over 25% in revenue since Q1 2022 and continues
to service il with energy iency solutions within the food and beverage and pharmaceutical
sectors. We have established a joint venture with UGI (Dimeta) on the development of rDME, a sustainable molecule
to help de-fossilise the LPG industry. A joint venture established with KEW Technology in 2021 (Circular Fuels Limited)
is continuing to develop a first of a kind demonstration site with production of rDME due in 2023 and a full-scale
production site is aimed to be ready by 2025. To drive innovative solutions in rLPG and eLPG, SHV Energy has

an extensive R&D portfolio and in 2022 ran the second Open Innovation Challenge with specific focus on India.

Two winners have been selected who are supported to develop their early stage promising scientific research on
sustainable bioLPG production.

In parallel, SHV Energy acquired Petromax in Bangladesh, to enter an attractive market and an important opportunity
to transition the people to LPG as a cleaner energy alternative than the more polluting fuels that are still widely in
use, further it made a bolt-on acquisition in Italy to further drive synergies.

In conclusion, 2022 was a successful year for SHV Energy, operationally as well as by realising important strategic steps.

Market trends

Following the recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic in 2021 with real GDP growth of 5.7%, growth in 2022 was
impacted by the chall ic ci resulting in a real GDP growth of 2.9%. In Europe
(EU17), real GDP growth figures were 5.3% and 3.5% for 2021 and 2022, respectively®.

Demand has rebounded from Covid-19 years in 2022. Next to this the significant price increase of natural gas, mainly
as a result of the global tensions following the war in Ukraine, did stimulate industrial demand, replacing natural gas.
In the domestic segment the heightened attention for energy costs and inflation in general had a certain negative
effect on demand.

SSource: https://data.oecd.org, OECD members only
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Financial overview

Financial performance

SHV Energy generated gross profit of EUR 2.1 billion (2021: EUR 1.9 billion}, an increase of 9%. Following the
global economic recovery from the pandemic in 2021, 2022 was impacted by a high inflationary environment and
the war in Ukraine, resulting in an i of of their gas ption. This resulted in
lower sales volumes in all our segments, albeit compensated by higher margins following the relative affordability
of LPG compared to natural gas.

Operating result slightly decreased (mainly as a result of inflationary effect and the acquisition of operations in
Bangladesh and italy driving higher amortisation costs) to EUR 346 million in 2022 from EUR 368 million in 2021,
although volumes were 3% lower in 2022 compared to 2021. Further, EBITDA in 2022 amounted to EUR 622 million,
compared to EUR 545 million in 2021, this increase is the result of improved gross profit, partly offset by higher
operating expenses. As a result of its solid operational performance, SHV Energy achieved a net profit of EUR 187
million in 2022 (2021: EUR 252 million), including a negative impact of fair value changes in financial derivatives
amounting to EUR 6 million.

Capital expenditures
Capital expenditure was EUR 539 million in 2022 (2021: EUR 347 million), driven by ongoing replacement capital
expenditure (which is approximately 60% of the total capital expenditures in 2022), growth investments and

By applying a i k, the group allocates investments to the most profitable
geographies and segments.

The group continues to invest in innovative solutions including new services, business models, processes and
technologies. In 2022, SHV Energy continued to roll out digital solutions across business units to improve
efficiency and customer experience.

Working capital
The working capital position of the group decreased in 2022 by EUR 37 million to EUR 379 million, driven by higher

sales prices and gas prices in ination with i rgin-calls on our derivatives, partially offset by a focus
on cash collection and payables.

Liquidity and solvency

On 31 December 2022, SHV Energy’s cash position was EUR 352 million (2021: EUR 389 million). The group’s net
debt position stood at EUR 841 million (2021: EUR 358 million), the increase in net debt is mainly driven by the
yearly dividend payment to our shareholder (EUR: 252 million in 2022) in combination with acquisitions during
the year (| ladesh and an add-on isition in Italy). Operating cash flow was EUR 493 million. Together with
an investment cash outflow of EUR 481 million, this resulted in a free cash flow of EUR 12 million. With a financing
cash (out) flow of EUR 27 million, the net cash (out) flow was EUR 15 million. Early 2023, we have initiated

a performance improvement program on cashflow that aims to generate additional cashflow in the future.

Financing

In 2022, SHV Energy paid out EUR 252 million in dividends to its shareholder. The group took up net external
financing of EUR 78 million in total, to refinance liquidity needs and provide local financing to our newly acquired
operations in Bangladesh. Net financial inflow from intercompany financing amounted to EUR 444 million.
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Risks and risk management

Sound risk management policies are key to sustainable business growth. Our proactive management of critical risk
factors and decisi g ing risk/reward trade-offs increases the likelihood of achieving our
strategic objectives.

n 2022, considerable attention was paid to updating our enterprise-wide risk assessment at Group level, and

within each Business Unit, leading to the redefinition of critical risk areas. For the majority of these key risk areas,

we concluded that these risks are mitigated by the company’s current business methods and controls. For the risk

areas which are above our risk appetite, risk mitigation actions have been put in place to reduce the risk to an

acceptxble level. Risk owners have been appointed for all critical risk areas and are responsible for the identification,
and ion of action plans to ensure that risks are effectively managed and kept within

desired levels.

Strategic risk

Geopolitical and macro-economic

‘Working globally means litical OF Macro- ic events can hamper our business continuity
and growth. SHV Energy carefully anticipates, monitors, and evaluates these risks and takes appropriate actions
when necessary. SHV Energy’s financial performance is influenced by the general economic and political climate and,
more specifically, on the dynamics in the oil and gas, ical, and power ion sectors. Cyclical risks are
mitigated by having a reliable and ised supply and risk isation in place.

Market and competition

There is a risk that competitors’ actions could adversely impact SHV Energy’s long-term market share and financial
performance. This impact is mitigated by the group’s global presence, its focus on biofuels and its diversification into
renewable energy. All these factors add to our ability to react effectively to market opportunities, and with our strong
financial position, enable the group to develop new business opportunities and partnerships.

Governance

To meet its strategic objectives, SHV Energy and, when y, amends its structure,
including systems and processes. Because of the group’s decentralised governance structure, this is often done at
alocal level to adapt to the local business environment while, at the same time, leveraging our global experience.

i of our it i fuels)
SHV Energy has a strategic ambition to offer step by step more sustainable and non-fossil energy solutions to its customers.
This will be achieved by i ing available distribution volumes of i fuels through i ing supply in the

short term and developing new sources of supply and products through investment and research and development in the
medium to long term. We manage this ambition and the corresponding risks through the KPIs we have set in our delivery
and development agenda and report on our sustainability progress in our annual sustainability report.

ion of
In 2021, SHV Energy acquired a majority share in SunSource. A detailed roadmap, supervised by central teams, was
created to ensure a smooth integration with the Group. Specific Risk Analysis using the SHV Energy harmonised
thodols and ion Audit were d in 2022. ion is ongoing, with a stringent
monitoring of the action plans, and strengthening of the local teams and governance. In 2023, the adaptation of
SHV Energy’s Business Support Framework to a specific and fit-for-purpose Internal Control framework, will be realised.

In 2022, SHV Energy acquired the ining shares in and further h its position in Asia

with the isition of Petromax in A detailed roadmap, supervised by central teams and defined

in collaboration with the Group Internal Audit, was created to ensure a smooth integration within the Group.

An Integration Audit was performed in January 2023, followed by a Risk Analysis, and complemented at a later stage
with a roll out of the SHV Energy Business Support Framework (‘BSF").
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Operational risk

People risk
For our operations to be successful, we need people with the right ifications and
SHV Energy invests in an ive working envil and provides with opportunities to develop

their talents and reach their highest potential. We analyse and follow the best practices in the market in order
to retain our talents. When possible or relevant, we adopt labour practices ahead of them becoming mandatory.
This ensures we deploy our workforce optimally, while at the same time recognising, managing and valuing our
cultural differences.

ICT and cybersecurity risks

Inadequate ICT, poor information and failure to protect data and systems could affecr
information security, resilience, and data protection. This could lead to hy access to data,

of systems and processes, and business disruption, resulting in financial and reputational damage. To mitigate
these risks, SHV Energy set up a comprehensive Information Security framework and implemented a global
Security Operations Centre (SOC) in 2020 for continuous global monitoring of our IT systems against cyber threats.
The framework incorporates essential controls and ing business inuity, information security
analyses, data loss prevention, and positions ICT as a strategic enabler throughout the group.

Two global projects began in January 2022 to further improve ICT processes and information security and are
being rolled-out through the Group. The first focuses on adding operational technology assets in plants and

terminals into the scope of SOC for vu ili and incident di ion and response. The second
project is rhe roll-out of a global Access and Identity Managemem (AIM) service covering identity governance
and ion, access and privileged access

Health and Safety risk

‘Within SHV Energy, it is a core belief that “Nothing Is So Urgent Or Important That It Cannot Be Done Safely”.
Our ultimate goal is for every employee and contractor to go home safe and well at the end of their working shift,
and that no emp or customer is y affected by our product anywhere in the value and
delivery chains. To help us achieve our ultimate goal, SHV Energy has introduced a set of risk-based minimum
Health and Safety standards to help deliver the same high level of ional discipli of i
location, differences in legislation or H&S maturity. By adopting this risk-based approach to H&S management,
it ensures that the H&S risks are identified, assessed and that adequate resources are focused to the areas of
highest risk.

Fraud risk

Current global economic environment, and the increasing activity of the Company in emerging countries lead to
increased risk of fraud. SHV Energy has a zero-tolerance policy on fraud and has various controls and prevention
programmes in place. In addition, SHV Energy has protocols in place that aim to identify, investigate, and report on
actual or suspected fraud occurrences on a timely basis. Where needed, corrective action is taken to prevent recurrence.

Climate change

Mitigating the impact of climate change on our operations, Global warming and its consequences like milder winters
and extreme weather events such as flooding can disrupt our supply chain and impact demand for our products. In
2022, we began defining specific actions we can take to mitigate the impact of climate change on our day-to-day
operations and ensure we are as well-prepared as possible. It also includes the company’s efforts to quantify, report
and reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions arising from their operations. At SHV Energy, this entails the GHG
emissions from our own and outsourced operation.
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Financial risk

SHV Energy is exposed to various types of financial risk, which we categorise as market risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in commodity prices, foreign currency exchange
rates or interest rates. in various ies and ongoing ing and financing activities mean

that SHV Energy is exposed to market risk for our business operations. Loss exposure can be assessed from the
perspective of adverse changes in fair values, cash flows and future eamnings. SHV Energy has established policies,
procedures, and processes to govern the management of market risks and the use of financial derivative instruments
to manage exposure to such risks.

Commodity risk

As adistributor of LPG to end customers in various market segments, the group is exposed to fluctuations in global
energy prices in the supply chain and distribution network, mainly butane and propane (C3 and C4). Wherever
possible, a commercial pricing strategy is used to seek a natural hedge to these fluctuations. In addition, financial
derivative instruments are used to hedge purchase prices and stock valuations.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from ion and ion exposure. i ion exposure, the group
experiences fluctuations in its revenues, costs, and expenses solely due to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates. Foreign exch risk ori from in foreign ies or foreign currency loans for liquidity
purposes. This risk is mitigated by the "natural hedge" created by reflecting foreign exchange rate fluctuations in
product sales prices. Derivative financial instruments are also used to hedge residual foreign exchange risk.

Translation exposure arises from group i in Euro group ies. The funding structure of our
subsidiaries partly mitigates the translation exposure of our foreign currency-based subsidiaries. SHV Energy aims
to fund its subsidiaries in its functional currency and puts in place a local funding structure where exchange
controls and withholding taxes may inhibit our ability to service internal group debt or distribute profits generated.
This funding structure additionally aims to hedge our exposure to (hyper)inflation, particularly in our emerging
market operations.

Interest rate risk

SHV Energy makes limited use of debt financing and prefers to do so on a fixed interest basis, meaning exposure to
floating interest rate risk is low.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to a potential event in which an entity may be unable to secure the cash required to meet its
short-or medium-term obligations. Several policies are in place to manage this risk, and critical control indicators
are in place to monitor actual performance. Explicit attention is paid to credit management, payment terms and
the timeliness of customer invoicing. SHV Energy monitors its cash flow forecast closely to ensure that financial
obligations to its creditors are met and stay within the limits of committed loan covenants. Several sources of
additional liquidity are available during times of lower liquidity in the business due to seasonality. These include
in-house bank facilities with SHV Holdings and external credit lines.

Internal Controf

The SHV Energy Business Support Framework (BSF) is an important driver for managing risks and for ensuring
within the isation. The BSF defines key controls that are implemented throughout the

organisation and tested periodically against the BSF criteria for good control practices. As such, the BSF is used

to measure our internal control performance and to identify and follow up on improvement areas. The BSF is

updated annually to reflect changes in business operations and risk areas.

The Board is ible for i i ing and itoring the internal control system as
part of wider enterprise risk management. This system has been designed to control significant risks while seeking
to realise operational and financial objectives. It also ensures i with appli laws and
However, such a system cannot provide absolute assurance that business objectives will be achieved, nor can it
prevent all material errors, loss, fraud or i with laws and
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Ethics & Compliance

SHV Energy is active in various businesses in many countries and must deal with a wide range of laws and regulations.
Across our organisation, compliance with external and internal rules is mandarory. The SHV Energy code of conduct,
supplier code, policies, manuals and guidelines are available in the SHV Energy Policy House, a web-based repository.

A risk assessment is performed on a yearly basis, both at Group level as well as by the Business Units. The Business
Support Framework, a periodical assessment of the key controls in SHV Energy, is a self-evaluation that helps to
substantiate and demonstrate an adequate level of being ‘in-control'. In addition, SHV Energy performs validation
sessions with all businesses to monitor the xmplememauon of and adherence to the Ethics & Compliance rules.
Both processes add value by identifyi for i
issues such as fraud, corruption and avoidable losses.

, helping the business to grow, and preventing

Our receive 'y Ethics & C it training to create awareness of relevant topics, including but
not limited to the code of conduct, anti-bribery & corruption, competition law, trade sanctions & trade controls and
privacy. To manage risks related to its business partners, SHV Energy has a third-party due diligence programme

in place. The Ethics & Compliance function provides advice and guidance across the group and is involved in all
Mergers & Acquisitions projects.

To enable employees to report any concerns on (alleged) infringements of our code of conduct or any of our policies,
we have a Speak Up process, including a Speak Up helpline (whistle-blower tool). All reports to the helpline are
treated ially by the Ethics & Compli function. We do not tolerate any retaliation against anyone who
reports in good faith a potential violation of our code, our policies, or the law.

Health & Safety (H&S)

At SHV Energy we strive to ensure a healthy and safe working environment for all our employees, visitors, and
contractors. At the core of our values, we aim for zero fatalities, injuries, or occupational illnesses to our employees
and society. This applies to our workplace, the environments in which we operate, our customers, and our suppliers.

During 2022, SHV Energy continued to develop, roll out and improve our Safe Systems of Work aligned to deliver
the improvements identified in the overall H&S Strategic Plan and the six H&S Engines for Change. The Operational
Discipline and Process Safety programme was extended to include circa 100 filling plants in addmon to the 21 terminals
added originally in 2021. Our Visible Felt Leadershi oo} to di inour
health & safety culture during 2022, and further assessment will be conducted in 2023 and beyond.

The cultural change programme (CARE), now in its second year of roll out, is also starting to show benefits in

il and imp! of H&S the isation. With the impact of
Covid-19 decreasing, but still present, we have been able to re-invigorate our occupation health activities where
we have identified and commenced rolling out several manual handling improvement programmes. We have also
identified the need to enhance and accelerate our colleague mental health and wellbeing support which we look
forward to introducing early 2023. An additional benefit of the ion of Covid-19 travel restrictions is that we
have now commenced the cross-business-unit audits and this is allowing for better knowledge sharing and transfer
of best practices.

Coming to the end of the second full year of our strategic H&S roadmap, we are seeing sustainable improvements
in the lagging rates in both Lost Time Injuries (LTTs) and Total Recordable Cases (TRC) with reductions of 24% and
18% respectively during 2022, and approx. 45% and 41% reduction overall since 2019.
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Environment

2022 was another significant year for SHV Energy’s work on sustaining the environment.

Last year one of our biggest projects was our Global Sustainability Innovation Challenge. The goal of the challenge is
to tap innovative ideas from start-ups and scale-ups that will help the company achieve its ambitious environmental
targets. After receiving over 50 applicants from around the world, 6 finalists were selected. They presented the most
promising and practical solutions for measuring and reducing CO, emissions in three areas: efficient transportation
& logistics, smart facilities and decision support systems. The winners have earned a fully paid pilot project with
SHV Energy, including access to its global network and collaboration opportunities across the business. The projects
will be piloted through 2023 and their potential impact on our footprint will be measured.

We also built on the Global Awareness Campaign which was launched back in 2020. In 2022 we hosted severai
webinars with key business functions and the many ways our colleagues contribute to SHV Energy’s sustainability

P i and k & sales were involved and brought further awareness to the
organisation on how we can collectively contribute to lowering our CO, emissions.

proving our ilities in impact was also a key point of attention in 2022. We have built a data
validation tool with Adaptfy, which helps our business units to validate their CO, figures. We also integrated
SunSource and EM3 as new entities and included bioLNG as a new energy carrier in our CO, reporting framework.

Data availability and accuracy will remain an important topic in 2023 as we prepare the integration of new entities
(e.g. ladesh) and our for the i ion on inabili ing. The EU Taxonomy,
the EU Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive and the update to the GRI Standards that we adhere to in our
reporting will result in a changed approach of our sustainability report.

To respond to these regulatory challenges, the ESG project task force was created, and important steps have
been given towards it with the new i for climate di in close ion with
SHV Holdings and Risk Management,

Innovation

At SHV Energy, innovation is powered by our purpose, and we aim to generate impact for our people, planet,
and performance.

In 2022, we continued to put people at the heart of what we do, i ing our
across several BUs and delivering new solutions to identify and reduce hazardous movements in our filling plants.

Innovation also made an impact in our performance like the examples from Brazil, where visual technologies
‘were implemented to automatically count and read the tare of cylinders, improving efficiency in filling plants.
Advanced analytics models were developed leading to better forecasting and optimisation of asset distribution
across plants, i i ilability and ing the need for purchase of new cylinders.

Innovation als some of the related to our planet, by expanding our open innovation program
with focus on finding solutions to reduce our scope 1 & 2 CO, emissions. We d coll: with several
start-ups developing disruptive solutions such as powering diesel trucks with LPG or even solar energy.
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Human capital

Engaging empk focussing on peopl & talent and ing an inclusive culture to
drive growth were important priorities for 2022. To remain a future proof organisation, SHV Energy keeps focusing on
developing new capabilities and takes initiative to re-skill its workforce.

With density acquisitions and the market entry to Bangladesh, SHV Energy welcomed close to 1,000 new employees.
The adjusted SHV Leadership Model has been launched and within the Head Office an innovative people review
process is i d, including a bott p talent and across the isation various i
development programmes have been offered. Further, all the Business Units made an important step forward to
implement Well Being programmes.

To be aligned with our Energy Transition strategy, five HR strategic Pillars are defined followed by four strategic
HR Projects:

* Culture: foster a culture and level that creates

« Talent Management: further Develop a global leadership pipeline that meets current and future business needs;

* Learning and Development: promote a disciplined approach that enhances how we attract, develop, and retain talent;
* Organisational effectiveness: keep high performing izations that yield itive adh in the future;

* Up-skill HR community: improve HR capabilities to drive business growth.

Four Strategic HR Projects:

* Evolving Leadership;

* Future Capabilities;

* Employee Experience;

* Digital Workplace.
As a result of our ambition to have diverse and inclusive teams the SHV Energy Management Board has members with
four different lities and a female ion of 29% (2 out of 7 Board Members). Companywide, 16 out of
20 business unit management teams now comprise two or more nationalities. In 2022, we saw a slight increase in the

number of women in management teams and senior functional roles to 23%. Over the year we had 33 job rotations on
ABC Level, 76% of vacancies were filled by candidates from within SHV.

Outlook for 2023

The volatility of the financial markets, driven by increased interest rates and inflationary pressure in combination with
the continued war in Ukraine and its effect on economy and global commodity prices, will continue to impact our
operations. SHV Energy is actively managing high LPG prices and price volatility, protecting its margins. Based on
current information, no major shocks to LPG supply for SHV Energy are expected. Notwithstanding the volatility of
these external factors and possible selective economic downturns, SHV Energy expects that most of our markets and

will show resili in their per!
In parallel, our focus on efficiency, i ing the ongoing digitisation of business should to a certain extent
counter inflationary pressure. We will continue to execute our strategy to lead de-fossilisation of the LPG industry
via the development of rDME, together with our ical partner KEW Tech and scale up

rDME volumes via our joint venture with UGIL.

Hoofddorp, 12 May 2023
Executive Board

A.A. Graber - CEO

L.M. van der wal - CFO
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Consolidated financial
statements

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2022 (Before profit appropriation)

In millions of euro

Note 2022 2021
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 3 LB438 e hoB39

Financial fixed assets 4 2223

24183 2051
Current assets
Inventories 5 428.7 4281
Derivative financial instruments 939 145)
Trade and other receivables 6 1023.4 10439
Securities 7 155 S .
Cash and cash equivalents 8 3524 389.0
1913.9 2.012.5
4,332.2 4,063.6
—_—
Group equity
Shareholder’s equity 9 1,469.0 1,601.2
Minority interests 10 263 299
1,495.3 1,631.1
Provisions n 4613
Non-current liabilities 2
Derivative financial instruments 13 64.8
Current liabilities 3 1,725.2

4,332.2

The notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated profit and loss account 2022

In millions of euro

Note 2022 2021

Net sales 16 1.236.6 8,601.9
Cost of raw materials 7 (9159.3) (6.675.8)
and consumables
Cost of outsourced wark
and cther costs 075 @
Third party costs (9176.8) (6.703.5)
Salaries and wages 8 (632.4) (534.0)
Other operating expenses 9 (799.9) (746.1)
Amortisation and depreciation 20 (281.1) (250.4)
Total operating expenses (1.713.4) (1.530.6)
Operating result 21 346.4 3678
(ncome from investments
in affiliates before tax a8 53
Ir_\tgrest_ income and 22 348 219
similar income
Ir}tgrest expenses and 23 (77.4) (36.7)
similar charges

(44.4) (D)
Result before tax 3020 3583
Tax on result 24 (104.8) (99.9)

(104.8) (99.9)
Result after tax 197.2 258.4
Minority interests (10.0) (6.4)
Net result 187.2 252.0

The notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement 2022

In millions of euro

Note 2022 2021
Operating result 346.4 367.8
Adjusted for:
Amortisation and depreciation 2,3 2756 2473
Other value adjustments 23 58 31
Result on disposals of
consolidated companies ! Q@0 &N
Result on disposals of fixed assets 3 (17.9) (24.5)
Changes in provisions. 108 (47.0)
2723 1722

Cash flow from business operations
before changes in working capital 618.7 5400
Changes in:
Inventories 40 (193.6)
Trade receivables 6.0 (271.3)
Trade payables (D] 2341
Other receivables, payables
and accruals 104 150
Changes in working capitat 25 (58) (215.8)
Net interest and other financial (60.4) (282)
results paid and received
Dividends received from
investments in affiliates 4 2 39
Net taxes paid and received (78.0) (67.2)
Other changes 16.5 6.7

(119.8) (84.8)
Cash flow from operating activities 4931 239.4
Investments in:
Intangible fixed assets 2 (1.3) (77.8)
Tangible fixed assets 3 (392.3) (3681)
Acquisition of Group companies,
net of cash acquired 035 asn
Affiliates, trade investments and
other financial fixed assets 4 337 (16.8)
Disposals of:
Tangible fixed assets 3 451 62.5
Divestment of Group companies,
net of cash disposed 20 491
Affiliates, trade investments
and other financial fixed assets ¢ 229 66
Cash flow from investing activities (480.8) (357.6)

Continued on page 20
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Consolidated cash flow Consolidated statement of

statement 2022 ... comprehensive income 2022
In millions of euro In millions of euro
Note 2022 2021 Note 2022 2021
Free cash flow 123 (18.2) Net resuit 187.2 252.0

Repayment of non-current Translation differences

borrowings 2 (8D (242 on foreign operations (14.0) 82
Take-up of non-current debt 2 156 122.4 Cash flow hedges

) including taxes (M6.9) 428
Net change in non-current debt 412 1220 251 -
to/from shareholder/participants i 3 - Movement in put/call options 255 @74

for acquisitions i .
Changes in debts to 373 64.4 -
financial institutions ) Acquisition of (minority) interests (1.6 1.0
Changes in in-house bank Monetary and inflation correction 39.6 -
accounts (debit balances) 2469 789
Margin calls paid and received (166.6) 43.3 Total of items recognised
. PR directly in shareholder’s equity 9,35 (67.4) 24.6
Capital changes by minority -
10 26 ©n

shareholiders
Acquisition of minority interest 9,10 (5.9) - Comprehensive income 276.6
Sfi\:f:gisai:nto shareholder 35 (252.0) (164.6)

pany The notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Dividend paid to minority
shareholders 0 a2 58)
Cash flow from
financing activitles (27.4) 1394
Net cash flow 1s.1) 2.2
Changes in investment
in securities 7 @n 35
Exchange rate and translation
differences 12.4) 6)
Changes in cash and (36.6) 221

cash equivalents

The notes 1 to 29 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Making cleaner and safer energy
options available to our residential
and commercial customers.

Notes to the 2022 consolidated
financial statements

General

Reporting entity and relationship with parent company

is a limited liability company under Dutch law and is registered under number
30098428 in the Trade Register. The head office is located at Capellalaan 65,

SHV ENERGY  Hoofddorp, the Netherlands.

@ SHV Energy N.V., (‘SHVE’ or ‘the Company’), having its legal address in Utrecht,

All shares of the Company are held by SHV Nederland B.V. (Utrecht). The ultimate
parent company of SHVE is SHV Holdings N.V. registered in Bonaire. The financial
‘ H v information of the Company is included in the consolidated financial statements of

SHV Holdings N.V.

These financial statements contain the financial information of both the Company and the consolidated companies
of the Company (‘the Group’}).

The operational activities are in the areas of energy distribution and marketing. The Group provides clean,
independent energy to millions of for th of different icati Our major products are
LPG, LNG and BioLPG, all of which can be used without a centralised gas grid infrastructure. The Group currently
operates across four continents: North and South America, Asia and Europe.

Financial reporting period

These financial statements cover the year 2022, which ended at the balance sheet date of 31 December 2022.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company are part of the statutory financial statements of the
Company and have been prepared in accordance with Title 9, Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

The accounting policies applied for measurement of assets and liabilities and determination of results are based
on the historical cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the further accounting principles.

Application of Section 402, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

The financia) information of the Company is included in the consolidated financial statements. For this reason,
in accordance with Section 402, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, the separate profit and loss account of the
Company exclusively states the share of the result of participating interests after tax and the other income and
expenses after tax.

Going concern

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis of the going concern assumption.
We have performed a going concern and have not identified any signi going concern risks.
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Health & Safety and sustainability are
at the heart of the business, providing
employees and partners with a secure,
safe and environmentally friendly
environment.

®

Accounting policies for the measurement
of assets and liabilities and the determination
of the result

General
Assets and liabilities are measured at historical cost, unless otherwise stated.

An asset is recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits attributable to
the asset will flow to the Company, and the asset has a cost price or value that can be measured reliably. Assets that are
not recognised in the balance sheet are considered as off-balance sheet assets.

Aliability is recognised in the balance sheet when it is expected that the settlement of an existing obligation will resuly
in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, and the amount necessary to settle this obligation can be
measured reliably. Provisions are included in the liabilities of the Company. Liabilities that are not recognised in the
balance sheet are considered as off-balance sheet liabilities.

An asset or liability that is recognised in the balance sheet, remains recognised on the balance sheet if a transaction
(with respect to the asset or liability) does not lead to a major change in the economic reality with respect to the asset
or liability. Such transactions will not result in the recognition of results. When assessing whether there is a significant
change in the ic ci the ic benefits and risks that are likely to occur in practice are taken into
account. Benefits and risks that are not reasonably expected to occur, are not taken into account in this assessment.

If assets are recognised of which the Company does not have the legal ownership, this fact is disclosed.

An asset or liability is no longer recognised in the balance sheet, and thus derecognised, when a transaction results
in all or substantially all rights to economic benefits, and all or substantially all of the risks related to the asset or
liability, being transferred to a third party. In such cases, the results of the transaction are directly recognised in the
profit and loss account, taking into account any provisions related to the

All types of income, including trade revenues, financial income and various gains, are recognised in the profit and loss
account when an increase in future economic potential related to an increase in an asset or a decrease of liability arises
of which the size can be measured reliably. Expenses are recognised when a decrease in the economic potential related
to adecrease in an asset or an increase of a liability arises of which the size can be measured with sufficient reliability.

All types of income and expenses are allocated to the respective period to which they relate. Trade revenues are
recognised when the Company has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer.

Hyperinflation

The income and expenses of foreign ions in il i y ies are tothe ional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Prior to translating the financial statements of foreign
ions in inflationary ies, their financial statements are restated to account for changes in the local

inflation indices. The adjustment is based on relevant price indices at the reporting date. In case of hyperinflationary
economies, the financial statements are adjusted for the effects of changing prices of local currency. The translation to
the functional currency is recorded in equity and the restatement for changes in local inflation indices is recorded in
the of income. Hyperi ion is for the ions in Turkey.

Functional and presentation currency
Items of each of the Group entities included in these i financial are initially using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

The i financial arep d in euro (‘EUR’), which is the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts have been presented in millions.
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Use of estimates

In preparing these financial has made j estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of the i incij and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates,

and underlying ions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

The following accounting policies are, in the opinion of management, the most critical in preparing these financial
and require j i and i

Valuation of intangible and tangible fixed assets:
* Tangible and intangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable;

« The discount rate and projected free cash flow are the inherent estimates and ions used
in assessing whether an impairment charge should be recognised. Should the actual performance of the
h units become ially worse compared to the estimates, possible impairment losses could arise;

* Estimates significantly impact goodwill and other isition related i il The d ination of fair
values of acquired identif i ibles is based on an of future cash flows. The following estimates
and assumptions are used in determining the fair values of acquired identifiable intangible assets: the WACC,
expected long-term revenues and margin levels, royalty and attrition rate, contributory assets charges, remaining
useful life expectations and others.

Valuation of deferred tax assets:

* The Group recognises deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses, deductible temporary differences or tax
credits only to the extent that there is convincing evidence within the relevant fiscal unit that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to compensate;

* Regarding recognised deferred tax assets arising from net operating losses, management believes, based upon the
level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income, that sufficient future tax profits will
be available to utilise these operating losses;

* Regarding unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from net operating losses, management believes, based upon
the level of historical taxable income and projections for the future taxable income, it is more likely than not that
no future tax profits will be available that can be utilised on short notice. As a consequence, management did not
recognise a deferred tax asset for these operating losses.

Valuation of provision for doubtful receivables:

* Provisions are made for doubtful receivables based on management's estimate of the prospect of recovering the
debt. Where management has determined that the recovery of the debt is doubtful, the amount is provided for.

Valuation of derivative financial instruments:

« Estimation of the fair value of a derivative financial i involves di ing of future cash flows including
credit and liquidity surcharges which involves management judgement.

Valuation of provisions:

* The amounts recognised as a provision are management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date. This is the amount management expects to pay to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date or to transfer it to a third party at that time. Classification and discounting
period of provisions for deposits is estimated based on historical pattern of turnover of underlying assets.
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Consolidation principles
The consolidated financial statements include the separate financial statements of:
* SHV Energy N.V;

* Companies over which the Company has control or of which it conducts the central management.

Subsidiaries are participating interests in which the Company (and/or one or more of its subsidiaries) can exercise
more than half of the voting rights in the general meeting or can appoint or dismiss more than half of the managing
directors or supervisory directors.

Group companies are participating interests in which the Company has a majority interest, or in which it can exercise
decisive influence (control) by other means. In assessing whether the Company has control, potential voting rights are
considered that can be exercised in such a way that they will provide the Company with more or less influence.

Newly acquired participating interests are i as from the date that decisive influence (control) can be
exercised. Disposed icipating interests are i until the date of loss of this influence.

The Company’s group companies are listed on pages 89-91.

Business combinations
Abusiness combination is a transaction whereby the Group obtains control over the assets and liabilities and the
activities of the acquired party.

Business combinations are accounted for using the 'purchase accounting’ method on the date that control is

d to the Group (the isition date). The t ion price is the cash i or equi agreed as
part of the acquisition, or the fair value of the i i atthe isition date. Tl ion costs that
are directly attril to the business ination are added to the ion price. In case of deferred payment of

hy i ion, the ion price is the di value of th i i

The Group recognises the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree at the acquisition date. These assets and
liabilities are recognised individually at their fair values, provided that it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the Group (for assets) or settlement will result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
(for liabilities), and the fair value of all these can be measured reliably.

Refer to the accounting policy under the heading ‘Intangible fixed assets’ for the recognition of positive or negative
goodwill resulting from a business combination.

An agreed possible adjustment to the purchase price that is contingent on future events is included in the purchase
price if the adjustment is probable and the amount can be measured reliably. It is also possible that a previous estimate
of the adjustment to the purchase price must be revised. Such adjustments to the purchase price, that are recorded as
changes in estimates, will also result in an adjustment to (positive or negative) goodwill. The adjusted goodwill is
amortised prospectively from the date of the adjustment of the purchase price. Comparative figures are not adjusted.
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Business combinations under common control
A business combination under common control is a business combination of an entity thac is under common
control with the acquirer. Such business combinations are also referred to as common control transactions.

Business combinations under common control are accounted for using the 'pooling of interests' method.

Applying this method, the assets and liabilities of the combining entities, as well as their income and expenses, for
the period in which the combination has occurred and for the comparative period disclosed are included in the
financial statements of the combined entity as if they had been bined from the beginning of the

period. The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities are combined, no revaluation to fair value takes place.
Any differences between the accounting policies of the combined entities are unified through a change in accounting
policies applied retrospectively.

In the situation that the date of merger is not the date of the start of the reporting period, the results of the acquired

entity are recognised in the profit and loss account of the acquiring entity as from beginning of that reporting period.

Any difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued as a result of the combination (plus any
additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets) and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities
underlying the share capital acquired, is recognised in share premium.

Consolidation method
The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform ing policies for the and
determination of the result of the Group.

In the i d financial liabilities, and ions are
eliminated. Also, the results on ions between group ies are elimi d to the extent that the results
are not realised through transactions with third parties outside the Group and no impairment }oss is applicable.

For a transaction whereby the Company has a less than a 100% interest in the selling group company, the elimination
from the Group result is allocated pro rata to the minority interest based on the interest of the minority in the selling

Group company.

and group ies are i d in full, whereby minority interest is presented separately
within Group equity. If losses to be allocated to the minority interest exceed the minority interest within equity of
the idated entity, the diffe including any further losses, is fully charged to the majority shareholder,

except to the extent that the minority shareholder has the obligation to, and is able to, compensate for the losses.
The minority interest in the result is deducted from the Group result on a separate line item in the consolidated
profit and loss account.

The financial of: idiaries and group ies are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control can be exercised until the date that control ceases.
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Principles for the translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies

At initial iti i i in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency
of the Group companies at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities i in foreign ies are at the balance sheet date into the
currency at the exch rate iling on that date. resulting from the settlement

of monetary items or resulting from the translation of monetary items denominated in foreign currency, are recognised

in profit and loss in the period in which the exch: di arise. from this are exch diffe

on monetary items that are part of a net investment in a foreign operation.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currency and measured based on historical cost
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at current value are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates that apply when the current value is determined.
Exchange rate differences that arise from this translation are directly recognised in equity as part of the
revaluation reserve.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities that are part of the net investment in a foreign operation (including goodwill and fair value
d ) are into the i currency of the Company at the exchange rate prevailing at the

balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of such a foreign operation are lated into the i currency

of the Company at the average exchange rate for the year. Currency translation differences are directly recognised in

the translation reserve within equity.

Goodwill resulting from the ition of a foreign ion and fair value adj made at the
date are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rate at the transaction date.

‘When a foreign operation is fully or partially sold, the portion of cumulative amount related to that foreign operation is
transferred from the transiation reserve to the profit and loss account.

Comparative information

In 2022, the presentation of 'Third party costs' within the consolidated profit and loss account has been revised to
incorporate 'Cost of raw materials' and 'Cost of outsourced work and other costs'. Corresponding adjustments have
been made to the related note in the financial toensure a i ion of ive data.
As a result, EUR 59.2m for 2021 has been reclassified from 'Other third party costs' to 'Cost of goods sold'.

Further, the multi-year summary as included in the ‘Key figures' is presented on consistent basis to the extent
possible to reflect accounting policies and presentation convention applicable as at 31 December 2022,
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Financial instruments

Financial instruments include investments in shares and bonds, trade and other receivables, cash items, loans and
other financing commitments, derivative financial instruments, trade payables and other amounts payable.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet at the moment that the contractual risks or
rewards with respect to that financial instrument originate.

Financial i are ised ifa ion results in a part of the risks or
rewards with respect to that financial instrument being transferred to a third party.

Financial i (and individual f financial i are in th i financial

in with th i of the terms. Pr ion of the financial
instruments is based on the individual components of financial instruments as a financial asset, financial liability
or equity instrument.

Financial and non-financial contracts may contain terms and conditions that meet the definition of derivative financial
i Suchan is from the host contract if its economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, a separate instrument with the same terms
and conditions as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and thy ined i is
not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the profit and loss account.

Financial instruments embedded in contracts that are not separated from the host contract are recognised in accordance
with the host contract.

Derivatives separated from the host contract are measured at fair value with recognition of all changes in value in
the profit and loss account, except where cash flow hedge accounting or cost price hedge accounting are applied.

Financial instruments are initially measured based on fair value, including discount or premium and directly
artributable transaction costs. However, if financial i are at fair value through
profit and loss, then directly attributable transaction costs are directly recognised in the profit and loss account at the
initial recognition.

After initial recognition, individual types of financial instruments are valued in the manner described below.

Determination of fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset can be sold, or a liability settled, involving
parties who are well informed regarding the matter, willing to enter into a transaction and are independent of
each other. Determination is made as follows:

* The fair value of listed financial instruments is determined on the basis of the exit price;

* The fair value of listed financial inst is di ined by di ing the expected cash flows to
their present value, applying a discount rate that is equal to the current risk-free market interest rate for
the remaining term, plus credit and liquidity surcharges;

« The fair value of derivatives involving the exchange of collateral is determined by discounting the cash flows
to present value, applying the relevant forward curve. This is used because the credit and liquidity risks are
mitigated by the collateral exchange;

* The fair value of derivatives that do not involve exchange of collateral is determined by discounting the cash
flows to present value, applying the relevant forward curve plus credit and liquidity surcharges.
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Loans granted and other receivables

Loans and receivables comprise debt securities and trade and other receivables. Loans granted and other receivables
are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, these instruments are
carried at amortised cost on the basis of the effective interest method, less impairment losses. The effective interest
and impairment losses, if any, are directly recognised in the profit and loss account. Purchases and sales of financial
assets that belong to the category loans granted and other i are for at the ion date.

Investments in unlisted equity instruments
Investments in unlisted shares are measured after their initial recognition at the lower of cost or fair value.
Purchases and sales of financial assets that belong to this category are recorded at the transaction date.

Dividends from participating interests that are carried at cost are recognised as income from participating interests
(under financial income) in the period in which the dividends are declared.

Non-current and current liabilities and other financial commitments

Non-current and current liabilities and other financial commitments including borrowings are measured after their
initial recognition at amortised cost on the basis of the effective interest rate method. The effective interest is recorded
directly in the profit and loss account.

Redemption payments regarding non-current liabilities that are due next year are presented under current liabilities.

Derivatives and hedging
After their initial recognition, derivatives are normally valued at the lower of cost or fair value. Exceptions to this
general principle are:
* Commodity derivatives (LPG), for which the own use assumption cannot be applied. These are accounted
at fair value through profit and loss;
* Derivatives for which a model for hedge accounting is applied.
Purchases and sales of derivatives are recorded at the transaction date.
1f derivative financial instruments or portfolios of derivative financial instruments belong to a subcategory of

financial instruments, the derivative financial i are after initial ition in with
that subcategory.

Cost price hedge accounting

1f cost price hedge accounting is applied, then no revaluation of the derivative instrument is recognised as

long as the derivative hedges the specific risk of an expected future transaction that is expected to take place.

For SHV Energy, cost price hedge accounting mainly covers future foreign currency transactions to settle inventory
purchase liabilities.

As soon as the expected future tr ion leads to ition in the of income, then the profit or
loss that is i with the derivative is ised in the of income. If the hedged position of

an expected future transaction results in the recognition in the balance sheet of a non-financial asset or a
non-financial liability, then the cost of the asset or liability is adjusted by the hedge results that have not yet been
recognised in the statement of income.

When a derivative expires or is sold before the hedged transaction takes place, the accumulated profit or loss that
has not yet been recognised in the statement of income prior to that time is included as a deferral in the balance
sheet uncil the hedged transactions take place. If the transactions are no longer expected to take place, then the

profitor loss is ferred to the of income.
1f a derivative no longer meets the itions for hedge ing, but the derivative has not been sold, then hedge
accounting can no longer be applied. Further accounting treatment is similar to the situation when a derivative
expires or is sold before the hedged ion takes place. of the derivative i is

then at the lower of cost or fair value.

2022 Annual Report SHY Energy | 31



Cash flow hedge accounting

1f cash flow hedge accounting (mainly in relation to commodity derivatives) is used, the effective portion of the fair
value changes of the derivatives is initially recognised in the revaluation reserve. As soon as the expected future
transactions lead to the recognition of gains or losses in the profit and loss account, the respective amounts are
transferred from the revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account. If a hedged position in respect of an expected
future transaction leads to the recognition in the balance sheet of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability,
the Company adjusts the cost of this asset or liability by the hedge results. This is done through a transfer from the
revaluation reserve of the results that have been deferred in this reserve until such time.

If a derivative no longer meets the conditions for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, or if the Company has decided
to no longer apply hedge ing, the hedging ({ ip is il The deferred gains or losses recognised
at the time of the termination of the hedging relationship remain in equity until the expected future transaction
takes place. If the transaction is no longer expected to take place, the deferred gain or loss on the hedge recognised
in equity is transferred to the profit and loss account.

Conditions for hedge accounting
The Company documents its hedging relationships in specific hedging documentation and regularly checks the
effectiveness of the hedging relationship by establishing whether the hedge is effective or that there is no over-hedging.

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses the degree of ineffectiveness of the combination of the hedge
instrument and the hedged item (the hedging relationship). The degree of ineffectiveness of the hedging relationship
is determined by comparing the critical terms of the hedging instrument against the hedged item. For this comparison,
the Company uses the following critical terms: amount, maturity, hedged risk, method of settlement of the hedging
instrument and the hedged position.

If the critical terms, assessed in the context of the hedging relationship, match each other, there has been no
ineffectiveness.

If the critical terms, assessed in the context of the hedging relationship, do not match each other, a quantitative test
needs to be d to prove thy i f the hedging ionship. In that case, the degree of ineffecti is
determined by comparing the fair value change of the hedging instrument with the fair value change of the hedged
item. If there is a cumulative result on the hedging relationship over the period between initial recognition of the
hedging instrument and the balance sheet date, the fair value changes related to ineffectiveness is recognised
directly in the profit and loss account.

Put/Call options

When the Company enters into a so-called put/call arrangement with third party shareholders, whereby the Company
has the obligation to buy the third party share at the moment the third party shareholder exercises its right to sell
its shareholding to the Company (put), this written option qualifies as a contract resulting in the obligation to buy
equity instruments.

In case that the minority shareholder, based on the contract, does not have the access to the retums associated with
the underlying ownership interest, a third party share as part of group equity is not recorded. In case that the minority
shareholder, based on the contract, does have the access to the returns i with the i
interest, a third party share as part of group equity is accounted for.

When, the put/call option should be settled in cash or other financial assets, a liability should be recognised.

Initially ar fair vatue, which represents the discounted value of the expected outflow of resources to settle the option.
At first recognition the liability is recognised against a change in the other reserves within equity. Future changes

in the valuation because of changes in the expected outflow of resources are recorded in the other reserves

within equity. The discount effect is recorded in the income statement as part of the financial result. This is
consistently applied.
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Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset that is not measured at (1) fair value with value changes reflected in the profit and loss account, or at
(2) amortised cost or lower fair market value, is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more adverse events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, with negative impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset, which can be estimated reliably.

‘The Company considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at amortised cost (loans and receivables
and financial assets that are held to maturity) both individually and on a portfolio basis. All individually significant
assets are assessed indivi for impai The indivi ignil assets that are not found to be individually
impaired and assets that are not indivi igni are then ively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of
collections and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic and
credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the esti fu h flows di atthe asset’s original
effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account and reflected in an allowance account against loans and
receivables or investment securities held to maturity. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised by using
the asset’s original effective interest rate.

When, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment allowance decreases, and the decrease can be related
i to an event ing after the impail was ised, the decrease in impairment allowance is
reversed through profit or loss (up to the amount of the original cost).

Offsetting financial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset when the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off the financial
asset and financial liability and the Company has the firm intention to settle the balance on a net basis, or to settle
the asset and the liability simultaneously.

If there is a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition in the balance sheet, the transferred
asset and the associated liability are not offset.
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Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are only recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of that asset can be measured reliably.

ible fixed assets are dat isition or ion cost, less
and impairment losses.
Expenditures made after the initial ition of an acquired or develop fixed asset are included in the

cost if it is probable that the expenditures will lead to an increase in the expected future economic benefits, and the
expenditures and the allocation to the asset can be measured reliably. If expenditures do not meet these conditions,
they are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account.

The i inciples for the ination and ition of impai are included under the section
Impairments of fixed assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the isition of the participating interest (including costs
directly related to the acquisition) over the Company’s interest in the net realisable value of the assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed of the acquired entity. Goodwill is at acquisition cost | i isation and
i losses. d goodwill is not capitalised.

Goodwill paid upon the acquisition of foreign Group ies and idiaries is at the exch rates
at the date of acquisition.

The capitalised goodwill is ised on a straight-line basis over the esti useful life (maximised at 10 years)

and is tested for i there is an indication for il

In case of a full or partial sale of a participating interest, the positive goodwill that can be allocated to the sold part is
written off proportionally (in case of capitalised goodwill) or reversed (in case of goodwill charged directly against
shareholder’s equity, as was done until 2016) and is charged to the profit and loss account. In the latter case, a useful
life of § years is assumed in determining the amount to be reversed.

Goodwill is recorded directly in equity for acquisitions of minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries when a majority
share and controlling interest were owned by the Group since 2015. The acquired minority share is considered to be
already part of the group equity (so-called ‘economic entity concept’).

Software

Software acquired by the Company has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Cost includes dif that are directly attril tothe isition of the asset.

C i li and intell | property

This category includes capitalised costs relating to copyrights, user rights relating to patents and licenses, and includes
licences enforced by law. C i licences and i property are d at cost less

amortisation and impairment losses. Acquired concessions, licenses and intellectual property rights have definite useful
lives that are no longer than their contractual terms.

Brand names and customer contracts

Brand names acquired through business combinations have finite useful lives and are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. This is done to the extent that they can be separately identified or grouped as a single asset in the case
that each brand name has a similar useful economic life and can be measured reliably. Brand names are subsequently
carried at cost less d isation and impai losses.

Customer contracts acquired by the Company through business combinations are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date to the extent that they can be separately identified or grouped as a single asset and that each customer
contract has a similar useful life and can be measured reliably. Customer contracts have definite useful lives and are
subsequently carried at cost less isation and impai losses.
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‘The fair value of brand names acquired in a business combination is based on the discounted estimated royalty
payments that have been avoided as a result of the patent or trademark being owned (‘relief from royalty’ method).
The fair value of customer contracts acquired in a business combination is determined using the multi-period excess
earnings method, whereby the subject asset is valued after deducting a fair return on all other assets that are part
of creating the related cash flows. The fair value of other intangible assets is based on the discounted cash flows
expected to be derived from the use and eventual sale of the assets.

In determining fair value, the Group uses appraisals of an external assessor when appropriate.

Development costs

Development costs mainly relate to self-developed software and are capitalised, in so far as incurred, in respect of
ally p projects. The ofani ible fixed asset is i i if
the following conditions are met:

* The completion of the asset is technically feasible;

* The Company intends to complete the asset and then use or sell it (including the availability of adequate
technical, financial and other resources to achieve this);

* The Company has the ability to use or sell the asset;

* It is probable that the asset will generate future economic benefits; and

 The costs incurred during the development phase can be determined reliably.

D costs are at ion cost less isation and i i losses.

The capitalised costs are ised over the estil useful life after ion of the d phase
(asset ready for usage). Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method. The costs of research and other
development costs are charged to the result in the period in which they are incurred.

‘The cost of self-developed software includes the following:
*The cost of direct labour;
*Any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use.

Alegal reserve is formed for capitalised development costs that have not yet been amortised.

Bio and energy-saving certificates

Certi (rights) are ised as i ible fixed assets (if rights are freely tradable and not used for active
trading activities). Initial recognition is at lower of cost or market value. Amortisation is not applicable as these
rights are only used at derecognition.

Certificates of origin are - in principle - i related to the product. For this reason, the use of
certificates is automatically included in the cost price of the product (inventory and/or cost of sales).

Prepayments for intangible fixed assets

Prepayments for intangible fixed assets are valued at cost. Prepayments for intangible fixed assets are not amortised.

Amortisation

foll

A isation of i ibles is ised by the straight-line method over the
a maximum of 20 years:
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Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of that asset can be measured reliably.

Tangible fixed assets are at cost, less d and il i losses. The cost comprises the
price of isition or ion, plus other costs that are necessary to get the assets to their location
and condition for their intended use. diture is only capitalised when it extends the original useful life

of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and consumables and other costs that can
be directly attributed to the construction. In addition, the cost of construction includes a reasonable part of the indirect
costs and interest on loans for the period attributable to the construction of the asset.

Investment grants are deducted from the cost of the assets to which the grants relate.

Depreciation is recognised in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each item of the tangible fixed assets, taking into account any estimated residual value of the individual assets.
No depreciation is recognised on land, tangible fixed assets under construction and prepayments on tangible
fixed assets. Depreciation starts as soon as the asset is available for its intended use and ends at decommissioning
or divestment.

Prepayments for tangible fixed assets are valued at cost. Prepayments for tangible fixed assets are not depreciated.

Items of tangible fixed assets with a finite useful life are depreciated separately based on their useful lives.

The Company applies the component approach for tangible fixed assets if important individual components of a
tangible fixed asset can be distinguished from each other, Taking into account differences in useful life or expected
pattern of use, these are i

D iation is ised by the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
@ Commercial buildings 20-40yis) @ Transport equipment 3-Tyrs

Gas cylnders ang tonks 5-20yrs) Office and plant equipment 2-10yis)
@ Machines and installations 5-20yis)

Land is not depreciated.

P are only capitalised when the mail leads to the ion of the useful life of the
asset and/or future performance units regarding the asset.

For costs of recovery a provision is recognised, see the policy under the heading ‘Provisions’.

Tangible fixed assets, for which the Company and its Group ies possess the i ipundera
finance lease, are capitalised. The obligation arising from the finance lease contract is recognised as a financial liability.
The interest included in the future lease instalments is charged to the profit and loss account during the term of the
finance lease contract.

Cylinders are considered as assets of the Company if the following conditions are met:
a) Those cylinders carry an identifying mark; and
b) They can only be filled by the company or a contracted third party.
Assets retired from active use are measured at the lower of book value or net realisable value.

The fair value of tangible fixed assets recognised as a result of a business combination is the estimated amount for
which an asset can be sold, involving parties who are well informed regarding the matter, willing to enter into a
transaction and are independent from each other. The fair value of items of tangible fixed assets is based on the
income approach, direct and indirect market approaches and cost approaches using quoted market prices for
similar items when available and depreciated repl cost when i In ining fair value, the
Group uses appraisals of an external assessor.
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Financial fixed assets

Joint arrangements

Participating interests where the Company exercises control along with other participants, such as in joint ventures,
are valued according to the equity method on the basis of net asset value.

Participating interests with significant influence

Participating interests where signi influence can be exercised over the business and financial policies are
valued according to the equiry method. In assessing whether the Company has significant influence over the business
and financial policies of a participating interest, all facts and ci and 1 i ips, i i
potential voting rights, are taken into account.

The net asset value is calculated on the basis of the Company’s accounting policies.

Participating interests with a negative net asset value are valued at nil. If the Company fully or partially guarantees the
debts of the relevant participating interest, or if has the constructive obligation to enable the participating interest
to pay its debts (for its share therein), then a provision is recognised accordingly to the amount of the estimated
payments by the Company on behalf of the participating interest.

Participating interests with no significant influence

Participating interests where no significant influence can be exercised are measured at the lower of cost or net
realisable value. If the Company transfers an asset or a liability to a participating interest that is measured at cost
or current value, the gain or loss resulting from this transfer is recognised directly and in full in the profit and loss
account, unless the gain is in substance not realised.

Other financial fixed assets

from icipating interests are initially a fair value plus directly attributable
costs. these i are d at ised cost using the effective interest method,
less impairment losses.

The further accounting policies for other financial fixed assets are included under the heading ‘Financial instruments’.
Dividends are accounted for in the period in which they are declared.

Bonds, listed and unlisted, recognised under financial fixed assets, that are not held as part of a trading portfolio and
which will be held to maturity, are valued ar their amortised cost.

Impairments of fixed assets

Tangible and intangible fixed assets are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any indication of an
impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. The recoverable amount
is the higher of value in use and net realisable value. If it is not possible to assess the recoverable amount for an
individual asset, the recoverable amount is assessed for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

1f the carrying amount of an asset or cash. ing unit exceeds its amount, an i i loss is
recognised for the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount. If there is an impairment
loss for a cash-generating unit, the loss is first allocated to goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit. Any residual
foss is allocated to the other fixed assets of the unit pro rata to their book values.

Subsequently, at each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
that was recorded in previous years has been decreased. If any such indication exists, then the recoverable amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is estimated.
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Reversal of a previously recognised impairment loss only takes place when there is a change in the assessment used
to determine the recoverable amount since the recognition of the last impairment loss. In such case, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash unit) is i d to its ble amount, but not higher than the carrying
amount that would have applied (net of iation) if no i i loss had been ised in previous years
for the asset (or cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss of goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Irrespective of whether there is any indicator of an impairment, at each reporting date the recoverable amount is
assessed for intangible assets that have not been put into use yet.

Fixed assets available for sale

Fixed assets available for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and net realisable value.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the expenses for acquisition or

plus other i to bring the i ies to their present location and condition. Net realisable
value is based on the most reliable estimate of the amount the inventories will generate, less costs of completion
and selling. Costs of inventories is determined in accordance with the first-in, first-out (FIFO) principle, which are
measured by applying weighted average prices per purchased batches.

Trade discounts, rebates and indemnities (to be) received in connection with purchasing are deducted from the costs
of purchase.

Receivables and securities

The accounting policies applied for the valuation of trade and other receivables and securities are described under
the heading ‘Financial instruments’.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances, cash in hand, cash in transit, in-house bank balances and money
market investments, which have a maturity as per reporting date of less than 90 days.

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at nominal value. Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign
currencies are transtated at the balance sheet date in the functional currency at the spot exchange rate applicable
at that date. If cash and cash equivalents are not readily available, this fact is considered in the measurement.

Bank overdrafts (including in-house bank) are shown in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Shareholder’s equity

Financial i that are desi as equity i by virtue of the economic reality are presented
under shareholder’s equity. Pay. to hold f these i are deducted from the shareholder’s equity as
part of the profit distribution.

Financial instruments that are designated as a financial liability by virtue of the economic reality are presented
under liabilities. Interest, dividends, income and expenditure with respect to these financial instruments are
recognised in the profit and loss as financial income or expense.
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Share premium

A i by the h of the Company in excess of the nominal share capital are accounted for as
share premium. This also includes additional capital contributions by the existing shareholder without the issue of
shares or issue of rights to acquire shares of the Company.

Costs and capital taxes associated with the issue of shares that are not capitalised are deducted from share premium
after having taken tax effects into account. If the share premium is insufficient for such deductions, the amounts are
deducted from retained earnings.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in the value of assets that are measured at fair value are included in the revaluation reserve. An exception to
this is financial i and other ities that are d at fair value through the profit and loss account.
In addition, a revaluation reserve is established for such assets with a corresponding charge against other reserves if
frequent market quotations are not available.

The revaluation reserve is i per indivi asset and must not exceed the difference between the carrying
value based on historical cost and the carrying value based on fair value. The revaluation reserve is reduced by any
realised ion (in ion with i iation or amortisation of the asset). Decreases in the

value of the asset in question, other than due to systematic depreciation or amortisation, are charged against the
revaluation reserve.

Ifan asset is sold, any revaluation reserve pertaining to that asset is released and credited to other reserves.
Any related deferred tax liability, calculated at the current tax rate, is offset against the revaluation reserve.

Minority interests

Minority interests are valued at the proportionate share of third parties in the net value of the assets and liabilities of
a i entity, d din with the Company’s accounting principles.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if all of the following applies:
 The Company has a legal or constructive obligation, arising from a past event;
* The amount can be estimated reliably; and
« It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Ifall or part of the payments that are necessary to settle a provision are likely to be fully or partially compensated by a
third party upon settlement of the provision, then the ion amount is ly as an asset.

If the time value of money is material and the period over which the cash outflows are discounted is more than one
year, provisions are measured at the present value of the best estimate of the cash outflows that are expected to be
required to settle the liabilities and losses. The provisions are measured at nominal value if the time value of money
is not material or if the period over which the cash outflows are discounted is no longer than one year.
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Provision for deposits for gas cylinders and tanks

The company recognises a pravision for deposits when a legal or exists to rei the
customer for gas cylinders and tanks that are rerurned. The deposit provision is based on the estimated gas cylinders
in the market, the expected return thereof and the deposit value.

Provision for restructuring costs

A restructuring provision is recognised when at the balance sheet dare the entity has a detailed formal restructuring
plan, and ulti; at the date of ion of the financial avalid ion of imp) ion of
the plan has been raised for those that will be impacted by the restructuring.

Avalid ion exists when the i of the restructuring has been started, or when the main elements
of the plan have been announced to those for whom the ing will have

The provision for restructuring costs includes the costs that are directly assaciated with the restructuring, which are
not associated with the ongoing activities of the Company.

Provision for participating interests
A provision for participating interests relates to participating interests with a negative net asset value. Refer to the
accounting policies under the heading ‘Financial fixed assets’.

Provision for claims, disputes and lawsuits

A provision for claims, disputes and tawsuits is established when it is expected that the Company will be become liable
in legal ings. The provision rep the best estimate of the amount for which the claim can be settled,
including the costs of litigation.

Non-current liabilities

The valuation of non-current liabilities is explained under the heading ‘Financial instruments’.

Current liabilities

The valuation of current liabilities is explained under the heading ‘Financial instruments’.

Leases

‘The Company may enter into finance and operating leases. A lease agreement under which the risks and rewards
of ownership of the leased object are carried entirely or almost entirely by the lessee are classified as finance lease.
Al other leases are classified as operating leases. For the lease ification, the i of the ion is
conclusive rather than the legal form.

At inception of a lease arrangement, the Company assesses whether the lease classifies as a finance or operating lease.
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Finance leases

if the Company acts as a lessee in a finance lease, at the inception of the lease the leased asset (and the related
obligation) is recognised in the balance sheet at fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value

of the minimum lease payments. Both values are determined at the time of entering into the lease agreement.

The interest rate used in calculating the present value is the interest rate implicit in the lease. The initial direct costs
are included in the initial measurement of the leased property.

The i inciples for the of the leased property are described under the heading
‘Tangible fixed assets’. If there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership of a leased
property at the end of the lease term, the property is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life
of the property.

The minimum lease payments are split into interest expense and redemption of the lease liability. The interest charges
are allocated during the lease term to each period as such that it results in a constant periodic interest rate over the

remaining net liability with regard to the finance lease. Conditional lease are ised as an expense in
the period that the conditions of payment are met.

Operating leases

1f the Company acts as lessee in an operating lease, the leased property is not capitalised. Lease payments and benefits
i harged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

g operating leases

‘Temporary reduction or exemption of/from the rental payments under existing rental agreements, as a result of
Covid- 19 support schemes, is recognised over the period while this reduction or exemption is valid.

Revenue recognition

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Company follows a S-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer;

2. Identifying the perf

3. Determining the transaction price;

4. Allocating the ion price to the perf and

5. ising revenue when/as igati are satisfied.

The Company enters into contracts with customers to supply a bundle of products and services, for gas and associated

meter fees. The contract is then assessed to determine whether it contains a singl i igation or
multiple perfa igations. If i the total ion price is altocated amongst the various performance
obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time when the Company satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.
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Sale of gas, other goods and renewable fuel certificates
Revenue from the sale of goods primarily consists of the sale of gas (LPG and LNG), fuel, empty cylinder & tanks
and appliances.

The performance obligation associated with the sale of gas is the delivery of gas to a specified location at which control
aver it is transferred to the customer which can then consume the gas and thus the performance obligation is satisfied.
For contracts with customers that consume gas from a metered tank, we recognise revenue when LPG is consumed, at
which point we have the right to invoice based on consumption.

‘The performance obligation associated with the sale of renewabte fuel certificates is realised when the Company is able
to deliver trade renewable fuel certificates received together with purchased gas.

Both revenue from sales of goods and fuel certil is ised at the point of time when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, the amount of the revenue can be determined
reliably, recovery of i ion is probable, the it costs and possible return of goods can be estimated

reliably, and there is no continuing involvement with the goods. The timing of the transfer of risks and rewards varies
depending on the individual terms of the sales agreement.
Transaction price is equal to the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances,

trade discounts and volume rebates. Freight costs recharged to the buyer are included in revenues.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of gas, other goods and renewable fuel certificates, the Group considers
the effects of variable iderari i of a signil financing non-cash ion, and
consideration payable to the customer (if any of the above applicable).

Rendering of services and sales of electricity

Services provided mainly relate to rental income, meter fees and maintenance services that are either sold separately or
bundled together with the sale gas and other goods. The Group recognises revenue from services over time because the
customer simul receives and the benefits provided to them. Revenues from services rendered are
recognised in proportion to the services performed over the contract period.

The Group is engaged in the sale of electricity power. Performance obligations are satisfied over time, generally on a
monthly basis, as electricity is delivered over time to customer which are simultaneously consuming it.

Revenue from services and sales of electricity is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of allowances and rebates.

Contracts for bundled sales of products and services are ised of two igations because those are
both sold on a stand-alone basis and are distinct within the context of the contract. Accordingly, the Company allocates
the transaction price based on the relative stand-alone selling prices of the gas and other products and various services.

Revenue from services is recognised when the amount can be determined reliably, collection of the related
compensation to be received is probable, the extent to which the services have been performed on the balance sheet
date can be determined reliably, and the costs already incurred and (possibly) yet to be incurred to complete the
service can be determined reliably.

1f the result from a specific service contract cannot be determined reliably, then revenues are recognised up to the
amount of the service costs that are covered by the revenues.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold include the cost of all raw materials, supplies and trade goods related to the goods sold, including
transportation, hedging costs and import duties. Third party costs for gas products are recorded based on the first
in-first out (FIFO) principle by applying weighted average cost method (per purchased barch). All other costs of
goods sold are recorded on the first in-first out (FIFO) principle only.
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Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses include costs of outsourced work and other external costs. All these costs are recorded in
the period they relate to.

Government grants

Operating grants including Covid-19 related government support programmes are credited to the profit and loss
account in the year in which the subsidi: i is ised, the loss of income occurs or the operating
deficit occurs. Amounts received in advance (both current and non-current) are presented under deferred income.

Grants are only ised when exists that the conditions of the grant will be met and the
grant will be received and all the relevant supporting evidence is available.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which the employee services are
rendered and, to the extent not already paid, recognised as a liability on the balance sheet. If the amount already
paid exceeds the benefits owed, the excess is recognised as a current asset to the extent that there will be a

i by the emp ora ion in future by the Company.

For benefits with accumulating rights, profit-sharing and bonuses the projected costs are taken into account during
the employment. An expected payment resulting from profit-sharing and bonus payments is recognised if the
obligation for that payment has arisen on or before the balance sheet date and a reliable estimate of the liabilities
can be made.

If a benefitis paid in the case of: ing rights (e.8. i payment in the case of sickness or disability),

the projected costs are recognised in the period in which such benefit is payable. A provision is recognised for
existing commitments at the balance sheet date to continue the payment of benefits (including termination benefits)
to employees who are expected to be unable to perform work wholly or partly due to sickness or disability in the
future. The recognised liability relates to the best estimate of the expenditure necessary to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date. The best estimate is based on with Hecti and
indivi contract). Additions to and reversals of liabilities are charged or credited to the profit and

loss account.
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Dutch pension plans

‘The main principle is that the pension charge to be recognised for the reporting period is equal to the pension
contributions payable to the pension provider over the period. In so far as the payable contributions have not yet
been paid as at balance sheet date, a liability is recognised. If the contributions already paid at balance sheet date
exceed the payable contributions as at balance sheet date, a receivable is recognised to account for any repayment
by the provider or settlement with contributions payable in the future.

If, on the basis of an administration agreement with respect to a Group plan/multi-employer plan, there is an obligation
at balance sheet date, a provision is recognised when it is probable that the measures, which are necessary for the
recovery of the existing funding ratio at balance sheet date, will result in an outflow of resources and the amount
thereof can be estimated reliably.

A provision is recognised if there are adjustments to rights accrued as at the balance sheet date arising from future
salary increases that are already committed to at the balance sheet date and which shall be paid by the Company.

In addition, a provision is included as at balance sheet date for existing additional commitments to the pension
provider and the employees, provided that it is probable that there will be an outflow of funds for the settlement of
the commitments, and it is possible to reliably estimate the amount of th i Thy i

of additional commitments is assessed on the basis of the administration agreement concluded with the provider,
the pension agreement with employees and other (explicit or implicit) commitments to employees. The provision is
measured at the best estimate of the present value of the anticipated costs of settling the commitments as at balance
sheet date. The pre-tax discount rate reflects the market interest rate at the balance sheet date of high-quality
corporate bonds/yield on government bonds. Risks that have already been taken into account in estimating future
expenditures are not included in the discount rate.

For any surplus at the pension provider as at balance sheet date, a receivable is recognised if the Company has the
power to withdraw this surplus, if it is likely that the surplus will flow to the Company and if the receivable can be
reliably determined.

Foreign pension plans

Pension plans that are in design and ioning to the Dutch pension system, having a strict segregation
of the responsibilities of the parties involved and risk sharing between the said parties (the Company, the fund and
its are ised and d in with Dutch pension plans (see previous section).

For foreign pension plans that are not comparable in design and functioning to the Dutch pension system, a best
estimate is made of the liability as at balance sheet date. This liability is measured on the basis of an actuarial
measurement principle generally accepted in the Netherlands.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the ination of th il A

benefit is recognised as a liability and an expense when the Company is d and diti

to make the payment of the benefit. If the termination is part of a restructuring, the costs of the termination benefits
are part of the restructuring provision. See the policy under the heading ‘Provisions’.

Termination benefits are in d with their nature. When the termination benefit is an enhancement
10 post: benefits, is done ing to the same policies as applied to post-employment
plans. Other termination benefits are measured at the best estimate of the expenditures required to settle the liability.
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Interest income and similar income and
interest expenses and similar charges

Interest income and similar income comprise interest income on cash and cash equivalents, interest income on
available-for-sale financial assets, changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through the profit and loss account (including derivative financial instruments) and interest income on loans to other
parties. Interest income and similar income is recognised in the profit and loss account on an accrual basis, using the
effective interest method.

Interest expenses and similar charges comprise interest expenses on borrowings, changes in the fair value of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss account (including derivative financial
instruments), finance lease expenses and other financial expenses. Interest expenses and similar charges are
recognised in the period to which they belong.

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax includes the current and deferred corporate income tax payable and recoverable for the
reporting period. Corporate income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity, or to business combinations.

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the financial year,
calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is ised in respect of temporary dil between the carrying value of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred income tax is recorded at nominal value, calculated using tax
rates at the balance sheet date or tax rates applicable in future years, to the extent enacted by law. Deferred tax assets,
including the tax loss carry forward position, are recognised when it is probable that they can be offset against furure
taxable income. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax li ies are offset in the balance sheet if the company has a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities, insofar as they relate to the same financial year
and deferred tax assets relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable Company, or the same
fiscal unity.

For taxable temporary differences related to group jes, foreign branches, iates and interests in joint ventures,
adeferred tax liability is recognised, unless the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. For deductible

porary di regarding group ies, foreign branches, associates and interests in joint ventures, a deferred
tax asset is only recognised in so far as it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future
(next five years) and that taxable profit will be available to offset the temporary difference can be urilised.

The deferred tax assets are presented under financial fixed assets. Deferred tax liabilities are presented under provisions.

Fiscal unity

As from 1 January 2019 the Company forms a fiscal unity for Dutch corporate income tax purposes together with
SHV Holdings N.V. and its Dutch subsidiaries. Each of the companies recognises the portion of corporate income tax
that the relevant company would owe as an independent taxpayer, taking into account the specific rules applicable to
fiscal unities. The deferred corporate income taxes are deferred assets and deferred liabilities respectively to the head
of the fiscal unity, being SHV Holdings N.V.

For other SHV Energy companies, outside the Netherlands, combined reporting for corporate income tax purposes
may also be applicable. However, corporate income taxes are also recognised as if these companies were taxed on
astand-alone basis.
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Together with some of its Dutch subsidiaries, the Company formed a fiscal unity for value added tax purposes. Due to
the merger of several Dutch legal entities during the year, the fiscal unity has ceased to exist in 2022.

The standard iti tipulate that each of the ies is liable for the tax payable by all companies belonging to
the fiscal unity.

Share in result of participating interests

The share in the result of participating interests consists of the share of the Group in the results of these participating
interests, determined on the basis of the accounting principles of the Group. Results of transactions, where the transfer
of assets and liabilities between the Group and the non-consolidated participating interests and mutually between

i interests th are not ised as they can be deemed as not realised.

The results of participating interests acquired or sold during the financial year are measured in the Group’s result
from the date of acquisition or until the date of sale respectively.

Cash flow statement

The consolidated cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents include
cash and i that are readily ible to a known amount of cash without a significant risk of changes
invalue.

Cash flow items in foreign currency are translated at the average currency rates. The currency exchange differences
reported in the consolidated statements of cash flow represent the effect of translating the liquidity in foreign
currency at the beginning of the year and the change in liquidity during the year using the exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the year.

Receipts and payments of interest and income taxes are presented within the cash flows from operating activities.
Payments of dividends is presented within the cash flows from financing activities. Dividends received from
investments in affiliates are presented within the cash flows from operating activities.

‘The consideration for acquired Group companies is presented under the cash flows from investment activities for the
considerations paid in cash and cash equivalents. The effect on cash and cash equivalents is presented separately as
changes in consolidation.

Transactions that do not include an exchange of cash and cash equival such as finance leases, are not included
in the cash flow statement. The payment of finance lease terms is allocated for the part related to the repayment
of the lease obligation to the cash flows from financing activities and is allocated for the part related to the interest

component to the cash flows from operational activities.

Cash flows from derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as hedges are classified in the same category
as the cash flows from the hedged balance sheet items. Cash flows from derivative financial instruments whereby
hedge accounting is no longer applied, are classified in accordance with the nature of the instrument, from the date
at which hedge accounting is ended.

Changes in working capital include the cash flow movement from changes in inventories, accounts receivable and
short-term debt, excluding amounts related to:

* Redemption of long-term debt;

* Dividends to be paid;

* Payables to banks;

* Payables and receivables for taxes on income and equity;
* Payables and receivables for interest;

* Margin calls paid and received.
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Determination of fair value

‘The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset can be sold or a liability settled, involving
parties who are well informed regarding the matter, willing to enter into a transaction and are independent from
each other.

* The fair value of listed financial instruments is determined based on the exit price.

* The fair value of non-listed financial instruments is determined by discounting the expected cash flows to
their present value, applying a discount rate that is equal to the current risk-free market interest rate for
the remaining term, plus credit and liquidity surcharges.

* The fair value of derivatives involving the exchange of collateral is determined by discounting the cash
flows to present value, applying a risk-free swap curve. This is used because the credit and liquidity risk is
mitigated by the collateral exchange.

* The fair value of derivatives that do not involve exchange of collateral is determined by discounting the
cash flows to present value, applying the relevant swap curve plus credit and liquidity surcharges.

Related parties

Transactions with related parties are assumed when a relationship exists between the Company and a natural person
or entity that is affiliated with the Company. This includes, among others, the relationship between the Company
and its subsidiaries, shareholder, directors and key 1T ions are transfers of resources,
services or obligations, regardless of whether any amount has been charged. Significant transactions with related
parties are disclosed in the notes insofar as they are not transacted under normal market conditions. The nature,
extent and other information is disclosed if this is required to provide a true and fair view.

Parent and uitimate controlling party

SHYV Energy is part of SHV Group and is a wholly owned subsidiary of SHV Nederland B.V. in Utrecht, the Netherlands.
The ultimate parent company is SHV Holdings N.V.

Transactions with key personnel

A number of key management personnel, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them
having control or significant influence over the financial or operating policies of these entities. A number of these
entities transacted with the Company in the reporting period. The terms and conditions of the transactions with key
management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable than those available to, or which might
reasonably be expected to be available to, entities with no key in similar ions on an
arm’s-length basis.

Subsequent events

Events that provide further information on the actual situation at the balance sheet date and that appear before the
financial are being are in the financial statements.

Events that provide o information on the actual situation at the balance sheet date are not recognised in the
financial statements. When those events are relevant for the economic decisions of users of the financial statements,
the nature and the estimated financial effects of the events are disclosed in the financial statements.
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’. v . ° ‘The Company acquired 100% of the shares in Petromax LPG and Petromax Cylinders (both companies are in Bangladesh)
on 21 August 2022 when control was obtained. Petromax LPG is one of the fastest growing LPG companies in
Bangladesh and serves domestic, ial, and industrial across the country.

SHV Energy has acquired the 100% shares of Nuova Itafi S.r.1. in Italy which also owns the 100% shares of VulcanGas
Umbra S.r.l. on 1 October 2022 when control was obtained. VulcanGas is active in both bulk and cylinder business in
the northern part of Italy.

For 2022 a provisional 'purchase accounting’ method has been applied for both Petromax and VulcanGas. The purchase
price allocation will be finalised in 2023.

©On 30 November 2022 the Company has acquired remaining shares (10.2%) in SunSource Energy Private Ltd.
(‘SunSource') in India. As from this date, the Company is 100% owner of SunSource.

The total i ion paid for these isiti to EUR 122.2m. The impact on SHV Energy’s
net cash position in 2022 was EUR 87.5m outflow (cash consideration - adjusted for cash and cash equivalents
acquired - of EUR 34.7m).

Divestments

‘There were no new divestments in 2022, however, the Company has received earn-out payments based on the
post-disposal performance of several past divestments.

PRIMAGAZ

Primagrill
Multifonction
Mobilité

. Clipsage direct
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2. Intangible fixed assets

Movements in intangible fixed assets were as follows:

Goodwillt Software Customer Brands, Other Total
contracts concessions
and licences

Balance as at
1January 2022:

Purchase price 152.6 153.0 538 382 91 406.7
Accumulated

amortisation and

impairment (411) (51.0) .7) (22.5) (5.4) 131.7)
Carrying amount ms 102.0 421 15.7 37 275.0
Changes in

carrying amount:

Investments 685 41.0 0.2 - 16 ms3
Monetary and inflation . R . 01 10 )
correction

Change in R

consolidation a4 4.0 15 on 10
Amortisation Qazr.7) (13.0) (5.2) (20) (1.3) (39.2)
Impairments - - - 0.3) - 0.3)
Translation

differences 48 (D) ©.2) ©.4) 02 33
Total changes 512 26.9 .2) an 14 77.2

Balance as at
31 December 2022:
Purchase price 216.6 206.4 559 43.0 122 534.1

Accumulated
amortisation and
impairment (53.9) (77.5) (15.0) (28.4) 7 (181.9)

Carrying amount 162.7 128.9 40.9 14.6 5.1

Change in consolidation include, based on the final PPA, the reallocation for Italy (EUR 4.0m from goodwill to
customer contracts) as well as the allocation for brand in Bangladesh (EUR 1.5m).
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Goodwill

Goodwill primarily relates to historical acquisitions in Bangladesh, USA, Belgium, Italy, Sweden and Ireland (details
of isitions in 2022 are in note 1). Additions to goodwill during the year relates to acquisitions of
Petromax (Bangladesh) and VulcanGas (Italy). The remaining economic useful life of the goodwill ranges berween
3 and 9 years.

No impairment triggers were identified in 2022 for any recorded goodwill.

Software

Software mainly consists of i d i i related to capitalised i of ERP, CRM, HR
and other IT systems. These systems enable the standardisation and optimisation of business processes, management
information and master data supported by a single, global IT solution. EUR 64.4m (2021: EUR 54.8m) is under

ion (predomi SAP ERP impl ion). The ini ic useful life of software ranges
between 1 to 7 years.

Customer contracts

Customer contracts mainly relate to the fair value of acquired customer contracts in India, USA, ltaly, Spain and France,
amounting to EUR 39.5m (2021: EUR 39.5m). The remaining economic useful life ranges between 1 and 17 years.

Brands, concessions and licences

This relates primarily to the fair value of acquired brands and operating licences in China, amounting to
EUR 12.0m (2021: EUR 14.2m). The remaining economic useful life ranges between 1 and 8 years.

Other intangibles

Other intangible assets include development costs in Ireland, amounting to EUR 0.4m (2021: EUR 1.0m).
Those development costs relate to the ongoing implementation of software projects in Ireland and a fuel cell
project in Germany. Furthermore, other intangible assets in Brazil of EUR 2.2m (2021: EUR 1.0m) relate to
acquired concessions.
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3. Tangible fixed assets

Movements in tangible fixed assets were as follows:

Gas a port, Other Total
land & cylinders Installations plant & office and
buildings & tanks equipment operating
assets under
construction
Balance as at
1 January 2022:
Purchase price 4905 3.013.5 5721 476.8 127.6 55 46860
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment (276.4) (2,086.3) (416.6) (319.0) - (38) (31021
Carrying amount 2141 927.2 155.5 152.8 127.6 1.7 15839
Changes in
carrylng amount:
Investments 204 1300 201 342 127.6 3923
Disposals (2.4) (22.8) (0.6) (0.8) (03) (0.3) (272)
Monetary and - -
inflation correction 173 181 51 57 462
Change in -
consalidation fid 622 6.6 n 106.8
Depreciation @85  (1502) (26.5) (41.2) - (236.4)
Impairments,
net incl. reversal) 0.5 52) ©5n ©0.4) o1 0.6 G5
Translation
. X 3 3 16.
differences 286) ©06) (58) (4.5 Gn 02 (164
Reallocation 5.5 25.6 65 361 (727) (0.9 01
Total changes 401 "z 153 36.2 51.6 (0.9) 259.9
Balance as at
31 December 2022:
Purchase price 534.4 3,388.9 614.6 516.4 179.2 51 52386
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment (280.2) (2.3446) (443.8) (322.4) - (38) (33948)
Carrying amount 254.2 1,044.3 170.8 194.0 179.2 13 1,843.8
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The book value of gas cylinders and tanks as per 31 December 2022 amounts to EUR 476.9m and EUR 567.4m
respectively for cylinders and tanks (2021: EUR 404.7m and EUR 522.5m respectively).

Operating assets under construction consist mainly of machines and installations for an amount of EUR 76.7m
(2021: EUR 77.2m).

Other assets consist of idle assets not in active use, mainly including land plots and buildings.

The Group has entered into capital commitments amounting to EUR 78.1m (2021: EUR 46.7m), related to purchase
of items of property, plant and equipment (note 15).

Borrowing and Guarantee costs of EUR 2.9m were capitalised by the Group in 2022 (2021: EUR 0.6m).

4. Financial fixed assets

Financial fixed assets were as follows:

2022 2021

Investments in affiliates 7.2 56.1
Loans receivable related parties 81 81
Other securities and loans 329 382
Deferred tax assets 49.5 256
Deposits 125 128
Advance payments 18.6 14.2
" Miscellaneous receivables 295 372

2223 192.2
—_—

Investments in affiliates
The Group’s investments in affiliates are included on pages 89-91. SHV Energy is not liable for the debts of these affiliates.

Movements in the investments in affiliates were as follows:

2022
Balance as at 1 January: 563
Changes In carrying amount:
Acquisitions 19.8
Change in consolidation (0.4)
Share in result of participating interests (2.2)
Dividend received @n
Balance as at 31 December: 71.2
—
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Financial fixed assets other than
investments in affiliates

Movements in financial fixed assets, excluding the investments in affiliates, were as follows:

Loans receivable Other securlties Deferred Other Total
related parties and loans tax assets

Balance as at
1 January 2022:
Carrying amount 81 38.2 25.6 64.2 136.1
Changes in
carrying amount:
Redemption - - - () ©on
Change in consclidation - - 58 (0.2) 56
Additions - 31 - n8 14.9
Disposals - (8.3) - (14.6) (229)
Inflation corrections - - - 21 ral
Reclassification to current .
assets or liabilties (b 13 12
Recognised in income . . 83 a2 7
statement
Recognised in reserves as N _ 105 - 105
result of hedge accounting
Translation differences - - (20) as G4
Total changes - (5.3) 23.9 (3.6) 15.0
Balance as at
31 December 2022:
Carrylng amount 8.1 329 49.5 60.6 1511

Loans receivable related parties

The loans receivable related parties relate mainly to outstanding loans to PitPoint LNG B.V., amounting to

EUR 6.7m (2021: EUR 6.7m) and SHV Nederland B.V., amounting to EUR 1.1m (2021: EUR 1.1m). The fixed
interest varies between 0.25% and 5% and the average remaining term is 2 to 5 years. No collateral applies to
these financing agreements and no repayment schedule has been agreed (except repayment at maturity date).
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Other securities and loans

Other securities mainly relate to government bonds, required to be held in Italy, amounting to EUR 21.7m
(2021: EUR 20.9m) and investments in start-up activities in renewables of EUR 9.6m (2021: EUR 15.5m).
Regarding securities intended to be held for the long term, the fair value of these securities is estimated to be
in line with their book value.

Deferred tax assets
The deferred tax assets related to
unused tax credits and unused tax losses carry forward.

are mainly iated with pension liabilities,

Total gross amount of unused tax losses carry forward which have not been included in the valuation and no deferred
tax asset has been recognised amounts to EUR 328.1m (2021: EUR 240.2m).

Deferred tax assets related to deductible temporary differences to be reversed within one year, amount to EUR 19.2m
(2021: EUR 8.9m). It is expected that EUR 5.7m (2021: EUR 1.7m) of the deferred tax assets related to tax losses
carry forward will be offset within one year.

Other
As at 31 December 2022, other receivables, including deposits, advance p: and
mainly relate to:

+ Deposits amounting to EUR 12.5m (2021: EUR 12.8m) are mainly concentrated in Brazil (related to court
proceedings: EUR 8.1m in 2022), China and France (part of rent arrangements: EUR 1.9m and EUR 0.8m
respectively), India (expansion project: EUR 0.7m);

* Advance payments include amounts for prepaid rent and leases of EUR 7.2m (2021: EUR 6.1m) and
autogas (LPG) stations in Turkey, amounting to EUR 4.5m (2021: EUR 3.3m);

* Mi iva include a long hedging i of EUR 2.4m (2021: EUR 12.8m),
along: i related todi of Balcas (eam-out) amounting to EUR 13.6m (2021: EUR 15.5m),
long-term trade receivables in Brazil of EUR 5.9m (2021: EUR 3.8m) and a long-term tax refund in Italy of
EUR 3.4m (2021: EUR 3.4m) and a surplus related to Calor Teoranta pension plan of EUR 1.0m (2021: nil).

5. Inventories

2022 2021

Trading inventory 378.3 3829
Raw materials and packaging 131 12.4
Prepayments on inventories 73 10.2
Other 324 250
4311 4305

Less: Provision for obsolescence 2.4) 2.4)
428.7 428.1
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There are no inventories for which the carrying amount is valued above net realisable value at the balance sheet
date. The net reali value has been di ined based on market prices as per balance sheet date.

‘The cost of inventories (‘cost of goods sold"), recognised as an expense, amounts to EUR 9,007.6m (2021: EUR 6,516.9m)
and is reported in the consolidated profit and loss account on the line ‘Third party costs’.

Raw materials and packaging mainly relate to our cylinder manufacturing units in Turkey amounting to
EUR 9.6m (2021: EUR 6.2m) and Brazil amounting to EUR 1.5m (2021: EUR 4.4m).

Other inventory consists of non-gas inventory, mostly including spare parts and consumables held at distributing
companies, and raw materials and i-finished products at istributi; ies mainly in Great Britain

in the amount of EUR 8.3m (2021: EUR 6.8m), Brazil in the amount of EUR 5.2m (2021: EUR 4.9m), Poland in the
amount of EUR 2.9m (2021: EUR 1.6m) and Bangladesh in the amount of EUR 3.4m (2021: nil).

Provision for obsolescence mainly relates to slow moving (non-trading) inventory in Poland and France.

6. Trade and other receivables

2022 2021
Trade receivables 851.7 864.2
Related party receivables 129 ) 86
Financial accruals from related parties 4.4 31
Sales tax receivable 76.9 55.7
Prepaid expenditures 23.4 413
Income tax and similar taxes receivable 3.4 9.7
Other taxes 158 170
Advances to suppliers 239 40.4
Other receivables 51.0 233
Receivables for disposed Group company - 10.6
Accrued income 211 30.8

1084.5 11047
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables (611) (60.8)

1,023.4 1,043.9
——

All receivables have an estimated maturity of shorter than one year.

Other taxes mainly include tax credits available in Brazil of EUR 7.1m (2021: EUR 3.0m) and an indirect tax credit in
Italy of EUR 5.9m (2021: EUR 11.2m).

7. Securities

Securities relate to China for an amount of EUR 15.5m (2021: EUR 6.4m). These securities represent investments
in structured deposit products at banks with floating interest rates, committed principal and advance redemption
limitations.
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8. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
Banks accounts (credit balances) 1599 98.8
In transit/cheques n6 9.4
Cash funds 0.3 0.2
In-house bank accounts (credit balances) 1243 . 2389
Money market investments 56.3 a7

352.4 389.0

Cash and cash equivalents are at SHV Energy’s free disposal. In several countries, transferring cash outside the country
may be deferred or (semi) restricted. This could temporarily result in the cash in these countries being free for disposal
at the local level only.

The Company’s has ised the cash of SHVE and its subsidiaries through SHV

B.V. Interest granted for these in-house bank accounts i at arm’s-length basis: equal to central bank interest (with a minimum
of 0%), including a margin, for both EUR and non-EUR accounts. The in-house bank balances are at the free disposal of the
Company. Please also refer to note 13 Current liabilities showing debit balances of the in-house bank accounts.

Money market investments, such as term deposits for the period under 365 days at balance sheet date, amounting to
EUR 56.3m (2021: EUR 41.7m), mainly related to Turkey, India, and China.

9. Shareholder’s equity

Movements in shareholder’s equity were as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as at 1 January: 1,601.2 1,489.2
Net income 187.2 2520
Dividends (252.0) (164.6)
Acquisition of minority interests (1.6) 10
Movement in put/call options for acquisitions 255 (27.4)
Fair value of cash flow hedges charged directly to equity (158.4) 559
Taxes charged on changes of fair value of cash flow hedges 415 30
Translation differences on foreign operations (14.0) 8.2
Monetary and inflation correction 396 -
Balance as at 31 December 1,469.0 1,601.2
Acquisition of minority interests he goodwill of the isition of the ining shares (10.2%) in

(india) in 2022 as most of the movement in put/call options in 2022 ( lof EUR 27.4m). The p i}
asat 31 December 2022 represent the option to acquire the remaining equity shares in EM3 in 2024 or 2025 (note 37).

For a detailed explanation of the share of the Company in group equity, reference is made to note 35 Shareholder’s equity
in the company financial statements.
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10. Minority interests

Minority interests represent the share of third parties in the shareholders’ net assets of
The movements in minority interests are as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as at 1 January: 298 259
Change in consolidation (4.3) 28
Change in capitat 26 02
Third-party share in net result 100 6.4
Dividend distributions (M.2) (6.)
Translation differences (0.7) 07
Balance as at 31 December: 26.3 29.9

—m

Minority interests mainly reflect the proportional share of third parties in the net value of assets and liabilities
of Primagas in Germany, Liquigas in Malta, Gaspol in Poland and EM3 in Ireland and 4 legal entities in China
‘The changes in consolidations in 2022 represent the acquisition of the remaining shares (10.2%) in SunSource

in India.
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11. Provisions

2022 2021
Liabilities resulting from deposits 184.3 198.4
Pensions 109.8 97.9
Deferred income taxes 916 951
Restructuring 41 22
Claims and other disputes 330 338
Other 385 36.2

Liabilities resulting from deposits

461.3 463.6

The deposits provision represents deposits paid by customers for cylinders and tanks. Movements in deposits provision

can be specified as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as at 1 January: 198.4 199.0
Changes:
Depoasits received during the year 278 18.4
Deposits paid during the year (16.4) (5.2)
Charged and/or released to the profit and loss account (8.9) (10.9)
Change in consolidation 10 (6.8)
Discounting effect 13.2) (0.0)
Translation differences (4.4) 39
Balance as at 31 December: 184.3 198.4

‘The deposit provisions for cylinders and tanks as per 31 December 2022 amount to EUR 143.8m and EUR 40.5m respectively
(2021: EUR 142.6m and EUR 55.8m respectively). Deposits for cylinders are classified as short-term while deposits for ranks
are classified as long-term. The provision expected to be utilised in the subsequent year amounts to EUR 147.2m (2021: EUR
148.2m), provisions to be utilised between one and five years from now amounts to EUR 11.3m (2021: EUR 22.4m). Due to

change in interest rate envil a

i impact has been
(2021: nil) estimated per country based on high quality corporate bonds.

d for long-term isions for tanks in 2022
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Pension provision

‘The pension provision contains the provision for the pension commitments to employees.

Movements in pension provision can be specified as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as at 1 January: 97.9 151.7
Changes:
Addition, charged to the profit and loss account 382 10.9
Utilisation, charged against the provision (8.2) (29.4)
Release, credited to the profit and loss account (240) (37.7)
Discount effect (1.4) (4.0)
Change in cansolidation 06 18
Monetary and inflation correction 9.2 -
Translation differences (2.4) 4.6
Balance as at 31 December: 109.8 97.9
—_—

SHV Energy operates several pension plans consisting of a mixture of defined benefit and defined contribution
schemes. The defined benefit schemes relate both to final and average pay pension plans, some of which are
transferred to company pension funds. Some of the company pension funds are in a deficit situation. This relates
to pension funds in the United Kingdom (‘UK") and Ireland. As at 31 December 2022, provisions were recorded

for the obligations of SHV Energy to provide additional payments due to the low coverage of the pension funds

or the difference between the actual interest rate and the applied discount rate in the pension arrangement.

The administration agreements with the pension funds as with the insured arrangements run in general for one

to five years. Some pension schemes are classified as defined benefit agreements under the Dutch pensions act or
similar foreign acts. The post-employment health benefit scheme for employees in Brazil also qualifies as a defined
benefit and a provision for this commitment is included.

Employees in the UK and Ireland have pension schemes that are structured and operate similarly to the Dutch
pension system. The Calor UK Pension Trust and the Calor Teoranta Pension Scheme are closed for new entrants.
A best estimate of the pension commitments of these foreign schemes is made at the reporting date using the
actuarial projected unit method. The pension funds have had a funding deficit historically and as such have
submitted a recovery plan to their relevant regulatory bodies to restore their capital to the minimum requirements.
‘The recovery plans have been drawn up with due regard for the criteria set by these regulatory bodies and were

b ly app The ies involved have agreed to make additional contributions under the respective
recovery plans.

As at 31 December 2022, the Calor UK Pension Trust had a deficit of GBP 52.9m (2021: GBP 47.7m}. In 2021,a
recovery plan, following the regular tri-annual revaluation, was agreed between the trustees and Calor. The annual
deficit recovery payment to the pension scheme is GBP 15.5m. This will be paid until 2026, unless the deficit is
recovered earlier. As per the reporting date, a provision is included, based on an actuarial calculation, for an
amount of GBP 52.9m (2021: GBP 47.7m). The discount rate is 4.85% (2021: 1.80%). As at 31 December 2022,
the Calor Teoranta Pension Scheme had a surplus limited to EUR 1.0m due to asset ceiling (2021: a deficit of

EUR 2.6m). There is an annual EUR 3.1m deficit recovery plan funding arrangement agreed between Calor Teoranta,
the Trustees and the Pensions Authority which will end in 2024. As per the reporting date a surplus amount,

based on an actuarial ion, is d as part of the mi i (note 4} amount of

EUR 1.0m (2021: provision of EUR 2.6m). The discount rate is 3.6% (2021: 0.7%).
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In 2022, a rozal of EUR 25.7m was charged to the profit and loss account (2021: EUR 29.8m release) with respect to the
Calor pension plan (in both UK and Iretand), isting of regular ibuti and of the
‘The deficit recovery payment of GBP 15.5m in 2022 is the short-term part of the employee benefits provision.

Brazil provides a health insurance plan to their employees as part of their total employee benefits. Both retired

and/or former emp are able i icipating in this health i plan if certain itions are met.
This health insurance plan results in a liability for future rights of the employees. As per the reporting date, a provision
is included, based on an actuarial calculation, for an amount of EUR 18.2m (2021: EUR 15.6m).

Provision for deferred income taxes

The provision for deferred income taxes comprises the tax effect of the taxable temporary differences between values

recorded for financial reporting purposes and for tax purposes. Timing differences mainly result from differences in the

valuation of tangible and intangible fixed assets. These are driven by fair value adjustments resulting from acquisition
(‘purchase price jon') and the of tangible fixed assets for tax purposes.

Fi ication of hedge ing for financial i with changes in fair value recognised in equity

results in deferred tax charges.

Movements in deferred income tax provision can be specified as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as at 1 January: 953 83.3
Changes:
Recognised in profit and loss account, net n.2 (.6)
Recognised in reserves as result of hedge accounting (30.6) 13)
Change in consotidation 8.4 .7y
Deferred withholding tax [(2)] 0.7
Monetary and inflation correction 9.4 -
Translation differences .8) 13
Balance as at 31 December: 9.6 95.1

Deferred income taxes with a residual term of one year or less amount to EUR 12.6m (2021: EUR 41.9m).

Provision for restructuring

Provision for restructuring include costs related to certain compensation to staff and costs that are directly associated
with plans to execute specific activities and the closure of facilities. A detailed plan exists for all restructuring
provisions and the implementation of the plan has either started or the plan has been announced before issuance
of the Annual Report.

An amount of EUR 3.6m (2021: EUR 2.1m) of the restructuring provision is due within one year. In 2022, a net
expense of EUR 1.5m (2021: EUR 1.3m) has been recognised in the profit and loss account and has been fully
included in staff expenses.
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Provision for claims and other disputes

‘The provision in respect of claims and other disputes relates to disputes involving the Company and/or its group
companies resulting from the normal course of business. In consultation with in-house and outside legal counsels,
management regularly evaluates the relevant facts and circumstances of those claims. SHV Energy has global liability
insurance with a self-insured retention and a maximum pay-out level. Although the outcome of these disputes cannot
be predicted with certainty, and these are also contested by the Company and/or its subsidiaries, management believes
that, based upon legal advice and information received, the provisions reflect the best estimate about the outcome of
the claims. These provisions are reviewed periodically and adjusted, if necessary, to the extent that cash-outflow of
related proceedings is probable. Since the ultimate disposition of asserted claims and proceedings cannot be predicted
with certainty, final settlement can differ from this estimate and could require revisions to the estimated provision.
This could have a material adverse effect on consolidated balance sheet and consolidated results of operations for a
particular year.

Movements in provision for claims and other disputes can be specified as follows:

2022 2021
Batance as at 1 January: 338 227
Changes:
Addition, charged to the profit and loss account 5.1 15.5
Utilisation, charged against the provision (2.3) -
Release, credited to the profit and loss account (4.5) (4.9)
Change in consolidation 22) -
Monetary and inflation correction 13 -
Discount effect on -
Translation differences 9 0.5

Balance as at 31 December: 33.0 33.8

A major part of the provision for claims consists of various exposures associated with tax, general business risks and contract
risks as well as labour cases in mainly Brazil for an amount of EUR 20.5m (2021: EUR 17.5m).
Provisions are expected to be long-term unless otherwise stated.

The provisions are expected to be used for an amount of EUR 11.8m (2021: EUR 15.2m) in the subsequent year and for an
amount of EUR 20.6m (2021: EUR 18.6m) between one and five years.

Other provisions

Other provisions relate contracts ing to EUR 2.1m (2021: EUR 2.9m), gas tanks /networks (deferred
maintenance, accrued revenues and legal, ions) to EUR 15.4m (2021: EUR 17.2m) and
other liabilities of EUR 20.1m (2021: EUR 16.1m).
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12. Non-current liabilities

2022 2021
Debts to financial institutions 219.2 232.6
Finance lease obligations 3.3 4.7
Debts to shareholder 3631 263.4

585.6 500.7
——
Debis to financial institutions are denominated in EUR (EUR 16.9m), GBP (EUR 43.5m), INR (EUR 51.7m) and
BRL (EUR 106.5m) as per year-end 2022.

Debis to shareholder are denominated in EUR (EUR 206.3m) and GBP (EUR 169.8m) as of year-end 2022 (including a
EUR 13.0m current portion).

Non-current liabilities per 31 December 2022 can be further analysed as follows:

Repayment obligation in the years

Total 2023%) 2024 - 2027 After 2027
Debts to financial institutions 219.2 - 1772 420
Finance lease obligations 33 - 25 0.8
Debts to shareholder () 363.1 - 2310 1321
585.6 - 410.7 174.9

(*) Note: excluding the portion presented as part of current liabilities per 31 December 2022 (note 13).
Movements in non-current liabilities were as follows:

Financial institutions  Shareholder

Carrying amount as at 1 January 2022 2373 263.4
Changes:

New loans 15.6 1483
Repayments 3.0) (26.3)
Reclassification to current liabilities (23.5) -
Translation differences 9.2 (9.3)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 235.6 376.1
Current as at 31 December 2022 azn -
Non-current as at 31 December 2022 2225 376.1

Collareral amounting to EUR 49.0m (2021: EUR 57.0m) has been provided for the debt mentioned above. This collateral
consists of:

* Mortgage collateral on land and buildings;
*» Mortgage collateral on total assets.
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Debt to financial institutions

For the loans obtained (including current part and finandial leases), an amount of EUR 316.1m has a fixed interest rate
ranging from 1.2% to 26.78%. Several loans amounting to EUR 76.0m are subject to variable interest. The weighted
average interest rate in 2022 is 9.18%.

Debts to shareholder

‘The debt to shareholder relates to loans received from SHV Nederland B.V., primarily to finance acquisitions.
These loans rank pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated liabilities, other than to the extent
privileged by law. The loans amounting to EUR 363.0m bear a fixed interest rate ranging from 1% to 4.2% per
annum (weighted average interest rate of 2.9%).

13. Current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments mainly consist of hedge accounting liability of EUR 41.3m, put/call option
EUR 7.9m (2021:EUR 47.6m), and fair value of financial derivatives of EUR 15.6m (2021: EUR 4.4m).

2022 2021
Trade payables 680.1 6726
Debits to financial institutions 216.3 ne
In-house bank accounts (debit balances) 3818 135.4
Current part of non-current liabilities 260 131
Received prepayments on orders 96.4 84.0
Related party payables 16.6 15.6
Financial accruals to related parties 81 70
Income tax liability 279 n.6
Other taxes and social security contributions due 595 54.9
Pension liabilities 1.5 0.4
Other liabilities 106.9 108.2
Accruals and deferred income 104.1 101.7

1,725.2 1,316.4
—_—

All current liabilities have an estimated maturity shorter than one year. The carrying values of the recognised current
liabilities approximate their respective fair values, given the short maturities of the positions.

Debts to financial institutions include debit balances on bank accounts and short-term credit facilities. Debit balances
on bank accounts amount to EUR 59.1m (2021: EUR 38.6m). Short-term credit facilities and current part of
non-current liabilities amount to EUR 169.3m (2021: EUR 73.3m), exist in Bangladesh, India, Turkey, Brazil and

the USA. Interest rate is fixed or floating and ranging from 5.0% to 14.8% (weighted average interest rate of 10.2%).
Current part of financial leases amount to EUR 1m with a fixed and average interest rate of 0.3%

Other liabilities include EUR 29.5m (2021: EUR 17.5m) due to suppliers for the purchase of operational fixed assets
and EUR 77.6m (2021: EUR 90.7m) of various payables. The latter mainly consist of personnel-related payables of
EUR 50.9m (2021: EUR 53.7m) and non-gas payables of EUR 15.1m (2021: EUR 23.0m), spread across various countries.

Other taxes and social security contributions due

2022 2021

Sales tax and VAT 17.5 173
Social security contributions and wage tax 36.9 370
Withholding tax 18 0.6
Other taxes 33 -
59.5 54.9
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14. Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks. These are categorised as market risk (such as interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk and commeodity price risk) and credit and liquidity risk. These risks are inherent to the way the
Group operates as a multinational with a large number of. i ies in various ies. The Group's
overall risk management policy is to identify, assess, and, if necessary, mitigate these financial risks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group makes use of derivative financial
instruments to mitigate the risks associated with certain financial exposures. The Company trades in financial
derivatives for managing risks on supply, group terminals and business unit retails optimisation purposes only.

In line with the general SHV governance, the capitalisation and funding of subsidiaries is a joint effort of both
SHV Energy and the corporate treasury and tax department of SHV. Decisions regarding the debt-to-equity rario are

based on various aspects, including mini regulatory i and the flexibility to change the structure.
Except for withholding rax on dividend and interest in certain countries, the Group has no restrictions in paying

i divi or in repaying i pany loans.

The i ies are primarily ible for i ifying and ing financial risks, especially in relation
to ions in foreign i ities and credit risk for non-financial counter-parties. Within the
boundaries set forth by the Company’s Risk Policy, the i ies execute appropriate

foreign currency risk management activities. Derivative financial transactions with third parties to manage
fluctuations in commedity prices are only executed through Supply & Risk Management (S&RM) in Paris.

S&RM is responsible for reporting to the Risk Management Board on the Group's exposure to a number of financial
risks: predominantly, commaodity price risk. S&RM is allowed to take a maximum fixed price position, expressed in
KmT which is monitored on a daily basis.

The fair value of most of the financial instruments recognised on the balance sheet, including receivables, securities,
cash and cash equivalents and current liabilities, is approximately equal to their carrying amount. The fair value of
the other financial instruments recognised in the balance sheet can be specified as follows:

2022 2021
Falr value Carrying Fair value Carrying
amount amount
Financlal fixed assets
Participating interests N2 n2 56.1 56.1
s:rct?gg:tlii;\sg’:l??efrests 70 70 70 70
Trade investments 4.5 45 36 3.6
Other securities 218 218 210 210
Receivables from shareholder 3] 11 11 11
Other receivables ns.7 15.7 103.4 103.4
Non-current liablilities
Debts to financial institutions (219.2) (219.2) (237.3) (237.3)
Debts to shareholder (363.1) (363.1) (263.4) (263.4)
(361.0) (361.0) (308.5) (308.5)
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Market risk

Commodity price risk

‘The company is exposed to the risk of ions in the prevailing ity prices of the gas products it sells.

It therefore enters into derivative trades on a regular basis to minimise any negative impact from volatility where a
natural hedge through commercial pricing is not achievable. The Company’s risk management governance framework
ensures thar hedging is executed in line with the business (including storage) and customers’ requirements.

The derivatives as per 31 December 2022 can be specified as follows:

Volumes Maturity Market Value Charge to P&L
Current assets
Propane 694,483 mT 2023 (21.6) 176
Butane 1200 mT 2023 0.2 on
Brent crude oil 795,000 BBL 2023 151 02
Naphtha (57.200) mT 2023 (20.3) (20.5)
Natural gas 73704 MWHr 2023 (1.4) 1.4)
Freight 444,000 mT 2023 - -
Other 27577 mT 2023 Q.0) (1.0)
Sub total (29.0) 5.2
Non-current assets
Propane 90.903 mT 2024 4.8 0.3
Brent crude oil (127.,000) mT 2024 (4.6) -
Natural gas 27868 MWHr 2024 01 0.1
Sub total 03 0.4
Total (28.7) {4.8)
Note: mT is metric Ton, BBL is Barrel and MWHr is Meg. Hours. Positions are p net.

The market value of commodity price derivatives as per year-end amounts to negative amount of EUR 28.7m (2021:
EUR 141.1m), of which EUR 24.0m is initially recognised in the revaluation reserve (2021: EUR 118.2m) gross of
associated deferred tax. The Group applied cash flow hedge ing for a signi part of the

portfolio.
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Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, and by ings that are d i in a currency

other than the respective functional currencies of Group entities. Foreign currency hedging activities are carried out

to mitigate the risk that the net cash flows are adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. Foreign currency
transaction risks within SHV Energy mostly relate to the purchase of gas in US dollars and sales of gas in local currency.
‘This foreign currency exposure is managed by means of derivative financial instruments.

The group entities hedge receivables or payables that are not denominated in their functional currency. Each derivative
used for exposure management must be directly linked to an existing lying open position. D
are only used to manage the economic hedging of pending positions and not for trading or other speculative purposes.

For an overview of the significant exchange rates applied, see note 26.

Foreign currency translation risk

SHV Energy is exposed to foreign currency translation risks arising from investments in countries that use a currency
other than the Euro and are therefore dependent on the economic and political stability of those countries.

These risks include long-term loans to foreign subsidiaries, net income and retained earnings of these foreign
operations. The translation exposure resulting from net investments in equity of foreign operations is not hedged.
The Group measures the translation exposure by the total amount of the capital invested, per foreign currency,
reduced by long-term loans in the same foreign currency. Furthermore, SHV Energy uses foreign currency exchange
swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps to further reduce the exposure to translation risks stemming from net
investments in long-term loans denominated in foreign currency.

The translation exposure for foreign currencies is as follows:

In millions of euro Capltal Invested Exposure
2022 2021 2022 2021
Bangladesh taka (BDT) 451 - 45.1 -
Brazilian real (BRL) 1733 124.7 173.3 1247
British pound (GBP) 1380 1275 138.0 1275
Polish zloty (PLN) 1027 912 102.7 912
US dollar ) (USD) 1577 169.3 90.5 109.8
Turkish lira (TRY) 591 352 671 43.2
Chinese renminbi yuan (CNY) 929 9.7 92.9 9.7
Indian rupee (NR) 109.4 101.8 109.4 101.8
Singapore dollar (SGD) 00 0.0 0.0 0.0
Thai baht (THB) 0.0 01 0.0 01
Bosnian marka (BAM) 20 19 20 1.9
Czech koruna (CZK) 103 85 103 8.5
Danish krone (DKK) 54 53 5.4 5.3
Croatian kuna (HRK) 81 10.0 81 100
Swedish krone (SEK) 222 131 222 131
Total 926.2 780.3 867.0 728.8

A 10% strengthening of the main foreign currencies (BRL, GBP, PLN, USD, TRY, CNY, INR) against the Euro at the
reporting date would have increased equity by EUR 77.4m (2021: EUR 69.0m). A 10% weakening of these same main
foreign currencies against the euro at the reporting date would have had the equal but opposite effect. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant,
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Foreign currency transaction risk

At 31 December 2022, the Group was part of several foreign exchange derivative contracts used to hedge future
foreign currency transactions. The notional amount of such contracts, accounted for by applying the cost price
hedge accounting method, totalled EUR 531.6m (2021: EUR 474.2m). This notional amount related to US dollars
(contracts mainly fixed in British pounds, Euro, Polish Zloty and Turkish Lira) and EUR (contracts fixed in British
pounds, Turkish Lira and Swedish Krone). The net market value of the ing foreign exch, ivati
related to foreign exchange transaction risk hedging amounted EUR 12.7m (2021: EUR 2.5m).

The derivatives as per 31 December 2022 can be specified as follows:

In millions of euro Notlonal amount Maturity Net market value

US dollar transactions

British pound (GBP) 2238 2023 10.7
Euro (EUR) 2424 2023-2024 21
Polish zloty (PLN) 171 2023 0.8
Indian rupee (INR) 6.6 2023 10
Swedish krone (SEK) 3.3 2023 [(Q)]
Danish krone (DKK) 17 2023 (0.3)
Turkish lira (TRY) 209 2023 01

EUR transactions

US dollar (USD) 73.7 2027 (8.3)
Swedish Krone (SEK) 14.0 2032 (D)}
British pound (GBP) ni 2023 (0.6)
Turkish Lira (TRY) n 2023 (0.6)

SEK transactions

US dollar (USD) 3.4 2023 -
Total 6291 4.7
—_—

Interest rate risk

‘The Group is partly financed with interest-bearing debt as disclosed in notes 12 and 13. SHV Energy has agreed fixed
interest rates for the loans with its related parties. Loans with external banks mainly consist of fixed interest rate
loans, although part of these borrowings are at variable interest rates, resulting in a cash flow interest rate risk.

The interest rate risk is presented by the interest payment schedule as per 31 December 2022 as presented betow:

Repayment obligation

Total 1yearorless 1-5 years More than

5 years

Fixed interest rate loans receivable 1 - 11 -
Fixed interest rate loans payable (692.2) (105.8) (41.5) (174.9)
Variable interest rate loans payable (75.9) (75.9) - -
Net interest position (767.0) (181.7) (410.4) 174.9)

Should the interest rates of variable interest rate loans rise by 1% as of 31 December 2022, and leaving all other
assumptions unchanged, interest expenses would rise by EUR 0.8m (2021: EUR 1.3m).
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Credit and liquidity risk

Credit risk

Credit risk arises principally from the Company loans and receivables presented under financial fixed assets, trade
and other receivables, cash and the positive fair value of derivatives. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk
of default and the risk that the creditworthiness of the counterparty will deteriorate, and concentration risks.

The maximum credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of each financial instrument as reflected on the

balance sheet.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is d mainly by the indivi ics of each customer.

However, also i the f the Group's customer base, including the default risk

of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk.

The credit risk per customer, and the number of customers differs per country. In monitoring customer credit risk,
are grouped ding to their credit , including whether they are a legal entity or an

individual, whether they are a wholesale or retail customer, the geographic location, service, age profile, maturity

and whether they have had financial difficulties in the past.

‘The Group has established credit policies under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness
before the payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. This review includes external ratings, when
available, and, in some cases, bank references. Purchase limits are established for customers. These represent the
maximum open amount allowed without requiring approval from the management; these limits are reviewed
periodically. As the sales market differs significantly per country, there is no signi ion of

with a single customer and ically, there is no ion risk.

SHV Energy has credit insurance in a number of countries to further mitigate the credit risk posed by customers.

The Group has an exposure to reputable banks that have been carefully selected and monitored, and credit limits are
temporarily reduced in the event of uncertainty. The Group actively monitors the counterparty risk of banks used,
bank balances are ined and lidated into a number and cash pools are used whenever possible.
Generally, cash and cash deposits and derivatives are held with banks with a sufficient credit rating.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that SHV Energy will encounter difficulties in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial and contingent liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Management’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions.

The Group’s cash position and treasury function are monitored by using liquidity budgets. Management ensures that
the cash position is sufficient to meet SHV Energy’s financial obligations towards creditors.

SHV Holdings N.V. committed the in-house bank facility till June 2023 for an amount of EUR 125.0m and USD 160.0m.
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15. Off-balance sheet assets and liabilities

Capital commitments

The Group has capital commitments of EUR 78.1m (2021: EUR 46.7m) for the construction or purchase of fixed
assets of which EUR 57.6m is due within one year.

Long-term financial commitments

Long-term unconditional commitments have been entered into in respect of operating leases (including rent).
The operating leasing costs are recognised on a straight-line basis in the profit and loss account over the lease period.

The remaining term can be specified as follows:

2022
Due within one year 380
Due between two and five years 905
Due after five years 95.2
223.7

In 2022, a total amount of EUR 34.3m (2021: EUR 23.7m) was paid under operating leases and long-term leasehold
commitments.

Guarantees

In the normal course of business, certain group companies issued guarantees totalling to EUR 922.6m (2021: EUR
696.5m). Furthermore, banks have provided n behalf of group i isions have been made
insofar as claims from guarantees given are probable.

Furthermore, the Group’s entity in Italy has factored trade receivable to the banks with recourse. Adequate provisions
and accruals to cover the financial consequences have been made when required.

Significant increase in issued in 2022 lained by for S&RM suppliers and trade line guarantees
provided by SHV Energy N.V. to support higher headroom for trading. Bid bond and supplier guarantees for operations in
Turkey are provided by extemal local banks.

Claims and litigation

The Company and/or its group companies have received various claims that are contested by it/them. Although the
outcome of these disputes cannot be predicted with any certainty, it is assumed - partly on the basis of legal
advice - that these will not have any material impacton the i financial position.

At this point in time, we cannot estimate any additional amount of loss or range of loss in excess of the recorded
provisions with sufficient certainty to allow the recognition of this amount.

Other off-balance sheet liabilities

In 2021, a recovery plan was agreed for Calor UK Pension Trust to make annual payments of GBP 15.5m until 2026,
the recovery plan will be re-evaluated in 2024. For Calor Teoranta Pension Scheme, a recovery plan was agreed to
make annual payments of EUR 3.1m until 2024, Other off-balance sheet liabilities have been entered into in respect
of purchase agreements and other long-term commitments. The outstanding amount is mainly related to Turkey’s
IT service and transportation (EUR 5.7m), Head office’s purchase agreement relate to lease cars and IT services
(EUR 9.6m).
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16. Net sales

The of net sales by jcal region is as follows:

2022 2021

America
176

America
12363

European Union European Union
49944 1 4,056.7
Asia (
Asia 2 19216
27374 N
Rest of Europe Rest of Europe
17237 13851
Net Sales to third partles Net Sales to third partles
Totat: 11,227.1 Total: 8,599.7
2022 2021
Net Sales to third parties n,2271 8,599.7
Transactions with other subsidiaries of SHV Holdings NV. 95 22
Net sales 1,236.6 8,601.9

Net sales to third parties amounted to EUR 11,227.1m (2021: EUR 8,599.7m), of which EUR 11,182.4m
(2021: EUR 8,576.6m) is recognised outside the Netherlands.

2022 2020
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 10,9338 84245
Goods and services transferred over time 3028 1774
Net sales 1,236.6 8,601.9
17. Third party costs
2022 2021
Cost of raw materials and consumables including:
Cost of goods sold Q) (6,576.0)
Cost of raw materials (48.2) (99.7)
Cost of outsourced work and other costs including:
Other third-party costs (72) (21.2)
Cost of outsourced work (10.3) (6.5)

(9,176.8) (6,703.5)
—_—
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18. Salaries and wages

2022 2021

Salaries, wages and bonuses (493.6) (463.2)
Social security premiums (96.3) 87.7)
Pension premiums (42. 16.8
(632.4) (534.0)

—————

Pension premiums include a change in pension liabilities in Great Britain and Ireland of EUR 25.7m (2021: EUR 29.8m).

During the 2022 financial year, the average number of staff employed by SHV Energy, converted into full-time
equivalents, amounted to 16,315 people (2021: 16,269 people), of which 16,156 (2021: 16,083) were employed
outside the Netherlands. This staffing level (average number of staff) can be divided into the following geographical

regions:
2022 2021

America America European Union
4,974 4373 3523
7 European Union
( \ 3.275 f \

—_— b Asia Rest of Europe
Asia 2 5.202 4 37

Rest of Evrope
477 4 3,295

Total: 16,315 Total: 16,269
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19. Other operating expenses

2022 2021

Building related expenses (130.5) 0127.0)
Sales promotion (44.4) 1.7
IT (77.3) (65.8)
Insurance 14.7) (16.4)
Advisory (438) 35.7)
Temporary labour (56.2) (53.3)
Travel and representation (23.0) auy
Filling (20.8) (13.8)
Transport (238.5) (2226)
Repair and maintenance (83.0) (87.8)
Taxes and duties 3.4) [QE))
Other staff expenses 413) (32.4)
Other expenses 13.0) (26.6)
(799.9) (746.1)

Other expenses in 2022 include a profit on the divestment of filling plants and offices in China of EUR 6.9m (2021:
EUR 4.4m).

20. Amortisation and depreciation

2022 2021
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets (see note 2) (39.2) (28.6)
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (see note 3) (236.4) (218.7)
impairments (see notes 2, 3 and 4) (5.5) (&)}
(2811
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21. Exceptional items recognised in _ 23. Interest expenses and similar charges
profit and loss

2022 2021
items were 0 in profit and loss as salaries and wages, other operating expenses,
and iation. Signi ional items are specified per category below based on internal Loans granted by financial institutions (19.8) (10.5)
management information if such category exceeds EUR 1m or have been presented in past period: Current account overdraft facilities (3.5 @n
Loans from shareholder/participants 05.3) (4.9)
2022 2021 Change in fair value of instruments measured at fair value, net (10.1) -
Credit and commitment fees (3.2) (0.3)
o result Items 372.3 338.4 Bank charges and cost of loans (6.4) (4.6)
Foreign exchange losses, net (4.2) (9.0)
Claims and other disputes (4.8) (5.3) Other (4.9 G
Pensions (25.7) 278 _—_—
Restructuring (5.3) 12.7)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 79 187 e een
Impairments - (3.5)
Divestments of business activities 20 4.4 24. TaX on result
Exceptional items (25.9) 29.4 ‘The components of the tax charge are as follows:
- 2022 2001
Operating result 346.4 367.8
- Current income taxes (101.9) @75)
Deferred income taxes (29) (22.4)
22. Interest income and similar income e —
Income tax expense (104.8) (99.9)
2022 2021 -
e T e o o et e
Loans to shareholder/participants 32 10 of EUR 90.1m (2021: EUR 23.6m). Refer to nate 4 Financial fixed assets.The applicable weighted average tax rate
Deposits and other 12.4 6.9 is 27.6% (2021: 24.3%), whereby the weighted average tax rate has been calculated based on the results before
Dividend income 1.0 01 taxes in the various tax jurisdicti The tax expense ised in the profit and loss account for 2022 amounts to
Change in fair vatue of instruments measured at fair value, net - 96 EUR 104.8m, or 34.7% of the result before tax (2021: 27.9%).
Discount effect for present value of provisions 175 40
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The numerical reconciliation between the nominal weighted average tax rate and the effective tax rate is as follows:

26. Currency rates

2022 2021 The following rates to euro have been used in computing the principal foreign currency conversions:
Result before tax 302.0 3583 2022 201
Average Year-end Average Year-end
Nominal weighted average tax rate (83.4) (87.1)
Effect of permanent differences an on -
1 Brazilian real (BRL) 018 018 0.16 016
Valuation of temporary differences outside of profit and loss 0l 08 "
1 British pound (GBP) 117 113 116 119
No DTA recognised for tax losses carry forward (8.5) (8.4) -
1 Polish zloty (PLN) 0.21 o2 0.22 0.22
Additional credits / taxes on income and equity (0.9) 2.7)
1 US dollar UsSD) 0.95 0.94 0.85 0.88
Withholding taxes and taxes on income from investments in affiliates (1.3) 0.7) ——
1 Turkish lira (TRY) 0.05 0.05 010 0.07
Adjustments prior years and true-ups 0.3 Qa7 - —
_— 100 Chinese renminbi yuan  (CNY) 142 13.50 130 13.87
Income tax expense (104.8) (99.9) 100 Indian rupee (INR) 121 13 114 119
1 Bosnian marka (BAM) 0.51 0.51 0.51 0.51
The income tax amount directly recognised in equity in 2022 is mainly related to hedge accounting and amounts to 100 Crech ke v n
acredit of EUR 30.6m (2021: charge of EUR 13.1m). Refer to note 9 Shareholder’s equity. zech koruna €z .07 ah 390 402
100 Danish krone (DKK) 13.44 13.45 13.45 13.45
100 Croatian kuna (HRK) 13.27 13.27 13.28 13.31
25. Cash flow statement 100 Swedisn krons (s s 557 56 a7
The consolidated cash flow statement provides an analysis of the changes in cash and cash equivalents (note 8) 1 Singapore dollar (SGD) 0.69 070 0.63 0.65
and has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method comparing the balance sheets as at 1 January and 100 Thai baht (THB) 271 272 264 266
31 December of the respective year. Liquidity in the consolidated cash flow statements consists of money market 100 Philippine pesos PPy 174 168 72 173

investments, credit balance of in-house bank accounts and other cash and cash equivalents (note 8). The money
market i are consi liquid i as these are directly convertible and the cash that would 100 Bangladesh taka (B0T) 102 091 0.99 102
be received is subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Most of the movements in the cash flow can be iled to the hedules for the balance

sheet items concerned. In some cases, the movements in balance sheet items as presented in the cash flow statement 2 7' Tra n sa Ct| ons WIt h rel ated pa rtl es

differ from the changes between the balance sheets at the beginning and the end of the period. These movements
concern the following significant differences:

Transactions with related parties are assumed when a relationship exists between the Company and a natural person or
entity that is affiliated with the Company. This includes, amongst others, the relationship between the Company and its
2022 idiaries, sh , directors and key T) ions are transfers of resources, services or
obligations, regardless of whether anything has been charged. There have been no transactions with related parties that
were not on a commercial basis. In its normal course of business, the Company buys and sells goods and services from and
to various related parties in which the Company has an interest. These transactions are conducted at arm’s length and are

‘Operating working capital

Balance at 1 January 416.2 subject to conditions that typically govern ales and purchase ions with third parties.
Balance at 31 December 3791
H 3
Balance sheet changes (37.1) 28- AUd 1 tOl’ S feeS
Adjustments: Regarding the statement of auditor’s fees, SHV Energy applies the exemption as referred to in Article 382a,
) Part 3, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
Translation differences and other non-cash adjustments 151
Changes in caonsolidation scope (including acquisitions and disposats) 278
29. Subsequent events
Total net change In working caplita) according to cash flow statement (5.8)

No material subsequent events occurred.
The amount of cash and cash equivalents (excluding in-house bank accounts) attributable to minority interests

amounts to EUR 2.6m (2021: EUR 4.3m).
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Company financial
statements

Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

(Before proposed profit appropriation)

in millions of euro Note 2022 2021
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets 30 395 221
Tangible fixed assets 31 16 20
Financial fixed assets 32 17059 1.658.9
17470 16830
Current assets
Receivables 33 38.4 298
Cash and cash equivalents 34 1.6 75
40.0 37.3
1,7872.0 1,720.3
Shareholder’s equity 35
Issued and paid-up capital 725 72.5
Share premium reserve 729.0 729.0
Foreign currency
translation reserve (3518) (338.3)
Other legal reserves 98.3 190.3
Other reserves 733.8 695.7
Unappropriated result 187.2 252.0
1,469.0 1,601.2
Provisions 36 36 38
Non-current liabllities 37 1483 -
Current tiabllities 38 166.1 ns.3
1,787.0 1,720.3

The notes 30 to 44 are an integral part of these company financial statements.
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Company profit and loss account 2022

in millions of euro Note 2022 2021
Share of result of participating interests, after tax 42 2268 280.4
Other income and expenses, after tax (39.6) (28.4)
Net result 187.2 252.0

The notes 30 to 44 are an integral part of these company financial statements.

Notes to the 2022 Company
financial statements

General

The company financial statements are part of the 2022 statutory financial statements of SHV Energy N.V.

(‘the Company’). The financial information of the Company is included in the consolidated financial statements.
For this reason, in accordance with Section 402, Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code, the company profit and loss
account exclusively state the share of the result of participating interests after rax and the other results after tax.

In 50 far as no further explanation is provided for items in the company balance sheet and the company profit and
loss account, please refer to the notes to the consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss account.

Accounting policies

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
Foran ion of the il inciples used in the of the company financial statements, the
policies for valuation of the assets and liabilities and for determining the result, as well as for the notes to the
various company assets and liabilities and the results, reference is made to the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, unless stated otherwise.

Participating interests in group companies

Participating interests in group companies are accounted for in the company financial statements according to the
equity accounting method on the basis of net asset value. For details, we refer to the accounting policy for financial
fixed assets in the consolidated financial statements.

Share of result from participating interests

Income from participating interests concerns the Company’s share of the profit or loss of these participating
interests. Results on transactions involving the transfer of assets and liabilities berween the Company and its
participating interests, and mutually between icipating interests are eli
they can be considered as not realised.

to the extent that

Corporate income tax

‘The Company is part of the fiscal unity headed by SHV Holdings N.V. The Company recognises the portion of
corporate income tax that it would owe as an independent tax payer, taking into account the specific rules
applicable to fiscal unities.

Settlement within the fiscal unity between the Company and its subsidiaries takes place through current
account positions.
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30. Intangible fixed assets

Movements in intangible fixed assets were as follows:

Goodwill Software Total
Balance as at 1 January 2022:
Purchase price 9.7 171 26.8
Accumulated amortisation and impairment () (4.0) (4.7)
Carryling amount 9.0 133 221
Changes in carrying amount:
Investments, net 20.8 (1.2) 19.6
Amortisation (1.9) (0.3) (2.2)
Total changes 18.9 (1.5) 17.4
Balance as at 31 December 2022:
Purchase price 305 15.9 46.4
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (26) (4.3) (6.9)
Carrying amount 27.9 1.6 39.5
Goodwill mostly relates to the isition of in in 2022. ini ic useful life is

9 years.

Under software, an amount of EUR 9.8m (2021: EUR 11.3m) is included as software in development and will be

charged to ies and once

Net investment includes investments in software and licenses (EUR 11.1m), amounts that have been charged to
countries upon completion (EUR (8.8)m) and adjustments related to unused licenses and non-allocable costs
{EUR (2.3)m). Net consist of i in software and licenses minus the amounts that have been
charged to countries upon completion.

No impairments have been recognised in 2022 (2021: nil).
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31. Tangible fixed assets

Movements in tangible fixed assets were as follows:

Office Total
Balance as at 1 January 2022:
Purchase price 3.0 30
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1.0) (1.0)
Carrying amount 2.0 2.0
Changes in carrying amount:
Investments - -
Disposals - -
Depreciation (04) €0.4)
Total changes (0.4) (0.4)
Balance as at 31 December 2022:
Purchase price 30 3.0
Accumulated depreciation and impairment .4) 1.4)
Carrying amount 1.6 1.6
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32. Financial fixed assets

2022 2021
Participating interests in group companies 1,4981 1568.0
Other participating interests 16.0 -
Accounts receivable from group companies 1619 68.6
Accounts receivable from other participating interests 6.7 6.7
Other securities and loans 232 15.6
1,705.9 1,658.9

Movements in the participating interest were as follows:
Participating Other Total

interest in group participating
companies interests
Balance as at 1 January 2022: 1.568.0 - 15680
Changes in carrying amount:

Capital changes 5.8 (0.4) 51.4
New consolidations (106.5) 19.7 (86.8)
Share in result of participating interests 2268 (3 2237
Transfer to provisions - (0.2) (0.2)
Dividend received from participating interest (144.8) - (144.8)
Cash flow hedge (16.9) (116.9)
Translation differences 19.7 19.7
Balance as at 31 December 2022: 1,498.1 16.0 1,514.1

No impairments have been recognised (2021: nil).

For an overview of participations, refer to pages 89-91.
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At 31 December 2022, the carrying value of the ding accounts i from icipating interests
amounted to EUR 168.5m (2021: EUR 75.3m) with fixed interest rates ranging from 0% to 6% (2021: 0% to 6%).
The total outstanding receivable matures in more than one year, except for Circular Fuels Ltd. and related

ies (temporary loans). No coll.

1 applies to these loans. OQutstanding receivable includes loans to:

* SHV Energy USA LLC of EUR 67.2m (2021: EUR 59.6m);
* Prima LNG N.V. of EUR 10.0m (2021: EUR 8.0m);
* PitPoint LNG B.V. of EUR 6.7m (2021: EUR 6.7m);
« Liquigas S.p.A of EUR 69.0m (2021 nil);
* Primagas Energia S.A.U of EUR 5m (2021 nil);
* Primagaz Sverige AB of EUR 10.3m (2021: nil);
* Energy Metrics Monitoring and Management Ltd. of EUR 0.3m (2021: nil);
* Circular Fuels Ltd. nil (2021: 1.0m).
Other securities and loans relate to:
* Equity investments in Emerald Industrial Innovation Fund L.P of EUR 4.4m (2021: EUR 3.5m);
* Loans to TankTastic Ltd. of EUR 0.3m (2021: EUR 0.3m);
* Loans to DSL-01 B.V. of EUR 4.0m (2021: EUR 3.1m);
* Loans to Qberon Fuels, Inc. of EUR 0.9m (2021: EUR 0.9m).

As of December 2022, the outstanding balances of the loans to Kew Sustainable Fuels Ltd,, Sustainable Energy
Centre Ltd. and Circular Feedstock Services were d to Dimeta. Ot ding bal d to SHV Energy
is nil (2021: EUR 7.8m).

33. Receivables

2022 2021

Trade receivables from group companies 318 195
Other receivables 33 3.6
Prepayments and accrued income 33 67
38.4 29.8

All amounts are due within one year.

Other receivables include sales taxes of EUR 2.3m (2021: EUR 1.9m), insurance claims of EUR 0.6m (2021: EUR
0.6m). Prepayments and accrued income include prepaid software licences 2022 amounting to EUR 3.3m (2021:
EUR 6.5m).

34. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include credit balances of in-house bank accounts with SHV Nederland B.V. of EUR 1.6m
(2021: EUR 7.5m).
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35. Shareholder’s equity

Issued Share Foreign Other Other Unappro- Total
and premium  currency legal reserves priated
pald-up reserve translation reserves result
capital reserve
Balance as at 725 729.0 (346.5) n2.se 756.7 164.6 1,489.2
1 January 2021
Changes in
financial year 2021:
Appropriation - - - 164.6 (164.6) -
of result
Result for the year - - 252.0 2520
Addition to legal . 346 (34.6)
reserve
Taxes through equity - - a3n - 3
Put/call options . . . .
for acquisitions @74 @74)
Dividend paid - - - (164.6) - (164.6)
Translation differences - - 82 - 8.2
Cash flow hedges - - 55.9 - - 559
Acquisition of
minority interests - - 10 - 1.0
Balance as at
1 January 2022: 725 729.0 (338.3) 190.3 695.7 252.0 1,601.2
Changes in
financial year 2022
Appropriation - 2520 (2520) -
of result
Result for the year - - - 187.2 1872
Addition to legal . 04.2) 142
reserve
Taxes through equity - 0.5 a0 - - 415
Put/call options N N . . 255 . 255
for acquisitions
Dividend paid - - - (252.0) - (252.0)
Translation differences - - (14.0) - - - 14.0)
Cash flow hedges - - - (158.4) - - (158.4)
Acquisition of - - a6) .6)
minority interests
Monetary and Inflation
correction - 396 396
Balance as at 725 7290  (3518) 98.3 7338 1872 1,469.0

31 December 2022:
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Issued and paid-up capital

SHV Energy has a nominal capital divided into shares of EUR 450 each. As at 31 December 2022 (and 2021), the
number of issued ordinary shares was 161,000. All shares are fully paid-up. The Company holds no shares in its
own capital.

Share premium reserve

The share premium includes the income from the issuing of shares in so far as this exceeds the nominal value of the
shares {above par income).

Foreign currency translation reserve
Exchange gains and losses arising from the translation of the functional currency of foreign operations to the reporting
currency of the parent are accounted for in this legal reserve. In the case of the sale of a participating interest, the

i ion di are to the profit and loss account.

Other legal reserves

Other legal reserves consist of a legal reserve for p costsand a ion reserve for
derivatives (for which cash flow hedge accounting is applied).

In d with applicable legal provisions, a legal reserve for the carrying amount of

EUR 129.1m (2021: EUR 102.6m) has been ised for capitalised i software.

The negative fair vatue of derivatives of EUR 30.8m (2021: positive EUR 87.7m) is recognised in the revaluation
reserve, along with an associated deferred tax asset (note 11) of EUR 10.Sm (2021: EUR 30.5m (liability)).

Other reserves

The dividend of EUR 252.0m paid out in 2022 has been deducted from other reserves in shareholder’s equity
(2021: EUR 164.6m).

Unappropriated result
The net result for 2022 is included in the item unappropriated result within equity.

Appropriation of profit of 2021

The General Meeting has adopted the appropriation of profit after tax for the reporting year 2021 as proposed by
the Executive Board by adding EUR 67.3m to ‘Other reserves'. In 2022, the Company paid dividend for an amount of
EUR 184.7m and distributed an amount of EUR 67.3m from the ‘Other reserves’.

Proposal for profit appropriation 2022

The Executive Board proposes to the General Meeting to appropriate the profit after tax for 2022 of EUR 187.2m
to the ‘Other reserves'. On 19 April 2023, the Company made a distribution to the shareholder for an amount of
EUR 90.0m, from the 'Other reserves',
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36. Provisions

2022 2021

Pensions 04 05
Restructuring 0.6 0.4
Claims and other disputes 0 10
Other 16 19
3.6 3.8

Pensions provision relates to future obligation of annual i ion of former employees of Primagaz B.V.
The transfer of this financial obligation to SHV Energy N.V. was part of the divestment of Primagaz Nederland B.V.

The restructuring provision is partly due within one year (EUR 0.5m) and partly between one and five years (EUR 0.1m).

The provision for claims and other disputes relates to a specific dispute which is not covered by the global liability
insurance. The provision is expected to be used in the subsequent year.

Other provisions predominantly relate to unused software licences and has an expected maturity of less than one
year. The other provision is recognised for the negative difference between the number of licences to be paid to
third parties after reporting date and the use of licences by the Company after the reporting date. The provision is
determined based on the expected use of software licenses and the unavoidable costs that will be charged based on
related agreements.

37. Non-current liabilities

Non-current liabilities include a loan payable to SHV Nederland B.V. of EUR 148.3m (2021: nil).

38. Current liabilities

2022 2021
In-house bank accounts (debit balances) 138.8 53.0
To suppliers and trade creditors 5.3 .6
To group companies 5.8 71
Other taxes and social security contributions due 06 02
Pension liabilities 11 0Ol
Derivative financial instruments 79 33.4
Accruals and deferred income 6.6 9.9

166.1 15.3
—_—

All current liabilities fall due in less than one year.

Derivative financial instruments consist of a put/call option to purchase the remaining shares in EM3. Both parties
can exercise the option in 2024 or 2025.
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39. Financial instruments

‘The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risk, such as credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy is to identify, assess, and, if
necessary, mitigate these financial risks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance
and therefore also on the Company’s financial performance. The Company makes use of derivative financial instruments,
including forward contracts to mitigate the risks associated with certain financial exposures. The Company does not
trade in financial derivatives for speculative purposes.

‘The risks associated with the Company’s financial instruments, the objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and ing risks, and the of capital are similar to the ones disclosed in note 14.

40. Off-balance sheet assets and liabilities

Commitments

C i for rent and op ing lease amount to EUR 3.9m (2021: EUR 2.4m), of which
EUR 0.8m expires within one year and EUR 3.1m between one and five years.

Purchase commitments amount to EUR 9.3m (2021: EUR 14.3m), of which EUR 4.9m expires within one year
and EUR 0.3m expires after five years.

Guarantees

Under article 403, book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, the Company has issued a declaration of joint and several liability
for 2 Dutch consolidated participating interests as disclosed in section Participations of SHV Energy N.V.

The Company has provided the following parent guarantees to third parties (banks and suppliers) on behalf of
consolidated group companies:

* France (S&RM): ten guarantees for a total amount of USD 726.3m;
* USA (Pinnacle): one guarantee of USD 17.0m;

» India: three guarantees of INR 7,200.0m;

* Bangladesh: one guarantee of USD 10.0m;

* Belgium: one guarantee of EUR 2.0m.

Fiscal unity

Together with some of its Dutch subsidiaries, the Company formed a fiscal unity for value added tax purposes.

Due to the merger of several Dutch legal entities during the year, the fiscal unity has ceased to exist in 2022.
Furthermore, the company, together with its qualifying legal entities, is part of the fiscal unity of SHV Holdings N.V.
for corporate income tax purposes. The standard conditions stipulate that each of the companies is liable for the

tax payable by all companies belonging to the fiscal unity.
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41. Employee benefits and number
of employees

Wages and salaries, social security and pension charges relating to the employees of the Company can be specified
as follows:

2022 2021

Wages and salaries 212 20.6
Social security contributions 14 1
Pension costs 29 17
25.5 234

During the 2022 financial year, the average number of staff employed by the Company, converted into full-time
equivalents, amounted to 155 people (2021: 156 people), of which 24 (2021: 22) were employed outside
the Netherlands.

42. Share of result of participating
interests after tax

This includes the share of the Company in the results of its participating interests, of which an amount of
EUR 226.8m (2021: EUR 280.4m) is generated by group companies.

43. Remuneration of directors

The emoluments, including pension costs as referred to in Section 2:383(1) of the Nethertands Civil Code, charged
in the financial year to the Company and group companies amounted to EUR 1,847,918 (2021: EUR 2,063,407) for
statutory directors,

No loans, advances or guarantees are granted by the Company to the statutory directors (2021: nil).

44. Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are assumed when a relationship exists between the Company and a natural person
orentity that is affiliated with the Company. This includes, amongst others, the relationship between the Company
and its subsidiaries, shareholders, directors and key management personnel. Transactions are transfers of resources,
services or obligations, regardless of whether anything has been charged. There have been no transactions with
related parties that were not at arm’s length. In its normal course of business, the Company buys and sells goods and
services from and to various related parties in which the Company has an interest. These transactions are conducted
on a commercial basis and are subject to conditions that usually govern comparable sales and purchase transactions
with third parties.
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45, Subsequent events

For the disclosure on subsequent events that are relevant to the Company, reference is made to the disclosure on
subsequent events in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Other information

Provisions in the Articles of Association governing the appropriation of profit

Under article 30 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the profit is at the disposal of the General Meeting.
This can allocate said profit either wholly or partly to the formation of - or addition to - one or more general

or special reserve funds.

Participations of SHV Energy N.V.

All participating interests are i d group

(with a 100% participating interest) unless

stated otherwise. SHV Energy N.V. is at the head of the group and has the following capital interests as per
31 December 2022 (Name | Registered office | Share in issued capital):

Austria

* Primagas Centrai Europe Geselischaft m.b.H, | Vienna ?

« Primagas Gesellschaft m.b.H. | Kirchbichl | 72.74%*

Bangladesh

* Petromax LPG Limited | Dhaka | 99.99967

* Petromax Cylinders Limited | Dhaka | 99.99%?

Belgium

« Cylinder Filling N.V. | Tessenderlo *

* Prima LNG N.V. | Berchem’

* Primagas Belgium N.V. | Tessenderlo’

Bosnia and Herzegovina

+ Liquivex d.o.o. | Usora | 96.31%°

Brazil

* Chama Tecrologia Do Brasil Ltda. | Sdo Paulo!

* Supergasbras Energia Leda. | Betim | 99.99%2

* MG de Transportes Lida. | Betim?

+ Acelage Servicos de Engenharia Ltda. | Rio de Janeiro ?

Croatia

+ Butanplin d.0.0. | Zminj?

Czech Republic

* Primagas s.ro. | Prague?

Denmark

+ Primagas Danmark A/S | Koege'

France

+ Compagnie Bordelaise Des Gaz Liquefies — Cobogal |
Ambés | 50.00%°

* Primagas Lavera SA.S. | Nanterr?

+ Primagaz S.AS. | Paris’

* Rhone-Gas S.A. | Solaize | 49.38%>

+ SHV Gas Supply and Risk Management S.AS. | Nanterre 2

« Sigalnor SA. | Gonfreville IQrcher | 34.98%

+ Société Métallurgique Liotard Freres (S.M.LLF) SA |
Saint Pierre des Corps | 99.99% 7

Germany
« FVG GmbH | Grossrudested | 14.55% ¢

* Nordsee Gas Terminal GmbH & Co. KG (NGT) | Brunsbuettel |
36.379% 7

« Nordsee Gas Terminal GmbH (NGT) | Brunsbuettel | 36.37%

« PPR Fluessiggas GmbH & Co. KG | Krefeld | 48.50% 2

* PPR Fluessiggas GmbH | Krefeld | 48.50% *

« Primagas Energie GmbH | Krefeld | 72.74%

* Primagas Verwaltungs GmbH | Krefeld | 72.74%*

* Transgas Fliissiggas Transport und Logistik GmbH & Co. KG |
Dortmund | 21.829%

* Transgas Fliissiggas, Transport und Logistik Verwaltungs GmbH |
Dortmund | 21.829°

« Westdeutsche Fluessiggas Lager GmbH | Krefeld | 30.33%"

India

* SunSource Energy Private Limited | Noida | 99.99%2

« liyarays Energy Private Limited | Noida 1 99.99% 2

* Inarays Energy Private Limited | Noida { 99.99% 7

« Isharays Energy Private Limited | Noida I 99.99%*

« Jyotikiran Maidawali Energy Private Limited { Noida 1 99.99% 2

« Jyotikiran Bijeypur Energy Private Limited | Noida | 99.99%2

« Jyotikiran Chandeli Energy Private Limited { Noida { 99.99% %

« Jyotikiran Energy Bhilwara Private Limited | Noida 1 99.999

« Jyotikiran Energy Chennai Private Limited | Noida  99.999% *

+ Jyotikiran Energy Lucknow Private Limited | Noida | 99.99% 2

« Jyotikiran Energy Mumbai Private Limited | Noida | 99.99%

+ Jyotikiran Energy Ckhla Private Limited | Noida 1 99.99% 7

* Jyotikiran Energy Private Limited ! Noida 1 99.99% *

* Alpur Solar Private Lid | Noida | 72.74%

+ Lone Cypress Venture Private Limited [ Noida ¢ 55.88%

* 83 Energy Private Limited { Noida 1 99.99%
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India (continued)

« SHV Energy india Private Ltd. | Hyderabad?

* SHV Energy Private Ltd. | Hyderabad?

* Suryaurja Brunswick Private Limited { Noida | 99.99%?
* Suryaurja One Private Limited { Noida 1 99.9996%

* Suryaurja Two Private Limited { Noida 1 99.9996%

* Suryaurja Four Private Limited | Noida [ 99.99%%

« Isharays Energy One Private Ltd. | Noida | 99.99%7

« Isharays Energy Two Private Ltd. | Noida | 99.99%7

« Isharays Energy Three Private Ltd. | Noida | 99.999%7

« Isharays Energy Four Private Ltd. | Noida | 99.99%7

* Taiyung Energy Private Limited | Noida  99.99%7

* Taiyung Solar Projects Private Limited | Noida [ 99.99%*
*» Tuiyung Solarenergy Private Limited ! Noida | 99.99%

+ Utryan Energy Agra Private Limited [ Noida | 99.99%7

* Utryan Energy Brunswick Private Limited { Noida | 99,9992
* Utryan Energy Private Limited | Noida [ 99.99%*

+ Utryan Energy Puri Private Limited ! Noida [ 99.99%

* Vasuprada Enengy Private Limited | Noida | 99.99%

* Verdanearth Ventures Private Limited | Noida { 99.99%*
* VVS Solar Projects Private Limited | Noida | 50.009%"
Italy

« Alanno Gas S.rL. | Alanno | 34.00%°

« Areagas S.p.A. | Vlpolicella | 35.009°

* Bimgas S.p.A. | Gavoi | 49.00%"

* Carini Gas S.rL | Carini PA | 41.00%°

+ Costiero Gas Livorno S.pA. | Livorno | 35.00%°

* Energo Servisi S.rl | Brescia’

* Foligno Gas S.xl. | Foligno | 49.00%

* Ipem Industria Petroli Meridionale S.p.A. | Brindisi | 38.98%°
« Liquigas S.p.A. | Brescia®

* Liquigas Valtellina S.rL | Villa di Tirano SO | 50.009%°
. iano Gas S.crL | iano | 49.00%%
* Rebigas S.rL. | Pianello val Tidone PC | 50.009

* So.G.Ra.F. S.rL | Marnate Nizsolina | 1.56%*

* VulcanGas Umbra S.rL | Spoleto?

* Nuova ltafi S.rL. | Brescia?

Malta

+ Gasco Energy Ltd. | Birtebbuga | 50.009%27
* Liquigas Malta Led. | Biriebbuga | 50.009%37
The Netherlands

» Dimeta B.V. | Utrecht| 509

* Itafi NV | Amsterdam*

* PitPoint LNG B.V. | Nicuwegein | 50.009%

* SHV Calor Asia B.V. | Utrecht

* SHY Energy (LPG) Holding B.V. | Utrecht "¢
* SHV Energy USAB.V. | Utrecht’

* SHV Gas South China B.V. | ‘s Gravenhage ¢

People’s Republic of China

» Dongguan SHY Energy Co., Ltd. | Dongguan | 89.779%%

+ Dongguan SHV LPG Co., Ltd. | Dongguan | 89.77%2

* Guangdong Puhua Co., Ltd. | Guangshou?

* Guangdong Puhua Energy Chain Co. Ltd. | Guangshou?

+ Guangzhou Gty Conghua Haoli Petrochemicul Development Co, Ltd.(
Guangzhou?

* Guangshou City Hongdu Fuel Gas Co., Lid. |
Guangshou | 30.00%

* Guangshou City Zengcheng Puhua Energy Co., Ltd. | Guangzshou?

+ Guangshou Guang'An LPG Co., Ltd. | Guangshou | 51.00%%

+ Guangshou Luoxing Gas Co, Ltd. | Guangshou?

. SHV E- Co., Led |

» Guangshou SHY Logistics Co., Ltd. | Guangshou?

* Guangshou Xiran Energy Co., Ltd. | Guangshou?

» Guangzhou Xixun Consulting Service Co., Ld. | Guangshou?

+ Heshan LPG Co. Ltd. | Heshan?

« Jiangmen Huayu Cylinder Retesting Co., Lid. | Jiangmen?

» Jiangmen Huayu LPG Co., Ltd. | Jiangmen?

» Jiangmen Xinhui Huihai LPG Supply Co. Led. | Jiangmen | 60.009%*

» Jiangmen Xinjiang Gas Transportation Co., Ltd. | Jiangmen?

* Macau Senye Gas Lid. | Macau?

+ Ningbo SHY Clean Energy Co., Ltd. | Zhejiang | 80.00%*

« Shanghai Bestir Energy Development Co,, Ltd. | Shanghai?

* SHV (China) Investment Co., Ltd. | Guangshou?

* SHV (Foshan) LPG Co., Ltd. | Foshan?

* SHV (Jiangmen) LPG Co., Ltd. | Jiangmen?

« SHV (Shanghai) LPG Co, Ltd. | Shanghai?

+ SHV (Zhejiang) Energy Development Co., Ltd. | Zhejiang?

* SHV (Zhangshan) LPG Co,, Ld. | Zhongshan®

+ Xuzhou Xingyu Energy Co., Ltd. | Xushou?

-+ Yangchun Senye Fuel Gas Co., Ltd. | Yangchun?

+ Yangjiang Sen Ye Fuel Gas Co., Lid. | Yangjiang®

* Yangxi Sen Ye Fuel Gas Co, Ltd. | Yangxi?

* Zhaoging SHV Clean Energy Co., Ltd. | Zhaoqing?

+ Zhuhai Cylinder Retesting Co., Lid. | Zhuhai?

« Zhuhai Fuel Gas Group Co., Ltd. | Zhuhai?

* Zhuhai Fuel Gas Logistics Service Co., Ltd. | Zhuhai?

* Zhuhai Gas Co., Ld. | Zhuhai?

+ Zhuhai Xiteng Consulting Services Co., Ltd. | Zhuhai?

Philippines

* Surya Source Energy Link Inc. | Pasig City | 38.40%
Poland

« Gaspol S.A. | Warsaw | 97.82%*

* Warsaw Gas Trading Sp. z.0.0. | Warsaw | 97.82%?
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Republic of ireland

* Calor Gas Pensions Ireland Ltd. | Dublin®

+ Calor Teoranta | Dublin?

* Energy Metrics Monitoring and Management Ltd. | Limerick |
60.00%"

Singapore

« SunSource Cleantech ventures PTE. Lid. | Singapore?

Slovenia

* Butanplin dd. | Ljubljana?

Spain

* Primagas Energia, S.A.U. | Barcelona'

Sweden

» Primagaz Gasol Sverige AB | Malmo?

+ Primagaz Sverige AB | Stenungsund’

Thailand

« SunSource Cleantech Ventures (Thailand) Co. Ltd. | Bangkok [
99.00%2

Turkey

+ Butangas AS. | Tekirdag?

* Evas Ev Aletleri Sanayi A.S. | Istanbul?

+ ipra Enerji AS. | Istanbul!

« Ipragas AS. | Istanbul!

* Yildinm Petrol Ticaret ve Nakliyat A.S. | Istanbul?

United Kingdom

* Autogas Lid. | Warwick | 50.009%°

« Budget Gas Ltd. | Warwick?

* Calor Gas Ltd. | Warwick?

* Calor Gas Northern ireland Ltd. | Belfast?

+ Calor Group Ltd. | Warwick?

* Calor Partner Properties LP | Edinburgh?

* Calor Pension Trust Ltd. | Warwick?

 Calor Properties Ltd. | Edinburgh?

+ Calor Properties Scotland Ltd. | Edinburgh?

* Chive Fuels Ltd. | Warwick?

* Chive Ltd. | Warwick?

« Cireular Fuels Ltd. | Birmingham | 38.009%'

United Kingdom (continued)

* Discount Gas Supplies Ltd. | Doncaster?

+ Hamilton Gas Products Ltd. | Belfast | 50.009%°

* Humber LPG Terminal Ltd. | London | 50.00%°

+ Liquefied Petroleum National Gas Ltd. | Warwick?

« Pressure Test Services Lid. | Belfast?

* SHV Energy Holdings UK Ltd. | Warwick?

* Energy Metrics Monitoring and Management UK Limited |
Wanwick?

* SHV Gas Trading Ltd. | Warwick !

UsA

« Alliant Arizona Propane LLC | Irving?

* Alliant Gas LLC | Irving?

+ EM3 LLC | Chicago | 60.00%7

« Pinnacle Qperating Services Company LLC | Irving?

« Pinnacle Propane Express LLC | Irving?

« Pinnacle Propane LLC | Irving?

-+ SHY Energy USA LLC | Delaware?

« SunSource Energy Americas Inc. | Edison?

2Indirect investment of SHV Energy N.V.

“Participating interest with no significant influence.

SParticipating interest in liquidation.

'Direct (and through indirect investments) of SHV Energy N.V.

“Participating interest with significant influence but no control.

‘Liability declaration issued (pursuant to Section 2:403 of the Dutch Civil Code).

?Legally a joint venture, consolidated for reporting purposes.
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Independent
auditor’s report
To: the General Meeting of SHV Energy N.V.

Report on the audit of the accompanying financial statements

Our opinion
We have audited the financial statements 2022 of SHV Energy N.V., based in Hoofddorp.
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
SHV Energy N.V. as at 31 December 2022 and of its result for the year 2022 in accordance with Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
The financial statements comprise:

1. the consolidated and company balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

2. the consolidated and company profit and loss account for the year 2022; and

3. the notes ising a y of the policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for our opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities
under those ds are further described in the 'Our for the audit of the financial statements' section

of our report.

We are independent of SHV Energy N.V. in with the ‘Wet toezicht isaties’ (Wta, Audit
firms supervision act), the "\ inzake de ijkheid van bij

(ViO, Code of Ethics for i a lation with respect to independence) and other relevant

il I in the Netherland: we have complied with the 'Verordening gedrags- en

beroepsregels accountants' (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

‘We designed our audit procedures in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon. The information in respect of fraud and Jit with laws and ions and going concern
was addressed in this context, and we do not provide a separate opinion or conclusion on these matters.

We believe the audit evidence we h; btained is sufficient and

to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Information in support of our opinion

Audit response to the risk of fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations
In the chapter Ethics & compliance of the Report of the Executive Board the Executive Board describes its procedures
in respect of the risk of fraud and i with laws and

As part of our audit, we have gained insights into SHV Energy N.V. and its business environment, and assessed the
design and implementation of SHV Energy N.V.'s risk management in relation to fraud and non-compliance.

Our procedures included, among other things, assessing SHV Energy N.V.’s code of conduct, whistleblowing
procedures, third party due diligence procedures, ethics & compliance training and its procedures to investigate
indications of possible fraud and ron-compliance. Furthermore, we performed relevant inquiries with the
Executive Board and other relevant functions, such as Internal Audit and Compliance.

As part of our audit procedures, we:
« assessed other positions held by the Executive Board members;

. il igation reports on of possible fraud and non-compliance;

« evaluated legal confirmation letters.

In addition, we d to obrtain an ing of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are
applicable to SHV Energy N.V. and its idiaries and identified the ing areas as those most likely to have
a material effect on the financial statements:

* anti-bribery and corruption laws and ions ( ing the use of i iary parties);

+ labor laws (reflecting the signil and diverse work force);

* competition law (reflecting the global presence and competitive local markets in which the business units
operate); and

« environmental law and health and safety ions (reflecting
to the Company’s logistical processes and related safety).

impact ictions related

We, together with our forensics specialists, evaluated the fraud and non-compliance risk factors to consider whether
those factors indicate a risk of material misstatement in the financial statements.
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Based on the previous page and on the auditing we the fraud risks that are relevant to
our audit, including the relevant presumed risks laid down in the auditing standards, and responded as follows:

Management override of controls (a presumed risk)
Risk:
Management is in a unique position to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements
by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively.
Responses:
« We evaluated the design and the implementation of internal controls that mitigate fraud risks, such as

processes related to journal entries.

* We performed an analysis of high-risk journal entries related to post-closing journal entries and evaluated
key estil and jud for bias by Where we identified instances of
journal entries or other risks through our analytics, we performed additional audit procedures to address
each identified risk, including testing of transactions back to source information.

* We instructed our component auditors to perform audit procedures in relarion to high risk journal entries,
specifically in relation to identified fraud risks. Based on our involvement in the work performed by the
component auditors, we determined that they adhered to these group audit instructions.

* Wei elements of dictability in our audit, i ing an il audit scope ina
non-significant group company.

Revenue recognition (a presumed risk)

Risk:

Due to the positive results in relation to the budget, management could be tempted to improperly shift revenues
to a future period. This would result in a risk of fraudulent financial reporting in relation to the cut-off, which
subsequently would imply an understatement of revenues.

Responses:
. ification of group ies in which the signil riskis p to be present.

+ Determined and instructed minimum procedures to be performed by component auditors of components
for which we determined the risk to be present. These procedures included, at a minimum:

- Determination and evaluation of at least the design and implementation of the process level controls
(incl. anti-fraud controls) as implemented by management.

- Perf of. ive audit (including test of details) over the cut-off of revenue
at year end, which included testing revenue transactions recorded in FY 2023.

- Journal entry testing, specifically taking into account high risk criteria in relation to revenues.

- Applying an element of icrability in ing the audit

* We were involved in these audit procedures at a number of our component auditors through file reviews,
physical site visits and the inspection of component reporting.

 Testing of high risk journal entries on group level which impact revenue recognised
(post-closing journal entries).

We i our risk audit and results to the Executive Board.

Our audit did not reveal indications and/or
considered material for our audit.

suspicion of fraud and non-compliance that are

94 | SHV Energy 2022 Annual Report

Audit response to going concern
The Executive Board has performed its going concern assessment and has not identified any significant going concer risks.
Toassess the Executive Board's assessment, we have performed, inter alia, the following procedures:
. we i whether the ive Board’s of the going concern risks includes all relevant
information of which we are aware as a result of our audit.

* we questioned the Executive Board on the key ions and i the ive Board's
assessment of the going concern risks, including the ion of liquidity h and in
energy prices.

« we analysed the company’s financial position as at year-end and compared it to the previous financial year
in terms of indicators that could identify significant going concern risks.

* we analysed the operating results forecast and the related cash flows compared to the previous financial
year, developments in the business sector and any information of which we are aware as a result of our audit.

» we inspected financing in terms of itions and limitations that could lead to significant going
concemn risks, including the term of the agreements.

* as a significant part of the financing is provided by the SHV Holdings N.V. Group, we considered whether the
outcome of our audit procedures to assess the ability of the SHV Holdings N.V. Group to fulfil its obligations
to the company indicate a significant going concem risk.

Th f our risk did not give reason to perform audit

going concem assessment.

Report on the other information included in the annual report
In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains other information.
Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:

« is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements.

* contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code regarding the management

report and the other information.

We have read the other inf ion. Based on our dge and
financial or oth:

obtained through our audit of the
, we have i whether the other i ion contains material misstatements.

By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and
the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is less than the scope of those performed in our
audit of the financial statements.

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation of the other i ion, including the report,

in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of
the Dutch Civil Code.

Description of the responsibilities for the financial statements

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

The Executive Board ( ) is ible for the ion and fair ion of the financial statements
inaccordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Fu is ible for such internal
control as determines is y to enable the ion of the financial that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to errors or fraud.

Aspart of the ion of the financial is ble for assessing the company's ability to
continue as a going concem. Based on the finandial reporting framework mentioned, management should prepare the
financial using the goil basis of ing unless either intends to liquidate the Company
or i has no realistic al but to doso. should discl anddi

that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concemn in the financial statements.
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Qur audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not have
detected all material ervors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or errors and are i material if, individually or in the they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the
effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

‘We have ised i jud, and have maintai i ic the audit, in
accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical i and indk d qui Our audit
included among others:

« identifying and assessing the risks of material mi: of the financial whether due to

errors or fraud, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errors, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, i i issi i i or the override of internal control;

* obraining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal cosntrol;

« evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

on the i of use of the going concern basis of accounting and

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerrainty exists related to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
in the financial or, if such discl are to modify our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the company ceasing to continue as a going concern;

« evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures; and

« evaluating whether the financial represent the ing ti ions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We are solely responsible for the opinion and therefore responsible to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the

financial statements. In this respect we are also ible for directing, supervising and ing the group audit.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and signil audit findings, including any signi findings in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Rotterdam, 12 May 2023
KPMG Accountants N.V.
F.J. van het Kaar RA
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